

Best Available Copy

DISCLAIMER NOTICE



THIS DOCUMENT IS BEST QUALITY AVAILABLE. THE COPY FURNISHED TO DTIC CONTAINED A SIGNIFICANT NUMBER OF PAGES WHICH DO NOT REPRODUCE LEGIBLY.

BEACH POINT FOCUSED FEASIBILITY STUDY (FFS)

MDF COMMENTS	REPLY
Work Plan	
(1)	(1)
Page 1-1. Since the proposed Phase I of the FFS does not adequately address the potential DNAPL plume at the site, WMA does not believe the term "comprehensive environmental investigation" is appropriate.	The sentence which contains the term "comprehensive environmental investigation," refers to the purpose of the work plan which delineates all three phases of the FFS. The next sentence defines the goals of the investigation and references determining the nature and distribution of contamination. The term comprehensive will be changed to phased.
(2)	(2)
Page 2-5, Groundwater usage. The section appears to be somewhat inaccurate. While surface water may currently play a significant role in Edgewood's water supply; during the forties and perhaps earlier, a significant number of wells were constructed to provide the base with water. Some of the wells, though officially condemned, are still in existence and have been activated as recently as 1991.	This statement was referenced from the RCRA Facility Assessment Report (page 7). Though the existence of the wells is known, records of usage of the well system are believed to have been destroyed in the fire which occurred in a facilities engineering building in the Edgewood Area during 1971. The key word to be noted in the sentence commented on is secondary.
(3)	(3)
Page 2-17. Review of the referenced USGS report indicates the inferred thickness of the confining unit beneath the Beach Point Area is open to interpretation.	Thickness of the upper conlining layer (aquitard) was approximated from thicknesses of the same unit found in three neighboring wells. Average thickness of the aquitard in these wells is approximately 88 feet. Data from the three wells suggest that the aquitard may become thinner in an east/southward direction. The language of this section has been changed to indicate that this interpretation is speculation from available data and subject to refinement as new data are generated.
(4)	(4)
Page 2-20. If the groundwater at the site may truly be characterized as "sea water" as the report indicates, what is the source of the dissolved solids? Much of the surface water in the area is "fresh" or only slightly brackish.	The statement has been changed to rellect that the water chemistry is indicative of fresh to slightly brackish water.

FILE COMMENTI MOERHENRY)

1

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY
(5)	(5)
Page 2-21, Figure 2-6 . The depiction of the LNAPL layer in the figure is misleading. LNAPL should form a layer at the interface of the saturated and unsaturated zones not a "pool" which significantly depresses the water table.	Figure 2-6 was drawn to generalize the characteristics of dissolved LNAPLs and DNAPLs. The word "Dissolved" has been added to the figure as appropriate.
(6)	(6)
 Page 2-32, Figure 2-8. The entire Edgewood Peninsula is an NPL Site, therefore the arbitrary selection of a reference point as the source of "background" samples is unacceptable. Sediment samples in the marsh area north and south of the "circle" near the treatment plant would seem to be appropriate based on the historical discussion. Why have no wells been proposed for the southern end of the Beach Point Area? A well in this location might be useful in the early determination of the extent of contamination and the structural attitude of the clay aquitard. It would appear that some of the proposed soil borings could be deleted. Due to the proximity of the proposed wells to some of the proposed soil borings. It would appear that sampling the soil during the well drilling operation could be substituted for some of the proposed soil borings. The elimination of some unnecessary borings will minimize the generation of investigatory derived material. 	 Figure 2-8. Terminology of "Background" sample has been changed to "Local Background." These sampling points were selected to determine whether or not any contaminant sources outside of the Beach Point Test Site are interfering with the definition of on-site contaminant sources. Sediment samples have been added to the marsh areas north and south of the treatment plant. USGS believes that detected contamination from clothing impregnating operations is well defined by the present monitoring well clusters. The proposed monitoring well locations are designed to fill gaps in vertical data not available from the USGS drilling and sampling program. Structural attitude of the upper confining unit will be defined by the geophysical program. Additional wells were proposed for the area west/southwest of the peninsula. However, these wells were removed from the FFS after a consensus was reached among JEG, USGS, and APG-DSHE. Wells are proposed for the RI/FS in the area around the treatment plant. Contingency wells are also planned in the RI/FS for any areas of the southwest portion of Beach Point where soil contamination is detected.

FILE ACOMMENT'S MUERHENRY)

ŧ

1

ŀ

ł

)

Þ

٠

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY
(6) Continued	(6) Continued
	 Any soil boring that is close to a proposed well location will be consolidated with the well drilling program to minimize generation of Investigation Derived Waste (IDW). The number of proposed boring locations is the minimum necessary to locate any possible areas of soil contamination. If significant soil contamination is located, additional soil borings will be needed to define the extent of such contamination so that appropriate remedial measures can be designed.
(7)	(7)
Page 2-34. The text refers to Dithiane as a "degradation product of Mustard" this implies to the reader that Dithiane is a natural breakdown product of Mustard. However, on previous occasions Army chemists have indicated that the oresence of Dithiane in groundwater is the result of the hydrolysis of chemicals derived from the incomplete thermal degradation of Mustard. If this is true, perhaps the RI should be looking for the source of Dithiane, a yet undiscovered burning operation which may have destroyed CSM or CSM contaminated material.	You are correct in your understanding that 1,4-dithiane is a degradation product that may result from the thermal destruction of distilled mustard. However, 1,4-dithiane also is a result of other processes. It is a degradation product that is produced in the manufacturing of distilled mustard and, therefore may be found in areas where the agent was either produced or burned. There is also a large body of evidence suggesting that 1,4-dithiane is a degradation product resulting from natural processes. For example, recent studies conducted on the clothing of Iranian soldiers (gassed casualties of the Iraqi war) showed the presence of 1,4-dithiane in the soil adhering to their clothing. The RI is designed to determine the source of the 1,4-dithiane whether it be from the manufacture, natural degradation, or thermal degradation of distilled mustard.

FILE COMMENTI MDERNENRY)

٦

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY
(8) Page 2-41. The paragraph notes that 10 μ g/l of 1,1,2,2- tetrachloroethane was detected in surface water near Beach Point; however, Table 2-7 indicates that the maximum amount of 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane found in surface water was 5 μ g/l. Please explain this discrepancy. Also please explain why no mention of the relatively high amount of vinyl chloride (39 μ g/l and 33 μ g/l) detected in CCSW-5 and CCSW-7 was made in the text. The presence of vinyl chloride at these concentrations may be a significant risk driver since the MCL for this chemical is 2 μ g/l.	(8) Table 2-7 has been corrected to show the 10 μg/l maximum concentration for 1,1,2,2- tetrachloroethane. Available information indicates that no levels of concern for vinyl chloride have been established in the AWQC for fresh water. Because the fresh water AWQCs were used to establish chemicals of concern for the FFS, vinyl chloride was not included in the discussion.
(9) Page 2-43, Table 2-7. The table reports the maximum amount of Cadmium in surface water as 6.7 μ /l while a Table 2-5, item CCSW-8U, reports 42 μ g/l for Cadmium. Please explain this. Cadmium at this higher level will certainly have an impact on aquatic life. Mercury is also significantly higher in CCSW-8U than is reported in Table 2-7.	(9) Table 2-7. Concentration for cadmium from sample CCSW-8U reads 4.2 µg/l, and Mercury is 1.7. The decimal point did not copy well on the reproduced pages of this table.
(10)	(10)
Page 2-44, Figure 2-9. The method for depicting DNAPL and LNAPL is perhaps misleading.	Changes have been made to Figure 2-9 to better conceptualize LNAPL and DNAPL contaminant transport.
(11)	(11)
Page 2-48, Table 2-8. Hydrogeologic investigation. The selection of "shallow and intermediate depth wells" to characterize DNAPL is questioned. Should wells screened at the base of the aquifer also be included in this investigation? (Page 3-11 indicates that the wells will be screened at an intermediate level and at the base of the surficial aquifer. Which plan is correct?)	Text on page 3-11 is correct; Table 2-8 has been corrected to correspond to the text.
(12)	(12)
Page 2-50, Table 2-8. Analytical Method CLP, USATHAMA, EPA and ASTM. Have analytical methods defined in the ICF Risk Assessment and WES QUAPP been considered in the preparation of this table?	Analytical methods in Table 2-8 have been updated to reflect information from the TERA QAPP (IFC, 1993). (See General Comment.)
(13)	(13)
Page 2-57. Should vinyl chloride be considered a potential concern?	Please refer to response 8.

FILE ACOMMENT'S MOESHENRY)

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY
(14)	(14)
Page 2-57, Bullet "Federal Safe Drinking Water Act" The document makes the statement that " The contaminated aquifer is brackish and is not used as a drinking water source; therefore the SDWA (Safe Drinking Water Act) MCLS are probably not applicable or relevant and appropriate." This infers that the authors are classifying this groundwater as Class III according to the classification system for groundwater promulgated by the US EPA. However, the EPA's definition of Class III groundwater is very specific: "Groundwater not consider a potential source of drinking water and of limited beneficial use (Class IIIA and Class IIIB) is saline, i.e., it has a total dissolved solids levels over 10,000 milligrams per liter (mg/l)". Based on the information presented in the report on page 2-20 that " groundwater at Beach Point contains 1000 to 3000 mg/l total dissolved solids (TDS)", how is the presumption that the groundwater in question is Class III in nature supportable?	Concurrence by MDE, EPA, and APG- DSHE to classify groundwater in the surficial aquifer at Beach Point as Class II- B suggests the statement that the "SDWA MCLs are probably neither applicable nor relevant and appropriate" may stand as written.
(15)	(15)
Page 2-58, Bullet "Maryland Drinking Water Law" Refer to comment above.	Please refer to response 14.
(16)	(16)
Page 2-61. In addition to the Maryland ARARs mentioned, the following should also be considered:	
Potential ARARs	
"Chesapeake Bay Critical Area Commission Criteria For Local Critical Area Program Development," COMAR 14.15.01, .02, .04, .07, .09, .10, & .11. "Threatened and Endangered Species," COMAR 08.03.08. "Water Appropriation or Use," COMAR 08.05.02	
(17)	(17)
In addition to the Maryland ARARs mentioned, the following should also be considered:	The potential ARARs listed will be added and considered in the Feasibility Study.
Potential ARARs	
"Well Construction," COMAR 26.04.04 "Solid Waste Management," COMAR 26.04./07 "Board of Well Drillers," COMAR 26.05.01 "Erosion and Sediment Control," COMAR 26.09.01 "Storm Water Management," COMAR 26.09.02 "Oil Pollution," COMMAR 26.10.01	

FILE (COMMENTS SIDE/DIGHRY)

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY	
(18)	(18)	
Page 3-2, Figure 3-1. How can "significant risk due to nature and <u>extent</u> of contamination" be determined if the extent of contamination is not fully defined until Phase II?	This comment requires concurrence between EPA and MDE.	
(19)	(19)	
Page 3-9. Will the surface soil sampling discussed here be for use in the Risk Assessment or is it for source identification/verification? The ICF Risk Assessment Work Plan for the Edgewood Area calls for surface soil samples to be taken in the depth interval 0 to 6".	Results of the surface soil sample analysis (0-6" in depth) will be used for both the Risk Assessment and contaminant source identification/verification. Soil borings will also be used for source identification/verification.	
(20)	(20)	
Page 3-11, Refer to comment 11 above.	The question regarding continuous soil sampling is not clearly understood. Analyses of soil samples collected from the borings will be used primarily for contaminant source identification and evaluation of possible measures to protect groundwater and surface water from continued contaminant migration. Continuous soil sampling is necessary to obtain the volume of sample needed for the proposed suite of analyses.	
Focused Feasibility Study Draft Field Sampling Plan Specific Comments		
(1)	(1)	
Page 1-8. The Army has previously chosen to utilize the WES <u>Generic Work Plan</u> for the entire Edgewood NPL Site. Will the Jacobs Engineering Group follow the sampling procedures outline in this document or will new procedures be developed?	The Beach Point FSP has been modified to reflect adherence to the WESGWP SOPs.	
(2)	(2)	
Page 1-9, Table 1-1. Please refer to the earlier comment concerning the arbitrary select of "background" on an NPL Site.	Discussed in Work Plan response 6 regarding "Background" terminology.	

FRE COMMENTS MOENHRY)

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY
(3)	(3)
Page 2-8, Baseline Risk Assessment. It should be noted that the subject document was a draft document which was never finalized following regulatory comments.	It is noted that the Baseline Risk Assessment is a draft document. In light of the fact that this document has not been finalized, limited reference to information in the draft copy may be appropriate.
(4)	(4)
"Field parameter " One of the most critical parameters which should be evaluated before a sample is collected is visual clarity or turbidity. Current guidance indicates that readings of less than 10 NU is acceptable for groundwater samples.	The FSP has been modified to include the EPA-recommended procedures for well purging and field parameter measurements. It is understood that this is the accepted procedure for groundwater sampling at APG-EA.
(5)	(5)
"Well Purging" Surging of the well is an appropriate procedure during well <u>development</u> . However, during well purging prior to sampling it is not a good practice. For typical purging of a well, the pumping operation should begin with the pump in the upper part of the water column. Purging should continue by gradually lowering the pump into the ell as water is removed from the well. This will remove the stagnant water from the well first and result in minimal mixing. This method is discussed in the WES Generic Work Plan for the Edgewood Area. Modification of this procedure may be in the development stage so the contractor should consult with WES concerning currently <u>approved</u> procedures.	The FSP has been modified to include the EPA-recommended procedures for well purging and field parameter measurements. It is understood that this is the accepted procedure for groundwater sampling at APG-EA.
(6)	(6)
Page 3-16. The parameters that are monitored also include oxidation reduction potential (Eh), specific conductance (SC), dissolved oxygen (DO) and turbidity. Refer to WES SOPs for monitoring requirements.	The FSP has been modified to include the EPA-recommended procedures for well purging and field parameter measurements. It is understood that this is the accepted procedure for groundwater sampling at APG-EA.
Focused Feasibility Study Draft Quality Assurance Program Plan General Comment	

A brief review of the subject document finds that it is a unique document, which is inconsistent with concurrent and related work at Edgewood. As an example the subject document proposes to use analytical methods which are inconsistent with the ICF Risk Assessment QAPP, yet one of the main thrusts of the proposed (FS is to determine the risk posed by the soil and groundwater at the Beach Point site. Also, in light of comments made above, it appears that the WES Generic Work Plan was not consulted in the preparation of this document. In light of this, the subject document will not be reviewed at this time.

FILE /COMMENT & MOE/(HEHRTY)

Ł

ŧ

.

MDE COMMENTS	REPLY
QAPP GENERAL COMMENT RESPONSE	
The Beach Point FFS QAPP and all other Canal Creek QAPPs Ecological Risk Assessment (TERA) QAPP. The TERA QAPP version of the O-Field QAPP. Areas which differ from this vers in a summary of deviations. Chiefly, the differences result from instrument-specific considerations. WES SOPs will be included	will reflect the Task 10 Terrestrial and is an updated and USAEHA-approved ion will be highlighted and further explained in changes made for site-specific and t.

.

FILE /COMMENT I NDE/HENRY

EPA COMMENTS	REPLY
Draft Projec	st Work Plan
(1)	(1)
The objectives of the work plan seem to be inconsistent with the proposed implementation of the work and the FFS in the document. It is stated on pages 1-2 and 1-3 that the results of seismic surveys and sampling of sediments, groundwater, soil borings and assays will be supplied to tCF for development of risk assessment of the Beach Point site, based on ecological preliminary remediation goals. This objective is consistent with the introduction on page 1-1 where it is stated that contaminants from the site may be impacting water quality and aquatic life in nearby Kings Creek and near- shore areas of the Bush River. Additionally it is noted here that the study will only deal with the surficial aquifer at Beach Point which is brackish. Therefore, it would seem that the investigation is focused on the ecologic impacts on the surface water bodies and not on groundwater as an actual or potential potable water source (it has Class III characteristics). Based on the statement on page 2-42, "because VOCs typically persist in surface water for only a short time period because of volatilization, they are likely to be present only in the immediate vicinity of source areak (e.g., groundwater plumes)", it would appear that the interest in groundwater would be if it were discharging into the surface	Page 1-4 refers generally to a risk assessment without further qualifying it, while page 3-3 qualifies it saying "it will be conducted to assess the influence of past site activities on living biota in the area of Beach Point and to qualitatively determine human health risk from limited pathways". Page 1-3 refers generally to a risk assessment and further states that it will be based on ecological preliminary remediation goals (PRGs) and page 3-1 refers to an ecological risk assessment. The ICF Risk Assessment Plan which is Appendix D of this document describes the proposed risk assessment. As stated in the plan it will " focus on potential impacts in aquatic life inhabiting nearby areas in Kings Creek and the Bush River, because aquatic species are the receptors potentially at greatest risk from exposure to chemicals released from groundwater. Potential human health risks associated with exposures to chemicals released to surface water from groundwater will be evaluated qualitatively." It goes on to state that " based on groundwater and surface water sampling data collected to date, such (human) exposures are not likely to be large, given the relatively low concentrations of most volatile organic chemicals and the distance to potential receptor points". (See Section 4.2 of the plan for greater detail).
water bodies at levels exceeding those in Table 2-7 (which should be checked as they are not in agreement with those used by EPA).	Therefore the major thrust of the risk assessment is the ecological assessment. To avoid confusion, the word primarily will be added before ecological on page 1-3 and the word ecological will be removed from page 3-1.

FILE COMMENTS EPAPEMINY

EPA COMMENTS	REPLY
(1) Continued	(1) Continued
Therefore, it is not clear why the investigation is proposed to initially "evaluate potential on-site sources, define morphology and limited flow patterns of the surficial aquifer" and include soil borings and groundwater samples from existing wells. This type of information is typically required to better define the extent and nature and transport characteristics of contamination in groundwater. Without determining if there is a risk to the environment and where it occurs, theta da theta da data collection would seem superfluous and inconsistent with the objectives described in the document and reiterated above. Furthermore, a proposal to do a human health risk assessment is described in some instances in the document (e.g., page 1-4 and 3-3) while elsewhere in the document only the ecological risk assessment is noted (e.g. Site objectives, page 3-1, and page 1-3).	Options listed on page 3-4 include three categories not two. They are (1) no treatment (2) limited action and (3) pilot/treatability study/remedial alternatives for the contaminants of concern. A further definition of the alternative development process is contained in Section 3.2.3.3 and is projected to be the focus of Phase III.
The inconsistency in the definition of the objectives is reflected in the description of potential remedial actions outlined on page 3-4 where the only action presented (other than no action) is long-term groundwater monitoring to measure the natural biodegradation of the contaminant plume and determine its long-term persistence in the groundwater system. The utility of this as a "remedial action" is questioned.	
(2)	(2)
Table 2-7. The values in the table should beverified with the EPA biologist and the criteriashould indicate either fresh or marineenvironment.	W/O Dennis Burton. Table 2-7 is changed to provide fresh water aquatic toxicity criteria

.

FILE COMMENTI EPA/(HENRY)

1

* 0

. .

EPA COMMENTS	REPLY
(3)	(3)
Table 2-8. The analytes should include CSM degradation products. Additionally, the purging stabilization parameters should be consistent with those used in the SOPs relevant to other portions of APG. The timing of water elevation measurements and groundwater sampling events should be dependent on any tidal cycle influences.	Table 2-8/page 3-8. The analytes do include CSM degradation products as noted under the DQ for chemical data. (See discussion under the columns for Hydrogeologic Investigation, Sediment Investigation, Surface Soil and Soil Boring Investigation and Biological/Ecological Investigation. Additional details can be found in Section 3.2.14 of this plan and Section 4.4 of the Draft Field Sampling Plan. Section 3.2.14 details the specific degradation products which will be grouped. 1.4 Dithiane has been added. Chlorides and fluorides are on the list of analytes for groundwater parameters. As for the timing of measurements and sampling, a 24-hour groundwater flow metering of well 33-B and B.1 will help determine the nature of any tidal influences. Periods of lesser duration will be flowmetered in the shallow wells. WES SOPs will be used.
(4)	(4)
Page 3-3. It is stated here that it is critical to understand the physical geomorphology of the surficial aquifer because the DNAPLs will rest upon an impermeable stratum such as bedrock or clay. This is not strictly tab; the DNAPLs will actually move until reaching a relatively less permeable layer and until sufficient head exceeds the pore entry pressure in the material breakthrough will not occur. Therefore, it is important to note that the layer limiting DNAPL movement may not actually be the hydrologic confining clay unit.	The clay aquitard underlying the surficial aquifer is approximately 88 feet thick which could minimize DNAPL gravitational movement. There is no current evidence that sufficient head exists to exceed pore entry pressure into the aquitard. The aquifer underlying the aquitard exhibits positive head in relation to the overlying strata. The clay aquitard appears to be regionally significant and appears to be the most significant hydrologic border.
(5)	(5)
Page 3-8. Groundwater analysis should include 1,4 dithiane, fluorides and chlorides.	See response to comment Table 2-8.

FILE COMMENTI EPAVHENRY)

)

•

)

•

•

EPA COMMENTS	REPLY
(6)	(6)
Page 3-9. Criteria should be included in the soil boring section for drilling to cease if DNAPLs are encountered in the subsurface	In the soil boring section, the following criteria will be added:
	A sample will be taken just above the water table, except if a photionization device detects a hit (hot spot) at a point before the top of the water table. In this case, the sample will be taken for analysis and the boring will be properly abandoned at that point.
(7)	(7)
Page 3-11. The timing of groundwater flow measurements should be based on tidal cycle influences derived from the 24 hour flow meter testing.	Refer to response to Table 2-8.
(8)	(8)
Page 3-14. It is stated in Section 3.2.3.2. that a limited action alternative will include monitoring of groundwater to assure that further environmental degradation has not occurred. It should be noted that monitoring groundwater does not assure that further degradation of the environment does not occur; only an action, natural or manmade, acting upon the contamination can assure this.	Page 3-14. "To assure that further environmental degradation has not occurred" will be stricken.
(9)	(9)
Page 3-20. References regarding the first paragraph should be provided or the paragraph should be omitted. The statements appear to be a personal opinion of the author.	Page 3-20 paragraph will be deleted.
(10)	(10)
Appendix C. The proposed flowmeter logging program is missing pages.	Appendix C. There are no missing pages. This description was taken out of a letter contract with contains other information not relevant to the specific technical aspects of the flowmeter study.

FILE & COMMENTI EPA/(HENRY)

È.

-

EPA COMMENTS	REPLY				
Draft Field Sampling Plan					
(1)	(1)				
This document does not reflect the SOPs used sitewide at APG and should be modified to do so.	The Draft Final Beach Point Field Sampling Plan reflects WES SOPs.				
Draft Health and Safety Plan					
(1)	(1)				
Insofar as this plan addresses groundwater sampling (Section 2.1.1), it should be modified to reflect the APG SOPs.	This plan will follow WES SOPs.				

· ·

FILE COMMENTI EPA/(HENP-1)

.

.

Focused Feasibility Study

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. (JEG) has been contracted by Environmental Management Operations (EMO)¹ to develop a Focused Feasibility Study (FFS) for Beach Point in the Edgewood Area of Aberdeen Proving Ground (APG-EA).⁷ This task has been performed under the provisions of Master Agreement 071914-A-D7, Task Order 142133, Supplemental Number 8 and under the purview of the U.S. Army, EPA Region III, and the Maryland Department of Environment.

Beach Point is a peninsula located immediately adjacent to the mouth of Kings Creek, a major tributary to the Bush River that drains the majority of chemical storage and research and development areas at APG. As the former location of propellant, smoke and polytechnic testing activities, as well as chemical-protective clothing-impregnating operations, the site is known or suspected to be contaminated with various industrial solvents and military-related compounds. Contaminants at the site may be impacting water quality and aquatic life in nearby Kings Creek and near-shore areas of Bush River. It should be noted that this study will deal with the surficial aquifer at Beach Point, which is a brackish aquifer. The deeper aquifers will be addressed in the Canal Creek Remedial Investigation Feasibility Study (RI/FS).

This work plan develops a framework for a phased environmental investigation at Beach Point that will utilize a risk-based approach. The overall goals of the investigation will be: (1) to determine the nature and distribution of contamination at the site (and to differentiate between site-related contamination and naturally-occurring background levels or contributions from other sources); (2) to evaluate whether human or environmental impact are potentially or actually occurring as a result of site-related contaminations; and (3) to determine whether remedial actions are necessary to mitigate these effects. The major objectives of the work plan in achieving these overall goals are to:

¹EMO is operated for the U.S. Department of Energy by Battelle Memorial Institute.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Provide a complete background characterization of Beach Point Test Site, including physical characteristics and environmental setting; operations and disposal history; summary of previous investigations; and contamination assessment;
- Perform a preliminary contamination assessment related to groundwater, surface water and other types of contamination detected at Beach Point through previous studies, focusing on identifying contaminants, exposure pathways, and human and environmental receptors of potential concern.
- Develop an environmental sampling program, including specific biological tests as well as groundwater, soil, and sediment sampling, to address data gaps and provide the basis for conducting a detailed risk assessment and feasibility study.

At the direction of the APG-Department of Safety, Health and Environment, the project has been separated into three work phases to allow for data evaluation and risk analysis within Phase I to determine the need for further study and development of remedial alternatives. Phase I of the project consists of an aerial photography investigation, surface/marine geophysical surveys, a flowmeter logging program, sampling of surface and subsurface soils, and analysis of chemical groundwater data, generated through a separate Canal Creek Groundwater Monitoring Program.

Tasks described for Phase II of the FFS will be performed upon evaluation of data needs. subsequent to completion of the Phase I tasks. Phase II investigations include installation of additional groundwater monitoring wells, sampling of the new and previously existing monitoring wells, a flowmeter logging program, downhole geophysics of new monitoring wells (and one previously existing well) using a gamma ray survey and possible soil gas surveys.

Phase III tasks, which include the evaluation of remedial alternatives, may be performed after Phase II and at any point, thereafter, if it is determined that contamination found in the Beach Point Test Site warrants treatment.

The tasks performed by JEG will run concurrently and in cooperation with other studies being performed by a variety of other consultants. These include; a risk assessment (ICF Kaiser Engineers), biomonitoring (University of Maryland Agricultural Experiment Station), and geophysical surveys (Argonne National Labs). The results of these efforts will be included in the FFS.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

In addition to a work plan which includes a technical approach to conducting the Focused Feasibility Study, companion documents include the Field Sampling Plan, the Quality Assurance Project Plan, and the Health and Safety Plan. These plans were developed from applicable information contained in plans prepared for similar work at APG and other military installations and modified for site specific considerations. Procedures detailed in each of these documents will be used while performing the activities outlined for the FFS at Beach Point.

The Field Sampling Plan describes the technical approach that will be used to conduct field work for the project.

The Quality Assurance Project Plan delineates the purpose, policies, Standard Operating Procedures, and organization of the Quality Assurance Program that will be used to establish the integrity of APG-EA project activities.

The Health and Safety Plan delineates policies and procedures that will be used to ensure worker health and safety throughout project activities at Beach Point.

The background information presented in this work plan was gathered primarily from unpublished data, from previous investigations performed at Beach Point by the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Water Resources Division, and from the Edgewood Area RCRA Facility Assessment and other studies conducted by the U.S. Army Environmental Health Agency (USAEHA). The guiding document in this work plan is the unpublished USGS Canal Creek Hydrogeologic Assessment (HGA) dated April 1992 (Final Draft). This work plan is based on US EPA RI/FS Work Plan Guidance.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Sec	Pag	le
	EX	ECUTIVE SUMMARY	
	AC	RONYMS	
	1.0	INTRODUCTION 1-	•1
	1.1	EVOLUTION OF WORK PLAN	·2
	1.2	ELEMENTS OF THE FFS 1- 1.2.1 Scoping Documents 1- 1.2.1.1 Field Sampling Plan 1- 1.2.1.2 Quality Assurance Project Plan 1- 1.2.1.3 Health and Safety Plan 1- 1.2.2 Supporting Consultants and Subcontractors 1- 1.2.2.1 Supporting Consultants 1- 1.2.2.2 Subcontractors 1-	33334444
•	2.0	RELEVANT EXISTING INFORMATION 2-	1
•	2.1	INSTALLATION REGIONAL SETTING - EDGEWOOD AREA, APG 2-	1
	2.2	HISTORICAL PAST INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP) STUDIES - EA 2.2.1 Previous investigative Studies 2.2.2 Preliminary Base Line Risk Assessment 2.2.3 USGS Caual Creek Study 2.2.4 USAEHA Edgewood Area Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Facility Assessment (RFA) 2.2.5 USAEHA Assessment of Surface Waters, Edgewood Area 2.2.6 USAEHA Sediment Analysis — Aberdeen and Edgewood Areas 2.2.7 USAEHA Biological Survey for Canal, Kings, and Watson Creeks	6 6 6 7 8 8 9 0
	2.3	SITE ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING — Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA 2-1 2.3.1 Suspected Contaminant Sources 2-1 2.3.1.1 Clothing-impregnating Operations 2-1 2.3.1.2 Rocket Fuel Testing 2-1 2.3.1.3 Pyrotechnic Testing 2-1 2.3.1.4 Other Beach Point Operations 2-1 2.3.1.5 Edgewood Area Sanitary Wastewater Treatment Plant 2-1 (WWTP) 2-1	1 2 3 5 5 6



FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

S)

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland)

•

•

.

Section Focused Feasibility	Study age
2.3.2 Geology 2.3.3 Groundwater 2.3.3 Groundwater 2.3.4 Surface Water Hydrology 2.3.5 Natural Resources and Habitat 2.3.5 Natural Resources and Habitat	2-16 2-17 2-22 2-23
2.3.6 Preliminary Aerial Photography Analysis	2-24
2.4 HISTORICAL CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENT 2.4.1 Soil 2.4.2 Groundwater 2.4.3 Surface Water	2-26 2-27 2-27 2-35
2.5 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL	2-42
2.6 DATA QUALITY OBJECTIVES 2.6.1 Data Uses 2.6.1.1 Site Characterization 2.6.1.2 Ecological Risk Assessment and ARAR Evaluation 2.6.1.3 Remedial Alternatives 2.6.2 Analytical Data Quality Levels 2.6.3 Data Quality Indicators (DQIs) 2.6.4 Specifying Limits of Uncertainty and Optimizing Design for Obtaining Data	2-46 2-47 2-47 2-51 2-51 2-52 2-53 2-54
2.7 APPLICABLE OR RELEVANT AND APPROPRIATE REQUIREMENTS (ARARs)	2-54
2.7.1 Purpose	2-54
2.7.2 Chemical-Specific ARARs and TBCs	2-57
2.7.3 Location-specific ARARs	2-61
2.7.4 Action-specific ARARs	2-62
2.7.5 Other Potential Requirements	2-63
	6-0 3
3.0 BEACH POINT FOCUSED FEASIBILITY STUDY	3-1
3.1 SITE OBJECTIVES	3-1
3.2 FIELD INVESTIGATION/SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES 3.2.1 Phase Investigations 3.2.1.1 Aerial Photography 3.2.1.2 Surface/Marine Geophysics 3.2.1.3 Flowmeter Logging Program 3.2.1.4 Groundwater Analysis 3.2.1.5 Surface Soil Sampling 3.2.1.6 Soil Borings 3.2.1.7 Sediment Sampling 3.2.1.8 Risk Assessment	3-4 3-7 3-7 3-8 3-8 3-9 3-9 3-10

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Section			Foo	useo] F	9asil	oility	Study Page
	3.2.2	Phase II Investigations				•••		3-10
		3.2.2.1 Well installations/Groundwater Monitoring			••	• • •		3-11
		3.2.2.2 Flowmeter Logging Program				• • •		3-12
		3.2.2.3 Downhole Geophysics			••	• • •		3-12
		3.2.2.4 Soil Gas Survey(s)			••	• • •		3-12
	3.2.3	Phase III — Development and Screening of Alternatives				• • •		3-13
		3.2.3.1 No Action Alternative				• • •		3-14
		3.2.3.2 Limited Action Alternative			• •	• • •	• •	3-14
		3.2.3.3 Alternative Development Process				• • •		3-14
		3.2.3.4 Detailed Analysis of Alternatives				• • •	• •	3-16
		3.2.3.5 Acceptability			••	• • •	•	3-19
		3.2.3.6 Comparative Analysis				• • •	•	3-19
		3.2.3.7 Potential Remedial Alternatives	• • • •		• •	•••	•	3-19
4.0 REPO	RTING	REQUIREMENTS	• • • • •		••	•••	•••	4-1
4.1 MONT	HLY P		•••		••	• • •	••	4-1

REFERENCES

GLOSSARY

FIGURES

2.1.	Aberdeen Proving Ground - Edgewood Area Study Locations
2-2.	Geologic Map - Canal Creek/Beach Point - EA
2-3.	Probable Contamination Source Areas on Beach Point
2-4.	Beach Point Region Fence Diagram
2-5.	Beach Point Local Fence Diagram
2-6.	Hydrogeological Profile at Beach Point
2.7.	USGS Sampling Locations at Beach Point 2-28
2-8.	Locations of Proposed Samples at Beach Point
2-9.	Conceptual Model Cross Section
2-10.	Contaminant Migration Pathways
3-1.	FFS Activities
3-2.	Work Plan Schedule
5-1.	Project Management Organization 5-2

TABLES

2-1.	Synoptic Water-Level Measurements from Wells in the Beach Point Test Site .	2-22
2-2.	Inorganic Chemical Data for Soil Samples Collected in the Beach Point Test Site	2-29
2-3.	Organic Chemical Data for Soil Samples Collected in the Beach Point Test Site	2-30
2-4.	Water Quality Parameters and Major Ion Concentrations Detected in	
	Surface Water in the Beach Point Test Site, September 1988 and June 1989	2-36

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

BPPWP.FS

•

b

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

•

.

.

D

Section	rocused reasibility	Page
2-5.	Metal Concentrations Detected in Surface Water in the Beach Point Test	
	Site, September 1988 and June 1989	2-38
2-6.	Concentrations of Volatile Organic Contaminants Detected in Surface Water	
	in the Beach Point Test Site, September 1988 and June 1989	2-39
2-7.	Chemicals of Concern (COCs)	2-43
2-8.	Data Quality Objectives	2-48
2-9.	Chemical-Specific ARARs for Protection of Aquatic Life	2-59
2-10.	Chemical-Specific ARARs for Protection of Human Health	2-60
3-1.	Phase I Sampling Regime	3-5
3-2.	Format for Pilot-Scale Work Plan	3-15

APPENDICES

Appendix A --- Data from Groundwater Monitoring Wells in Beach Point Area

Appendix B — Argonne National Laboratory Draft Geophysics Work Plan

Appendix C — K-V Associates Flowmeter Logging Program

Appendix D — ICF Risk Assessment Plan

Appendix E - University of Maryland Correspondence

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 1 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 1 Of 5

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

This Focused Feasibility Study (FFS) work plan has been prepared by the Jacobs Engineering Group (JEG) to address areas of known groundwater contamination and sediment contamination at Beach Point, located in the Edgewood Area of Aberdeen Proving Ground (APG), MD. The work plan has been prepared at the request of Battelle Memorial Institute Environmental Management Operations (EMO) and Aberdeen Proving Ground Directorate of Safety, Health, and Environment (APG-DSHE) under Contract DE-AC06-76RL01830 and Master Agreement 071914-A-D7 Task Order No. 142133, Supplement 8.

Beach Point is a peninsula located immediately adjacent to the mouth of Kings Creek. Kings Creek is a major tributary to the Bush River that drains the majority of chemical storage and research and development areas at APG. As the former location of propellant, smoke, and pyrotechnic testing activities, as well as chemical-protective clothingimpregnating operations, the site is known or suspected to be contaminated with various industrial solvents and military-related compounds. Contaminants from the site may be impacting water quality and aquatic life in nearby Kings Creek and near-shore areas of the Bush River. It should be noted that this study will deal only with the surficial aquifer at Beach Point which is brackish. The deeper aquifers will be addressed in the Canal Creek Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS).

The purpose of this work plan is to develop a framework for a phased environmental investigation at Beach Point that will utilize a risk-based approach. The overall goals of the investigation will be: (1) to determine the nature and distribution of contamination at the site (and to differentiate between site-related contamination and naturally-occurring background levels or contributions from other sources); (2) to evaluate whether human or environmental impacts are potentially or actually occurring as a result of site-related contamination; and (3) to determine whether remedial actions are necessary to mitigate these effects. The major objectives of the work plan in achieving these overall goals are:

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 2 Of 5

......

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Provide a complete background characterization of Beach Point Test Site, including physical characteristics and environmental setting; operations and disposal history; summary of previous investigations; and contamination assessment;
- Perform a preliminary contamination assessment related to groundwater, surface water, and other types of contamination detected at Beach Point through previous studies, focusing on identifying contaminants, exposure pathways, and human and environmental receptors of potential concern;
- Develop an environmental sampling program, including specific biological tests as well as groundwater, soil, and sediment sampling, to address data gaps and provide the basis for conducting a detailed risk assessment and feasibility study.

The background information presented in this work plan was gathered primarily from unpublished data, from previous investigations performed at Beach Point by the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Water Resources Division office in Towson, MD, and from the Edgewood Area RCRA Facility Assessment (RFA) and other studies conducted by the U.S. Army Environmental Health Agency (USAEHA). The guiding document in this work plan is the unpublished USGS Canal Creek Hydrogeologic Assessment (HGA) dated April 1992 (Final Draft). This work plan is based on EPA RI/FS work plan guidance.

This work will run concurrently and in cooperation with other studies being performed by a variety of other consultants. These include a risk assessment [ICF Kaiser Engineers (ICF)], biomonitoring [University of Maryland Agricultural Experiment Station (UM)], and geophysical surveys [Argonne National Lab (ANL)]. The results of these efforts will be included in the FFS.

1.1 EVOLUTION OF WORK PLAN

Under the guidance and direction of APG-DSHE this work plan was developed as a three phase approach. The first phase (Phase I) will include sediment sampling, groundwater sampling, soil boring, and seismic surveys, in conjunction with chemical and biological assays. The results of these surveys and sampling events will be supplied to ICF for development of a risk assessment of the Beach Point site, based primarily on ecological

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 1 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 3 of 5

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

preliminary remediation goals (PRGs). Initiation and conduct of Phases II and III will be dependent on the results of this risk assessment and the regulatory review conducted by the appropriate state and federal agencies. However, this work plan also outlines and describes Phases II and III, including relevant standard operating procedures (SOPs), in anticipation of any possible further site definition or remedial alternatives analysis which may be required. All three FFS phases are discussed in detail in Section 3.0 of this work plan.

1.2 ELEMENTS OF THE FFS

1.2.1 Scoping Documents

Supporting documentation for the implementation of the field phase of the Beach Point FFS Work Plan and the final data analysis, Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) and reporting is included with the Project Work Plan. It includes three documents: a Field Sampling Plan (FSP), a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP), and a Health and Safety Plan (HASP).

1.2.1.1 <u>Field Sampling Plan</u>. The FSP presents the approach for conducting the sampling program, geophysical and soil gas surveys, and soil boring/monitoring well installations. It is based on historical sampling and analysis data and specifically designated analytes. The plan also address sample handling, documentation and sampling. All initial phase field programs and surveys will be identified and detailed.

1.2.1.2 Quality Assurance Project Plan. The QAPP has been prepared in order to support the conduct of the FSP for the FFS at Beach Point. The QAPP will satisfy all quality assurance requirements of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Region III and APG-DSHE.

E

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 1 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 4 Of 5

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

1.2.1.3 <u>Health and Satety Plan</u>. The HASP is a comprehensive plan to support the implementation of the FSP at Beach Point. The HASP will satisfy all health and safety information and procedures required by EPA Region III and APG-DSHE.

1.2.2 Supporting Consultants and Subcontractors

1.2.2.1 Supporting Consultants.

<u>Surface Geophysics</u> -- Argonne National Laboratory will recommend and supply all appropriate surface geophysical surveys (e.g., seismic, EM, etc.) for the FFS at Beach Point.

<u>Biological Assessment</u> — The University of Maryland will provide the bioassessment of the groundwater and sediment at Beach Point.

<u>Risk Assessment</u> — ICF will provide a risk assessment for groundwater from the Beach Point surficial aquifer.

1.2.2.2 Subcontractors. JEG will be using subcontractors for the following

activities:

<u>UXO Surveys</u> — UXO surveys will be conducted by a qualified company in connection with any subsurface field activities (e.g., soil sampling, drilling, etc.) associated with the Beach Point FFS.

Land Surveying — A land surveying company will provide a Maryland certified surveyor for any validation of well installation locations and elevation data (as needed).

<u>Analytical Services</u> — A subcontract laboratory will provide analytical services for all groundwater, surface water, soil, and sediment samples. The laboratory will be a participant in EPA's Contract Laboratory Program and follow the analytical methods identified in the Quality Assurance Project Plan. The data will be provided as Level IV data and suitable for entry into the Installation Restoration Data Management Information System.

<u>Downhole Geophysical Logging</u> — The <u>peophysical</u> company will provide support for all downhole geophysical requirements (e.g., gamma ray, velocity log, etc.).

<u>Drilling</u> — The contractor will provide all drilling support and provide an on-site Maryland licensed driller. The expected activities are soil borings and groundwater monitoring well installation.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

4 د

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 5 Of 5

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

I

1

<u>Pilot Treatment Study</u> — The selected company (if needed) will provide all support, equipment and maintenance over the prescribed time period and, after completing the study, provide a detailed treatability report of the activity.

١.

-

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

2.1 INSTALLATION REGIONAL SETTING - EDGEWOOD AREA, APG**

This section provides the general regional description of APG-EA. A more detailed description of the Beach Point study area is presented in Section 2.3. Figure 2-1 identifies APG-EA and local study areas.

<u>Climate</u>. The climate of the APG area is temperate and somewhat humid. The climate is moderated by the Chesapeake Bay, with milder winters than locations farther inland. The mean annual precipitation is 45 inches and is fairly uniformly distributed throughout the year. The mean annual temperature is approximately 54°F.

<u>Physiography, Topography, and Surface Drainage</u>. APG lies within the Coastal Plain physiographic province. The land surface of the Coastal Plain is characterized by low hills, shallow valleys, and flat plains. Elevations within the main Aberdeen and Edgewood areas of APG range from sea level to approximately 60 feet above sea level. Soils vary in thickness and soil types range from silty sands to clays. Surface drainage is to the Chesapeake Bay, the Bush or Gunpowder River estuaries, or to creeks which discharge to these water bodies.

<u>Regional Geology</u>. APG lies on coastal plain sediments (Figure 2-2) that form a series of concentric bands sub-parallel to the Fall Line which lies just north of the installation. The Fall Line is the boundary between old resistant crystalline rocks of the Piedmont Plateau and the younger, softer sediments of the Coastal Plain. The Coastal Plain sediments are of Cretaceous and Quaternary ages and consist of unconsolidated beds of clay, silt, sand, and occasional gravel lenses. The sediments dip southeasterly, generally at an angle of less than one degree, and thicken to several hundred feet under the eastern shore of Chesapeake Bay. The crystalline rocks which underlie the Coastal Plain sediments are Precambrian to lower Paleozoic in age and consist chiefly of schist, gneiss, gabbro,

** This information has been derived from the RFA, 1986.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN







Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 4 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

granite, marble, and quartzite. The surface of this crystalline basement rock also dips to the southeast at an angle of less than one degree [Bennett and Meyer, 1952; Dingman et al., 1956; Southwick and Owens, 1969].

The geologic formations that outcrop within APG, from oldest to youngest, are the Potomac Group, Talbot Formation, and recent alluvium. The Potomac Group is Cretaceous in age and is subdivided into the Patuxent, Arundel, and Patapsco Formations. The Talbot Formation (the Talbot may be absent at Beach Point) is Pleistocene in age and occupies the higher ground, while the alluvial deposits are recent in age and occur at the lower elevations.

The Potomac Group sediments are continental in origin and were deposited in the floodplain of rivers, lakes, and swamps. The lowest member, the Patuxent, consists generally of light gray to orange, moderately sorted, angular to sub-rounded sands with gray silt and clay beds. The silt and clay can constitute over 50 percent of the material in localized areas. The clays are usually white but may be brown, red, or purple. Gravel occurs mostly in abandoned channels and may be cemented by iron oxide. The Arundel Clay overlies the Patuxent and is primarily a red and brown clay with iron oxide stains. Where iron stains are absent, the colors are gray to dark gray. Sand lenses along with thin seams of cemented sandstone also occur. The uppermost sediments of the Potomac Group, the Patapsco Formation, are somewhat similar to the Patuxent Formation. The noticeable difference is that the Patuxent contains more sand and gravel and the Patapsco is marked by a higher percentage of clay. The Patapsco sediments are composed essentially of red, brown, white, or gray gravel, sand, sandy clay, and clay. Crossbedding is common. Most beds are lenticular and change rapidly in character over short distances. The sands are fine-to-medium grained and sub-rounded with a minor amount of gravel.

The Taibot Formation and recent alluvium cap the Cretaceous sediments throughout most of APG. The Taibot is the youngest of five terraces and originally consisted of a series of clays, silts, sands, and gravels. the recent alluvium consists of silts, clays, and sands which border the drainage-ways and occupy the topographic lows.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section. 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 5 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

<u>Regional Hydrogeology</u>. The principal water bearing formation in the Coastal Plan is the Patuxent Formation. The Patapsco Formation also contains beds of sand and gravel which yield large quantities of water. The Arundel Clay is considered to be a confining layer, but it can yield small quantities of water for domestic supplies. Clear differentiation of these Potomac Group formations in Harford County is reportedly difficult [Southwick and Owens, 1969]. The Pleistocene age deposits can yield significant quantities of water where the sand and gravel beds are thick. The Potomac Group and the Pleistocene age formations all provide, or have provided, water for usage on APG. The groundwater resources of Harford County are discussed in Nutter [1977], and Nutter and Smigaj [1975].

<u>Surface Water Usage</u>. The primary source of water for APG-EA has been from surface water. The system which has supplied potable water to the area is the Van Bibber system. During World War II (WW II) a system was also used which supplied water from the Bush River for use in production facilities.

<u>Groundwater Usage</u>. Groundwater has been a secondary source of water, and wells have been used to supply water when needs could not be satisfied by surface water supplies. The principal water-bearing unit on a regional basis is the Patuxent Formation, which yields significant quantities of water for domestic and municipal supply wells. In addition, the Patapsco Formation is considered an important aquifer at some locations where coarsegrained sand and gravel beds are present. However, neither of these units is used for water supply within APG-EA. Furthermore, significant water-bearing units of these formations are found at considerable depth throughout much of the installation, and thus are protected from surface contamination by multiple overlying confining beds. Although surface water has always been the predominant source of water on the installation, some water supply wells have been completed at depths greater than 100 feet; none of these wells (located within the Canal Creek industrial area and test range areas of Gunpowder Neck) are currently used for potable water supply, and most have been abandoned. There are no operating production wells in the Beach Point Test Site.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 6 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

2.2 HISTORICAL PAST INSTALLATION RESTORATION PROGRAM (IRP) STUDIES - EA

2.2.1 Previous Investigative Studies

Previous investigations and studies that have addressed the Beach Point Test Site include the United States Geological Survey (USGS) Canal Creek study and several investigations by United States Army Environmental Hygiene Agency (USAEHA). These studies are described in the following subsections. Concentrations of contaminants of concern (COCs) are discussed in more detail in Section 2.4.

2.2.2 Preliminary Base Line Risk Assessment

A preliminary baseline risk assessment (ICF; Durda and others, 1991) was performed between October 1989 and January 1991 for eight priority areas at APG, one of which was the Canal Creek area. The risk assessments provide information on potential adverse effects on humans and wildlife from chemical contamination at these sites. The assessments, which are considered preliminary because of data limitations, are most useful for identifying the chemicals of concern, exposure pathways, and populations of greatest potential concern for each area. Data collected by the USGS (1986 to 1989) were used for this risk assessment, alc; g with some previously referenced data. For the Canal Creek area, ICF concludes (1) that it is not possible to fully evaluate potential human health risks with the available data, (2) that acute and chronic toxicity from contaminants in Canal Creek probably has affected the composition and structure of the resident aquatic communities, and (3) that terrestrial wildlife feeding in Canal Creek appear to be at risk from dietary exposure to heavy metals.

2.2.3 USGS Canal Creek Study

The USGS Canal Creek study, conducted from 1986 to 1989, focused mainly on the East and West Branches of Canal Creek, but included some work at Beach Point and the Kings Creek/Bush River area. USGS installed and sampled two well clusters, with a total of six

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BPPWP.FFB

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 7 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

groundwater monitoring wells on or near Beach Point. USGS also collected a limited number of soil samples. In addition, eight surface water sampling stations were established along the Beach Point shoreline (four stations each in the Bush River and Kings Creek), along with five stations in upstream areas of Kings Creek. These surface water locations were sampled twice (September 1988 and June 1989).

Groundwater and surface water samples collected in the USGS study were analyzed for volatile organic compounds (VOCs), metals and other inorganic water quality parameters, and semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs). Soil samples were also analyzed for VOCs, SVOCs, and selected metals. The results of USGS's investigation are contained in several reports, including the following:

- Hydrogeology of the Canal Creek Area, Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD; USGS Water-Resources Investigations Report 89-4021; same as draft final HGA.
- Inorganic and Organic Groundwater Chemistry in the Canal Creek Area, Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD; USGS Water-Resources Investigations Report 89-4022;
- A series of letter reports (April 1989 and March 1990) from USGS to APG-DSHE, containing unpublished surface water data from sampling conducted at Beach Point, Kings Creek, and Canal Creek; and
- An unpublished USGS Canal Creek HGA* data report dated April 1992 (currently in final draft form April 1992) containing chemical data, soil boring and monitoring well construction data, and hydrogeologic data on Beach Point and the Canal Creek area.

It should be emphasized that the focus of the USGS study was on evaluating the hydrogeology and groundwater chemistry of the Canal Creek area, not Beach Point or Kings Creek. These latter areas were included in the USGS study because of similar geologic conditions (i.e., the surficial and Canal Creek aquifers identified by USGS in the Canal Creek also extend into the Kings Creek area). However, detailed discussions of the local hydrogeology, surface-water hydrology, and groundwater chemistry at Beach Point

* This study was the guiding document for Beach Point FFS Work Plan.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 8 Of 65

)

١

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

are not presented, or are included within other sections of the reports. Nonetheless, these reports represent the most recent and complete studies of groundwater and surface water contamination associated with Beach Point. USGS found that the surficial aquifer at Beach Point was contaminated with 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane and other chlorinated VOCs, and that measurable levels of these substances were present in surface water on both the Kings Creek and Bush River shorelines of the peninsula.

2.2.4 USAEHA Edgewood Area Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Facility Assessment (RFA)

As noted previously, the Edgewood Area RFA (Nemeth, USAEHA, 1989) is a detailed source of information on historical operations at Beach Point and surrounding areas. The RFA did not include environmental sampling at Beach Point, but contains a summary of existing data on SWMUs in the Kings Creek drainage area, including waste types and quantities, contaminant behavior and migration pathways, and recommendations for further study. In addition, the RFA contains detailed information of major processes performed at Edgewood (e.g., clothing impregnating, chemical agent production) and data on the environmental transport and fate of military-unique compounds related to these activities.

2.2.5 USAEHA Assessment of Surface Waters, Edgewood Area

This study (USAEHA Water Quality Biological Study No. 24-0043-78, 1977) was conducted during July 1977 to assess the impact of Edgewood Area domestic, industrial, and chemical point and non-point source discharges to the receiving water bodies and biota. It included 33 sampling sites throughout Edgewood Area, including four locations in Kings Creek. The sampling program included: (1) the collection and analysis of surface water samples for metals, nutrients, general water quality parameters, and cholinesterase inhibitors; (2) sediment sample analyses for metals, nutrients, and pesticides; (3) tissue residue analyses of resident fish and clams from selected sites for metals; and (4) tissue residue analyses of controlled populations of clams that were placed in wire cages at the water column-bottom interface for 10 weeks (again for metals only).

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

BPPWP.FFS
Section: ∠ Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 9 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

The results of this 15-year old study must be treated with caution because of the major changes that have taken place at the installation since the study was completed. The most significant of these changes is that nearly all of the point-source discharges noted at the time of the investigation have been discontinued. Wastewater is now generally handled through the sanitary or industrial sewer systems and treatment plants, and direct discharges from individual operations to nearby surface water bodies have essentially ceased. This situation contrasts sharply with the 1977 scenario described in the report in which 16 separate point-source discharges were identified to Kings Creek from surrounding chemical and ballistics testing and development operations at the time of the USAEHA investigation. This water body currently receives no direct point-source discharges.

Despite these limitations, the study provides valuable historical information on surface water quality and sediment and biota characteristics within Kings Creek. Major findings include severe nutrient overloading to Kings Creek; significant contamination of sediments with silver, mercury, and zinc; and clams, fish, and crabs containing among the highest levels of zinc, mercury, cadmium, and copper found within the installation.

2.2.6 USAEHA Sediment Analysis - Aberdeen and Edgewood Areas

This study (USAEHA Water Quality Engineering Study No. 32-24-0700-87, 1987) was conducted in July 1986 to determine the presence of APG-related contaminants in sediments from receiving water bodies near APG, and to evaluate macroinvertebrate community diversity in these sediments. Sediment samples were collected from 33 locations (16 stations in the Aberdeen Area and 17 stations in the Edgewood Area), including three locations within Kings Creek, and analyzed for nutrients, metals, and pesticides/PCBe. Macroinvertebrate species were also collected and taxonomically classified at all locations.

The study found that samples from Kings Creek, as well as other Edgewood Area sampling locations, contained moderate to high levels of arsenic, chromium, and lead. Several

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 10 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

chlorinated pesticides were present at low levels. PCBs, however, were not detected in samples from Kings Creek. Community diversity in the creek appeared to fall within the range of conditions observed throughout the installation (i.e., no major impacts to the macroinvertebrate community were apparent); however, this aspect of the study was limited in scope and should not be considered definitive.

2.2.7 USAEHA Biological Survey for Canal, Kings, and Watson Creeks

In 1985, USAEHA performed a study to determine the presence and biological effects of priority pollutants in water, sediment, fish, and rnacroinvertebrates in Canal, Kings, and Watson Creeks (USAEHA Water Quality Biological Study No. 32-24-0404-86, 1985). Three stations were established in each of the creeks (i.e., total of nine sampling locations), and a four-phase sampling program encompassing surface water, sediment, fish, and benthic invertebrates was implemented. The program included four rounds of surface water sampling for VOCs, SVOCs, metals, pesticides/PCBs, and nutrients; two rounds of sediment sampling for metals and pesticides/PCBs; one round of fish tissue residue analyses for metals and pesticides/PCBs; and one round of macroinvertebrate sampling for species diversity.

Results for Kings Creek (including one station at the mouth of the creek near Beach Point) indicated contamination with SVOCs (phthalates, dinitrotoluene) and metals (most notably copper, lead, and zinc) in surface water; metals, pesticides, and N-chloro-bis(2,4,6 trichloroephenyl)urea contamination in sediments; and chlordane, DDT, PCBs, mercury, selenium, and zinc contamination in fish tissues. Macroinvertebrate community diversity was considered intermediate to poor; however, diversity indices showed downstream improvement from the headwaters area of Kings Creek to the Beach Point Test Site.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 11 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

2.3 SITE ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING - Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA

This section presents a description of the physical and environmental setting at Beach Point; provides a brief operations and disposal history for the site; and is followed by a historical contamination assessment based on existing data.

2.3.1 Suspected Contaminant Sources

As indicated in the summary descriptions that follow, widely varying levels of information are available on these potential solid waste management units (SWMUs), ranging from limited environmental sampling to very limited information on production activities. However, three important factors should be recognized in the context of the Beach Point Investigation: (1) other potential contaminant sources are located in the Kings Creek drainage basin: these sources are addressed in other studies outside the scope of the Beach Point FFS; (2) many of these contaminant sources are facilities that historically discharge wastewater via drainage ditches directly to Kings Creek; and (3) most of those facilities were involved in operations similar to those conducted on Beach Point, including pyrotechnic and smoke testing, chemical agent storage, and ordnance testing. Investigating and addressing these factors is outside the scope of this FFS.

Several testing and production activities that may have contributed to environmental contamination in the Kings Creek/Bush River area were formerly located at Beach Point. These operations included the following major activities (USAEHA, 1989):

- Mobile and fixed-based clothing-impregnating plants were operated at Beach Point during and after World War II; these plants were used to treat clothing with a waxy material that provides resistance to penetration by chemical warfare agents such as mustard. The clothing-impregnating process involved several hazardous solvents as well as the impregnating chemical CC2 (N,N'-dichlorobis(2,4,6-trichlorophenyl)urea) and chlorinated paraftin wax.
- Liquid rocket fuel testing, including the evaluation of fire and vapor suppression methods for these materials, was conducted in the northern area of the point from the early 1960s through the 1970s. Test materials included hydrazine, unsymmetrical dimethylhydrazine (UDMH), red furning nitric acid (RFNA), nitrogen tetroxide, and other propellants and fuels.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 12 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

1

ł

Ł

l

1

 Pyrctechnic testing was performed by the Chemical Research Development Engineering Center (CRCEC) Research Directorate from the post-World War II period until about 1970; this testing included work with grenades and pots filled with obscurant (i.e., white) smoke, with limited testing of colored smokes. Fog oil was also used extensively in smoke and pyrotechnic testing at Beach Point.

In addition to these major operations, Beach Point was also used for small-scale storage of lethal agents (G-agents) during the 1950s, and was used as a firing position for testing of 4.2-inch mortars in the 1940s. However, neither of these activities is considered to be of major environmental significance compared to the clothing-impregnating, pyrotechnic, and rocket-fuel testing (USAEHA, 1989).

More detailed descriptions of these potential waste-generating operations, including information on the possible types and quantities of waste materials as well as waste storage and disposal methods, are described in the following subsections. (NOTE: The information included in the remainder of this section has been summarized from the Edgewood Area RFA [Nemeth, USAEHA, 1989]).

2.3.1.1 <u>Clothing-Impregnating Operations</u>. Beginning in 1943, Beach Point was the site for pilot-scale testing and full-scale operation of mobile clothing-impregnating operations. Operations at the point included both the M1 (solvent-based) and M2 (water-based) processes, using the impregnate CC2 (N,N-dichloro-bis(2,4,6-trichlorophenyl)urea). These plants were located in the central portion of the Beach Point peninsula.

Both the water-based and solvent-based processes utilized CC2 and chlorinated paraffin waxes, as well as 1500 to 1800 pounds of chlorobenzene over the period of operation 1943 to 1947. The solvent-based process was also estimated to have used approximately 100,000 pounds of 1,1,2,2-tetrachlorethane during this period (USAEHA, 1989). Other chemicals that may have been used in the impregnating processes include zinc oxide and the solvents polyvinyl alcohol and *,2-

JE

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 13 of 65

I

L

I.

1

1

Î

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

dichloroethane. Reports also indicate that carbon tetrachloride, paraformaldehyde, formaldehyde, tetrachloroethylene, kerosene, dichloromethylhydantoin, and chlorinated kerosene may have been used in pilot-scale or developmental clothing impregnating processes (USAEHA, 1989).

Losses of tetrachloroethane, chlorobenzene, impregnate materials, and other solvents (if used) may have occurred through volatilization, spillage, or leakage, as 'vell as direct discharge of off-specification batches, dirty or spent solvents, or contaminated materials to Kings Creek and/or the Bush River. Historical aerial photographs indicate the presence of several small pits near the clothingimpregnating plants that were probably used for disposal of liquid wastes (USAEHA, 1989). In addition, historical evidence suggests that wastewater from the plants was most likely discharged directly to nearby surface water bodies without treatment.

2.3.1.2 Rocket Fuel Testing. Testing to evaluate fire and vapor suppression methods for liquid rocket fuels was performed in the northern portion of Beach Point (see Figure 2-3) from the early 1960s through the 1970s. Although testing appears to have been varied and extensive, a typical procedure involved the mixing of the hypergolic propellants, such as hydrazine, UDMH, RFNA, and nitrogen tetroxide, in a large burn pan (16 feet square by 1 foot deep) to form a fireball, and attempting to suppress the flame with water deluge or mist (USAEHA, 1989). There is also evidence to suggest that "halon"-type materials (i.e., chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs)) were used as fire suppressants in some tests. As an example of typical operations, during the period 1963 to 1965, a series of 47 tests were performed, using approximately 10,000 pounds of fuel and oxidizers. Although definitive information regarding wastewater handling at the rocket fuel testing area is not available, it appears that wastewater from tests was either discharged directly to the Bush River or Kings Creek, or allowed to run off onto the ground surface. Either method would have resulted in potential contamination of surface water, sediment, and possibly groundwater with propellant residues and other waste materials.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN





ł

1

1

Ì.

Ł

L

ſ

ł

1

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

In addition to rocket fuel testing, small quantities of explosive mixtures and compounds were tested in the northern area of Beach Point during the 1970s (McKown, personal communication). Test materials may have included trinitrotoluene (TNT), tetryl, RDX, HMX, and other explosive/propellant compounds.

2.3.1.3 Pyrotechnic Testing. As noted, pyrotechnic and smoke testing was performed at Beach Point by CRDEC from the 1940s to about 1970. These tests were performed in test chambers in Buildings E3861, E3871, E3870 as well as at outdoor locations in the southern portion of the peninsula (Figure 2-3). The primary materials tested were white obscurant smokes (e.g., HC) in grenades and pots, and fog oil. Other pyrotechnic materials (e.g., FS, WP) also may have been tested, but records on the types and quantities that may have been tested are not available. Materials associated with pyrotechnic testing often include aluminum, magnesium, zinc, lead, and titanium, as well as petroleum compounds, hexachloroethane, and other organic compounds.

2.3.1.4 <u>Other Beach Point Operations</u>. Additional environmentally significant activities that have been conducted at Beach Point include the storage of small quantities of lethal chemical agents (G-agents) during the 1950s, and test firing of 4.2-inch mortars during the 1940s. The nerve agents were reportedly stored in Building E3990 or another small structure near the northern end of the peninsula, and there is no evidence to suggest that any spillage or leakage occurred from this unit. Mortar firing could potentially release small quantities of explosive compounds (including dinitrotoluene, nitrocellulose, dibutylphthalate, and diphenylamine) to the environment. However, the nature of the testing performed at Beach Point (direct firing of loaded munitions) makes significant environmental contamination from these operations unlikely (USAEHA, 1989).



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BPPWP.FFS

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 16 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

2.3.1.5 Edgewood Area Sanitary Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). This wastewater plant has operated since 1942, originally as a primary treatment plant and currently as a secondary treatment trickling-filter plant with a design capacity of 3 million gallons per day (MGD). The plant received very high loadings of toxic substances during early operation, especially 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane from production activities during and after World War II. Currently, wastewater containing hazardous substances is pre-treated before discharge to the sanitary system or is diverted to the industrial wastewater treatment plant, and sludge from the WWTP has been determined to be non-hazardous by RCRA testing. The plant discharges directly to the Bush River under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

2.3.2 Geology

APG-EA is underlain by coastal plain sediments consisting of unconsolidated clay, silt, and sand layers with occasional gravel lenses. The coastal plain sediments are several hundred feet thick in the vicinity of the installation, and consist predominantly of the Potomac Group (subdivided into the Patuxent, Arundel, and Patapsco Formations), the Talbot Formation (probably absent at Beach Point), and recent alluvium. Within the Potomac Group, the Patuxent Formation is comprised mostly of medium-grained sand with some silt and clay, while the Arundel Formation is predominantly red to brown clay. The uppermost member of the group, the Patapsco Formation, consists of sand and gravel with subsidiary clay lenses. The younger Talbot Formation (consisting of a terrace sequence of sands, silts, and clays) usually overlies the older Potomac Group sediments, and is more often encountered in upland areas of APG. Recent alluvium is mostly associated with stream channels and other areas of active deposition.

Within the Beach Point study area only the surficial aquifer will be addressed, the lower aquifers will be studied as part of the Canal Creek RI/FS. Surficial sediments consist of a clayey soil to a depth of about four feet, underlain by approximately 60 feet of fine- to

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BPPWP.FFS

Hevision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 17 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

medium-grained, well-sorted sand, interfingered with thin lenses of clay and silty sand and sometimes containing coarse sand and gravel layers (USGS, 1989a). This unit, which appears to be part of the Potomac Group, is underlain by a clay layer identified in the USGS Canal Creek study (1989) as the upper confining unit. This unit was not penetrated at Beach Point, but based on interpretation of boring logs from nearby areas suggest a thickness of approximately 88 feet and thinning in east-southest direction. The upper confining unit may consist of mainly Potomac Group sediments (possibly Arundel Clay). The CC-33B well is the deepest penetrating well in the sufficial aquifer (see Figures 2-4 and 2-5). Beach Point sufficial sediments and clay confining unit appear to dip gently (about 50 feet/mile) to the southeast coast (USGS, 1989).

2.3.3 Groundwater

Groundwater at Beach Point is encountered at shallow depths (e.g., from less than 13 feet to about 16 feet below ground surface in most areas) under unconfined conditions. The water-table aquifer in many areas is hydraulically interconnected to creeks, wetlands, and other surface water features, and is tidally influenced at locations in proximity to the Bush and Gunpowder Rivers and associated tidal creeks/wetlands. Net groundwater flow direction in the water-table aquifer at most locations is toward nearby major water bodies, but tidal effects and the influence of wetlands and smaller water bodies can make groundwater flow patterns locally complex. Gradients are generally flat (reflecting surface topography and fluctuating tidal and seasonal water levels), resulting in relatively slow groundwater flow rates in most areas of the water-table aquifer.

The water-table aquifer at Beach Point appears to be an isolated part of the surficial aquifer identified throughout the Canal Creek area of APG by USGS (1989 and 1992). As noted above, this unit is most likely comprised mainly of sediments associated with the Potomac Group, and consists of fine- to medium-grained sand. Some hydraulic testing (e.g., slug) was performed on wells installed within the Beach Point Test Site (test results not available), but slug tests from other areas of the surficial aquifer within the Canal Creek

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN





Clu





Figure 2-5 Schematic Diagram of Local Geologic Strata and Well Screen Locations at Beach Point 11/28/92 Sand and gravel Clay and silt Surficial Aquifer Aquitard Canal Creek Aquifer Interface location approximate Stratum continues horizontally Grounwater Monitoring Well Screen Location JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. THE NEW YORK AVE, SLITE 1908, WASHINGTON, D.C., M

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 20 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

drainage suggest a hydraulic conductivity of 10 to 50 feet/day (10⁻² to 10⁻³ c,/sec). The confining unit beneath this surficial aquifer appears quite thick (88 feet) and laterally continuous at Beach Point. Therefore, the underlying sand and gravel unit (the Canal Creek aquifer) is not likely to exhibit significant hydraulic interconnection with the water-table aquifer. A generalized hydrogeologic section of the Beach Point Canal Creek area is presented in Figure 2-6. The deeper aquifers at Beach Point will be addressed in the Canal Creek RI/FS.

Very limited water level information from the Beach Point Test Site collected by USGS as part of their Canal Creek study indicates that the water-table aquifer is tidally influenced. It appears that the aquifer may discharge to both Kings Creek and Bush River, depending on the specific location on the Point. Vertical gradients appear to be generally downward from the surficial unit to the Canal Creek aquifer. However, the thickness and continuity of the clay unit make it unlikely that significant vertical groundwater movement (and associated contaminant migration) into the deeper aquifer actually occurs at Beach Point (USGS, 1989). Overall, the water-table groundwater system within Beach Point appears to be characterized by local recharge, short flow paths, and tidal influences (USGS, 1989). Tidal effects result in variable horizontal gradients and possible short-term fluctuations in groundwater flow rates and recharge-discharge relationships.

Quarterly groundwater elevation monitoring performed by USGS from 1988 to 1989 in wells installed at Beach Point (see Table 2-1) indicates relatively constant water levels (within tidal variations) over the year, with little seasonal variation (USGS, unpublished data). This suggests that the surficial aquifer at Beach Point is more strongly influenced by tidal conditions than by recharge from infiltrating precipitation. However, a complete set of short-time water-level measurements that would allow tidal head differences and gradient fluctuations to be quantified is not available.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN



Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 22 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

	Gro	undwitter Elev	ations, in Fee	t Above See L	evel	
Locei Number	Aquifer	08/06/88	12/02/88	t 4/13/89	07/19/89	10/30/89
CC-32A	S	1.19	.79	1.03	1.51	1.18
CC-32B	S	1.16	.58	1.29	1.85	1.18
CC-33A	S	1.09	.76	.94	1.38	1.12
CC-33B.1	S	.88	.11	1.18	1.87	.93
CC-338	S	.97	.17	1.25	1.94	1.00
CC-34A	S	.20	.69	1.05	1.61	1.12
CC-35A	S	-3.87	-3.97	-3.40	-3.24	-3.58

Table 2-1. Synoptic Water-Level Measurements from Wells in the Beach Point Test Site

Studies by USGS (1989 and 1992) indicate that groundwater at Beach Point contains 1000 to 3000 mg/L total dissolved solids (TDS), and is characterized by a distinct sodium chloride chemistry typically associated with fresh to slightly brackish water. The TDS values and major-ion chemistry observed in groundwater are very similar to the surface chemistry in Kings Creek and the Bush River, and indicate a significant interconnection with these nearby surface water bodies.

2.3.4 Surface Water Hydrology

Beach Point is located at the mouth of Kings Creek, which drains approximately 800 acres of the northeastern portion of the Gunpowder Neck peninsula (see Figure 2-1). The Kings Creek drainage basin is located completely within the boundaries of APG-Edgewood Area and, as noted, encompasses the majority of chemical and ballistics laboratory and R&D facilities on the installation.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operatoris FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

Kings Creek is essentially a tidal estuary associated with the Bush River, and flow from the creek appears to occur mainly as a result of tidal flushing (i.e., net adjective flow resulting from stream gradient appears minimal). Drainage into the main body of the creek is through numerous subsidiary or "feeder" streams and wetlands. The tidal range for the creek is typically less than 1 foot, and salinity generally varies from approximately 1 to 3 salinity units (parts per thousand, or ppt) (USAEHA, 1986). A bathymetric map of the creek is not available, but surrounding topography suggests that most of the creek is likely to be shallow (i.e., less than 10 feet deep).

The Bush River at Beach Point is also tidal, with a range of 0.5 to 1.5 feet. The river is approximately one mile wide at Beach Point, and is generally less than six feet deep except in the shipping channel, where the depth is about 20 feet. Major tributaries to the river include Otter Point Creek, Lauderick Creek, and Kings Creek. Net daily or annual flow information on the Bush River in the Gunpowger Neck area is not available.

2.3.5 Natural Resources and Habitat

The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) identifies the entire Kings Creek shoreline, with the exception of Beach and Tapler Points, as freshwater wetland and marsh habitat. The Kings Creek and Bush River storelines of Beach Point and Tapler Point are classified as coarse sand beaches.

APG provides important wildlife habitat for many aquatic organisms, including several endangered or threatened species (e.g., striped bass), and commercially important species such as the blueback herring. Many types of wading birds, waterfowl, and raptors (e.g., bald eagle, osprey) are found in near-shore habitats at APG, and much of the base is managed for wildlife, which include white-tailed deer, beaver, and wild turkey.



. . .

1

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

Î

1

1

Concurrent studies by ICF and the University of Maryland will address biomonitoring and risk assessment. Further studies by ICF will provide a detailed analysis of the ecology of Kings Creek.

2.3.6 Preliminary Aerial Photography Analysis

This preliminary analysis of the available aerial photographs at APG-DSHE has large data gaps due to the limited range of photos. (Additional photos will be obtained from various sources to address these gaps and Beach Point data will be re-evaluated during Phase I of the FFS.)

Analysis of available aerial photographs was performed to examine the history of construction and excavation at the Beach Point Test Site. This review assists with locating any pits, trenches, landfills, and lagoons that are possible source areas for environmental contamination of the site. Photo pairs were viewed with a stereoscope to achieve a three-dimensional view of the site and surrounding areas. The following stereo pairs from APG-DSHE archives were reviewed:

Photo Number (pair)	Date	Approximate Scale
16-V05-36 (37)	circa 1944	1:9000,
ANK-3K-128 (129)	July 1952	1:10000,
ANK-3T-165 (166)	August 1957	1:10000, and
GS-VCLI 3-135 (136)	February 1970	1:10000.

The 1944 storeo pair shows the Beach Point peninsula is heavily vegetated with large trees. One major structure appears on the peninsula at the midpoint of the south side of the site. Several small sheds are located north and northwest of this building. A pipeline is shown leading from the building into the Bush River. No pits or other excavations are apparent on the peninsula.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

t

I

Ł

1

ł

t

1

ł

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

The 1944 photos show that the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) is constructed immediately west of the peninsula. The WWTP consists of two circular trickling filters, or clarifiers, along the south side of Beach Point Road; two lagoons, approximately 40 feet wide and 125 feet long, along the north side of the road; and three smaller lagoons, or sludge drying beds, west of the larger lagoons. A filled flat area, approximately one acre, extends south from the clarifiers toward Bush River. Both of the larger lagoons appear filled with liquid. Liquid in the northern lagoon shows as light to medium gray, approximately the same shade of gray as shallow water in Bush River. Liquid in the southern lagoon appears black, suggestive of a liquid that is not water. No liquid is apparent in the three smaller lagoons. A trench, or borrow pit, is shown immediately north of the lagoons. The pit starts approximately 250 to 300 feet west of the smaller lagoons and extends eastward into Kings Creek. Material from this area may have been used to level the land upon which the WWTP was built.

The 1952 stereo pair shows two additional buildings erected on Beach point in a cluster within the area of the originally mentioned structure. A small pit shows approximately 200 feet northeast of these buildings about half the distance between the buildings and the end of the peninsula. The size of the pit is estimated as 10 feet wide and 25 feet long. Liquid is not visible in the pit. At least eight new structures are located east of the WWTP and southwest of the Beach Point building cluster. Two nearly circular objects less than 10 feet in diameter appear approximately 100 feet southwest of the building cluster. These objects may be small pits; however, shadows from nearby trees make interpretation difficult.

In the 1957 stereo pair, the cluster of three buildings on the Beach Point peninsula are demolished. The pit northeast of these former structures appears to have been filled and reclaimed. The small, nearly circular pits are also not visible in the photographs. The two large lagoons at the WWTP have been filled and replaced by three smaller lagoons. Many trees make viewing difficult for observing other lesser changes in the area.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Weshington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

2.25

Focused Feasibility Study

The 1970 stereo pair shows that the tip of Beach Point extending approximately onequarter the length of the peninsula is cleared of trees. A dark area appearing in the center of this cleared area is probably the rocket fuel fire-suppression test area. A pit appears at the site of the building described in the 1944 aerial photos. No liquid is seen in the pit. The WWTP has been modified to include two large trickling filters; one located south of Beach Point Road and east of the older clarifiers, the other located north of the road and east of the three lagoons. A small, irregularly-shaped area, possibly an excavation, shows approximately 150 to 200 feet east of the northern trickling filter. Numerous small structures exist in the tree-covered area of the peninsula.

All aerial photos will be re-evaluated as part of this study when a complete set has been received and interpreted.

2.4 HISTORICAL CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENT

This section describes the nature and distribution of chemical contamination at Beach Point. The assessment is based on the results of previous investigations and sampling events, and includes an evaluation of chemical conditions in groundwater, surface water, soil, sediment, and biota (although the data sets for the latter two media are very limited). In addition, a discussion of potential migration pathways, as well as fate and transport characteristics of site-related chemicals, is also included, and a comparison to background conditions in Kings Creek is presented (again, based on very limited data). The section concludes with a brief summary and discussion of data gaps. Table 2-7 at the end of this section contains a list of the present chemicals of concern (COC).

Chemical Contamination in Environmental Media. As described previously, past industrial and ordnance-testing operations in the Beach Point Test Site have potentially contaminated surface and subsurface soils, groundwater, surface water, sediment, and biota. These contaminants include metals, propellant and fuel compounds, VOCs, and clothing-impregnating compounds. This section presents a summary of existing data on chemical contamination in these media.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

2.4.1 Soil

Two surface soil samples (#44 and #45) from Beach Point were collected near the former location of the mobile and fixed-base clothing-impregnating plants (Figure 2-7) and analyzed for VOCs, SVOCs, and selected metals. These samples were collected by USGS as part of the Canal Creek investigation, and were analyzed according to USATHAMA protocols by a United States Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency (USATHAMA) class laboratory.

Analytical results for the samples are presented in Tables 2-2 and 2-3. Detected parameters included several metals (iron, manganese, calcium, magnesium, sodium, and arsenic) and the organic compounds phenol and trichlorofluoromethane (TCFM). Although a background sample for direct comparison was not collected, all of the detected metals are common soil components, and it appears that the measured concentrations are within naturally occurring ranges for soils in the Eastern U.S. It should be noted that zinc, which was used in the XXCC3 clothing-impregnating process and is a major component of many pyrotechnic and smoke mixtures, was not detected in the surface soil samples.

The organic compounds phenol and TCFM are present in site soils only at trace levels (less than 1 ug/g), and cannot be directly linked with past site operations based on information regarding clothing impregnating. However, phenol is a common industrial chemical that could be derived from numerous sources, and TCFM may be present as a result of rocket fuel testing in which CFC compounds were used as fire suppressants.

2.4.2 Groundwater

Groundwater data for VOCs, SVOCs, metals, and major ions are available from six monitoring wells installed in the Beach Point Test Site by USGS as part of their Canal Creek study. As shown in Figure 2-8, monitoring wells 32A, 32B, 33A, 33B, and 34A are located on Beach Point in the vicinity of the former clothing-impregnating operations. Well 35A represents a potential background location for the point; however, this well may be located downgradient from other source areas.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN





Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

ANALYTE	CCSL-44	CCSL-45	CCSL-45R
Date Collected	9/26/89	9/26/89	9/26/89
Moisture % wet wt.	17.9	19.7	20.1
Calcium	480	1,500	2,700
Magnesium	1,200	1,800	1,900
Sodium	370	380	380
Silica	77	76	120
Nitrogen, Ammonia + Organic	-	_	
Phosphorus			-
Iron	11,000	12,000	10,000
Manganese	81	160	190
Antimony	<3.8	<3.8	<3.8
Arsenic	3.7	3.0	2.5
Boron	<33	<33	<33
Cadmium	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0
Chromium	<13	<13	<13
Copper	<59	<59	<59
Lead	81	62	53
Mercury	<.050	<.050	<.050
Selenium	<.25	<.25	<.25
	-30	- 30	-30

Table 2-2. Inorganic Chemical Data for Soil Samples Collected in the Beach Point Area¹

1. [All units in micrograms per gram dry soil; R = replicate sample; and --- = compounds not analyzed for.]

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

٦

٦

ANALYSIS.	USATHAMA. CODE	DETECTION LIMIT (mg/g)	CCSL-44	CCSL-45	CCSL-45R
Date Collected			9/26/89	9/26/89	9/26/89
Organic halides, total	-	200	.46	1.0	.39
Phenois, total		—			
Organic carbon, total (g/kg)	TOC	_			
Trichlorofluoromethane	CCL3F(V)	<.006	<.006	<.006	.01
Acenaphthylene	ANAPYL(S)	<.03	<.03	<.03	<.03
Anthracene	ANTRC(S)	<.03	<.03	<.03	<.03
Benzo(a)anthracene	BAANTR(S)	<.17	<.17	<.17	<.17
Benzo(b)fluoranthene	BBFANT(S)	<.21	<.21	<.21	<.21
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene	BGHIPY(S)	<.25	<.25	<.25	<.25
Benzo(a)pyrene	BAPYR(S)	<.25	<.25	<.25	<.25
Chrysene	CHYR(S)	<.12	<.12	<.12	<.12
Dibenzofuran	DBZFUR(S)	<.04	<.04	<.04	<.04
Di-n-butyl phthalate	DNBP(S)	<.06	<.06	<.06	<.06
Fluoranthene	FANT(S)	<.07	<.07	<.07	<.07
Fluorene	FLRENE(S)	<.03	<.03	<.03	<.03
Indeno(1,2,3-c,d)pyrene	ICDPYR(S)	<.29	<.29	<.29	<.29
Naphthalene	NAP(S)	<.04	<.04	<.04	<.04
Phenanthrene	PHANTR(S)	<.03	<.03	<.03	<.03
Pyrene	PYR(S)	<.03	<.03	<.03	<.03
2,2-bis(p-chlorophenyl)- 1,1-dichloroethene	PPDDE(S)	<.31	<.31	<.31	<.31
PCB 1260	PCB260(S)	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6

Ę

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

ANALYSIS	USATHAMA CODE	DETECTION LIMIT (mg/g)	CCSL-44	CCSL-45	CCSL-45R
Unknown 681	UNK681(SL)		.9	—	_
Unknown 641	UNK641(SL)		2		.6
Unknown 652	UNK652(SL)	1	1	—	_
Unknown 661	UNK661(SL)	_	.6	—	_
Unknown 691	UNK691(SL)		.7	1	_
Unknown 577	UNK577(SL)	-	1	2	3
Unknown 579	UNK579(SL)	_	1	2	3
Unknown 630	UNK630(SL)		.4	-	
Unknown 651	UNK651(SL)		_		4

Table 2-3 (Continued)

[All units in micrograms per gram dry soil, unless otherwise noted; R = replicate sample; (V) =
 quantitative analysis for volatile organics; (S) = quantitative analysis for semivolatile organics; (SL) =
 unknown or tentatively identified organic compounds with estimated concentrations detected by library
 search for semivolatile compounds; and — = compounds not analyzed for.]

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN





Focused Feasibility Study

Groundwater data from these wells are summarized in Appendix A. Although the data represent a composite of several sampling events¹ and therefore must be evaluated with caution, it is apparent that groundwater quality at wells 33A and 33B has been impacted by the presence of several chlorinated VOCs, most notably 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane and trichloroethene (TCE). In addition, several metals, including zinc, manganese, copper, silver, and nickel, appear to be present at elevated concentrations. However, background data for metals in nearby areas of the surficial aquifer are not available for comparison. The following paragraphs summarize the chemical data for Beach Point groundwater:

Metals and Inorganics. As noted previously, the surficial aquifer at Beach Point is high in TDS and shows a distinct sodium chloride major-ion chemistry that indicates its interconnection with the brackish surface waters (1 to 3 salinity units) at Kings Creek and the Bush River. Iron and manganese concentrations are highly variable depending upon sampling event and specific location within the aquifer. However, manganese concentrations (as well as historical iron levels) are higher at wells 33A and 33B, indicating low-oxygen (i.e., reducing) conditions possibly resulting from organic contamination. Other metals that have been detected at elevated concentrations include zinc, copper, nickel, and silver. The highest metal concentrations were observed in well 33B, which is screened at 62 to 67 feet below ground surface, in the lower portion of the surficial aquifer. Nitrate was also detected in groundwater at approximately 35 ug/L.

VOCs. The predominant VOCs present in groundwater are 1,1,2,2tetrachloroethane and TCE, with lower concentrations of perchloroethylene (PCE) also present. Chlorinated VOCs were detected at highest levels in wells 33A and 33B, and were present at significantly higher concentrations in the deeper well (33B), where a maximum concentration of 9480 ug/L was measured for 1,1,2,2-trichloroethane. Other chlorinated VOCs that have been detected at lower levels in wells 33A and 33B include 1,1,2-trichloroethane (112-TCA); chloroform; 1,1-dichloroethene (11-DCE); trans-1,2-dichloroethene (T12-DCE); vinyl chloride; chlorobenzene; and 1,3-dichlorobenzene. In addition, low levels of 1,4-dithiane (approximately 3 ug/l) were detected in well 33B, and chloroform was found at wells 32A and 32B (66 and 52 ug/L, respectively).

¹Appendix A presents combined data from several sampling rounds of Beach Point wells. Data for wells 32A, 32B, 34A, and 35A are from 1986 sampling; data for wells 33A and 33B include more recent sampling events (April and October 1989). Wells 32A, 32B, 34A, and 35A have not been sampled since 1986.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

 SVOCs. The only SVOC detected in groundwater at Beach Point was 2ethylhexanoic acid, a tentatively identified compound. This compound was detected at 8 ug/L in well 33B.

Although the available groundwater data are of variable quality (because of problems with detection limits, sample dilutions, and method blank contamination), several conclusions can be drawn regarding potential source areas and groundwater contamination at Beach Point. First, the predominant VOC detected in groundwater (1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane) was known to have been used in the clothing-impregnating process, and it is suspected that as much as 100,000 pounds of this material may have been disposed at Beach Point during large-scale production activities from 1943 through 1947. Chlorobenzene was also known to have been used in clothing impregnating. TCE and PCE are widely used solvents and degreasing agents, and it is possible that these substances were used in clothing impregnation, pyrotechnic testing, or other operations at Beach Point. The other chlorinated VOCs (vinyl chloride, DCE, 112-TCA) are likely degradation products of 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane, TCE, and PCE. Dithiane is an organosulfur compound usually associated with the degradation of mustard.

Elevated levels of iron and manganese may be present as a result of dissolution of naturally occurring iron/manganese oxides under reducing (i.e., low-oxygen) conditions caused by organic degradation reactions. However, manganese concentrations (2700 ug/L at well 338) appear quite high compared to typical aquifer conditions reported for the U.S. (100 ug/L average), suggesting that its presence may be the result of testing or manufacturing operations. Zinc is a major component of many pyrotechnic and smoke mixtures as well as the XXCC3 clothing-impregnating process; therefore, its presence appears site related. As noted, copper, nickel, and silver also are present at well 33B at apparently elevated concentrations and are likely site-related, but definitive information linking these metals to site operations is not available.

2-Ethylhexanoic acid, the only SVOC detected in groundwater at Beach Point, may be associated with former rocket fuel testing activities. Hexanoic acids, hexanones, and related compounds are common components of propellant and rocket fuel mixtures.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

2.4.3 Surface Water

The most recent surface water data for Beach Point and the Kings Creek area were collected during two rounds of sampling by USGS in 1988 and 1989. These sampling events included eight stations along the Kings Creek and Bush River shorelines of Beach Point, as well as five stations in the upper reaches of Kings Creek. Surface water samples collected in the area of Beach Point are depicted on Figure 2-7. Surface water data for the Beach Point sampling locations are presented for major ions and water quality parameters (Table 2-4), metals and inorganics (Table 2-5), and VOCs (Table 2-6).

Major ions and nutrients in surface water at Beach Point mostly appear to be within expected ranges based on overall water quality in the APG area (USAEHA, 1989). Majorion chemistry is representative of a brackish water system, and phosphorus levels are well below reported concentration in Kings Creek from the late 1970s, when severe nutrient overloading problems were reported (USAEHA, 1977). However, relatively high levels of nitrate (300 to 500 ug/L) were observed at all Beach Point locations. Nitrate could plausibly be present as a result of rocket fuel testing activities involving red furning nitric acid (RFNA), nitrogen tetroxide, or other oxidizers, explosives, or propellants containing nitrogen; however, data from other sampling stations in upstream areas of Kings Creek also appear elevated (especially at location CCSW-12). It is possible that observed concentrations of nitrate at Beach Point are at least partially related to an upstream source within the Kings Creek drainage basin.

Metals detected at elevated concentrations at Beach Point include aluminum, iron, manganese, cadmium, lead, zinc, and mercury. Although data are somewhat variable between 1988 and 1989 sampling events, iron, manganese, and lead were found at elevated concentrations at essentially all sampling locations. Zinc, mercury, and cadmium were detected at higher concentrations only in samples from the Kings Creek shoreline of Beach Point.

JE

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Ń	
Table	

53100 E

са, 100-

Water Quality Parameters and Major ion Concentrations Detected In Surface Water in the Beach Point Area, September 1988 and June 1989'

) I	See N	CC WW	2.82	6	2		A MOS	5	2	37	1	C.C.M.	3	CCSM	2	CON THE		C.S.		3	
1	-	erre	and the second			0,718,946	0719/30	er181/80	4/13/20		*****	M/20/4	**/**/*	**/**/*	4/13/14	*/18/4	9 /01/0	*/51/*	e/(s)/e	W/11/1	19/61/0
	5			i				ż	52	ŝ	Ę	÷	° 22	ā	á			ŝx	• *	ŝ	ź
ł	·		:	,	:	-		,	:		•	 	:		:				°,		:
	ļ		ł	ļ	:	,		ţ		3	ş	0	\$	3	:			\$ 730		1	Ę
R			:	:	2					1	8	:	:	:	:				8	20	2
1	,	1	Å		2		R		R		2				Ä	,	,	.			
1	ŗ	ŗ	2	!	ž	1	£	1	1		2		8	9	R		8.0		8	220	
i	1		\$	۱	;	*	•		;	,	ž	 	×		:		1		R		
1	ŧ	2	:	R	:	•		z	:		:	 ,	.		:	8	2	£	:	2	
	5	!	ŧ	5	5	:	÷	5	•		:		-	2	2	2 8		•	:		
1	ę	ļ	Ŧ	1	*	ž	÷	ŧ	1		ž		,	ł	ŝ	P	8	ł	ē	•	3
1	,	:		2		,	•	2		•			1	x	 		*	2		8	
				·	·	ı	-		1	:	,	1	ı					-			
5	5	1		R	R	R	R	R	£		z		-	ŝ	2	R	<u>ę</u>	9.0	x	Ŗ	R
	i	Ę	ŝ	i	2	5	£	8	ş		8		ł	604	Ŗ	8	004 ⁻ -	0	ž	8	?
	8	ţ	i	!	!		14	Ĭ	8		1			g.	8	8	\$	22	1 011'T	an i	
i	:	•	·	:	·			:			•			:			:			:	

C (BEACHEORINA BOOKPART 4 (BL

2-36

1

l

ł

ł

I

l

ł

1

ł

I

1



N N

Waler Quelly Parameters and Major Ion Concentrations Detected in Serface Water in the Beach Point Area, September 1989 and June 1969 (continued)

				22 B		COM NO		60	ļ	22	3	10.20	3	CLAW	5	CUSH AUR	CUM N	15 2	3	RC:SH	
															94/61/0	40/91/4	*/18//*	#0/81/0	ca/ss/e	**/s/e	e/18/05
!		81.3 8 L	6.118.786		235								Ì		t		Î	Ī	Î	t	ſ
						3		•		4	:	,	1	•	. 0/1	•	2	-	2	-	50.
į	-							T													
ł	ĸ	ŧ		?	ı		۱	Ŧ	,	,	,	,		9			2	2	-		_
						Ī		I		i								-		-	-
}	1	2		t	}		1	ŧ	ı	,	,	,	,	8		8	8	8	•	8	
					Ţ	Ī													:	;	:
łi	1		t	-	1	:	t	>	r	3	:		,	÷	e	 ì	3	R	2	, ,	
					T	T		I			Í	T			ŀ					1	1
	1	i	1	;	1	1	5		8	•	3	•	i	\$	011	2	ō	8	8	8	8
									1		;			•	;		.2	8	:		×
1	2			•		*	2						Ì		t						
}	1	!	ŧ	1	1	ŧ	ł	ŧ	ł	1	2,	1	1	ž	ŝ	90	ŝ	••	9 2 2	8	
Shuffe																				i	
ļ	Ą	1	,	•	۱		•		-	-	ŗ			ē		ě	*	ē			

'tsS/cm, microsemens per centimeter al 25 degrees C, sg/t, micrograms per liter. U, unlittered sample, F, littered sample, R, replicate sample, <, less than, >, greater than, ppt gauts per thousamin =, compound not analyted for §

-

 $^{2}[\mathrm{AB}$ revuts reported in miligrams per liter (mg/L) unless otherwise noted]

C (REAL HEDRICK) - MORE FUR

Table 2-5

.

15

Metal Concentrations Detected in Surface Water in the Beach Point Area, September 1988 and June 1989

	CLAM PL		TL MAN	3	2		COM V	3		33	ž	access.	ì	COM	2	CCISIN PLIER	COM 1	MSC(C)		OCLEVE	2
1	estaria		837348	e/18,00	saftaft	******	arteria	8/49/8	48/80/8	9/12/40	*/19/10	W/51/0	40/51/5	*/11/0	8/15/00	M/8/4	arthree	A/2//			
1			í	1	Ł	Ĩ	•		2		8										
[•	•	tu -	:	¢.	8.						†-		-	2					+-	
[ŗ			:	:		-									,		?			
1			:	 		.,	· 1	•			:		,	+	+-		-	•	~		
	•			1				·		•	-	+-		+-			•	-	2	-	
	•		0	•	•	•		•	:		2			<u>.</u>	5	2	ę.	0 <u>1</u>	z	91 -	,
1		:	11,	5	3	÷	ž	ę	и.		×			ş	ñ	8	8	0(*	16.	9,9	
1		•	•	•	;	:		*	:	1	?	1	-	-	:	:	:	:		-	
	•	•	\$	•	į	Ŧ	ŧ	•	ş	1	\$				3		:	-	9	†	
ł	•	•	z,	•	- 1		t		e.		R.	 							3		
]	٠	:	•	•	•		•		-		2	,								+	
5				••	9.	•	•	:			•	.			•					.	
;	3		1	2	R		ä		3		3	 			8				1		
1	•	•	•	:	•	•	•	:	•	 	:	†		+-	 -						
1		1	•	1	•	:	•	,		 	:	,		<u> </u>	+				-		
}	•	-	3		3	1	*		i		i	-			1	1					
Ł	¥	\$	8	8	8.		\$:	*			.		3	1	1	:		8		
(U, unitheres) s	ample, F		R afore		- Homes	- Jerss Chu		- puriod	and a	2	ĺ				1	1	ĺ	1	1		

5 Ĺ

 $^{*}(\mathbf{M}$ results reported in micrograms per liter (eg/L))

C VIRACHEOMITVA V IDORPHITZ 5 FBL

ų

ł

l

ł

l

ł

l

ŧ

l

ł

♦ Table 2-6

Concentrations of Volatile Organic Contaminants Detected in Surface Water In the Beach Point Area, September 1988 and June 1989

		ſ							ſ								
	ÿ		8		1	8		800	•	CCBI	•	80		5	• •	N	:
I	arra/e	and all's	81/82/8	erteres	ertas	an/41/4	44/64/9	8/18/88	0/10/00	46/81/4	00/81/0	**/**/*		98/51/a	4/13/9		6/18/00
	arran ta	5		,	•	mimie		\$1,941/04		0/14/10							
		:	•		=		:	,	:								
		2			-		:				30						
\$	•	•	*	•	į	;		:	Ä	÷	Ē	:		!			
j	\$.	•••	•		•••	•	•••	:	×	:						: :	,
	•		•		,	•		÷	R	•	:	•					
	÷	•••	*	4 1 -	*	•	•	:	ñ	•	:		:				
	•	•	•			•	•••	•	Ä	•	:		8	•			
	•	3	•		ł	•	3		R	•	3		:	:	3		
	•	÷	:	÷	÷	٤	66.	r.	=	ĩ		3.6	=	k	:		
	•	;		•		•	2	ş		•	06.	9		ų	•••	9	
······································	·	Ŧ	÷	•	•	÷	=	•	=	÷		:	ŧ	:	ŧ		
	•	ŧ	:	;	Ŧ	8		. 18	â	¢,	:	ē,	8	9	:	2.	-
	·	:	•	:	:	•	;	•		•	:	:	R	•	=		,
	÷	-	•	i	•		16.	٠	1	•	18.		x	•			,
	·	ŧ	2	ŧ		:	4 4 7	•	2	÷	:	•	•	;		:	
	•	•	•	¥	ŧ	ŗ		÷	R	•		•	*	ę		:	,
	•	:	:	:		•	• • •	÷		ţ	-	•	10	:		į	
	•	÷	!	;	÷	•	į	ę,	2	*	• 2 •	ę.	8	e.	• 2 •	01.	
.)	•	:	•	••	••	•	. 96	•		¢.	. 50	ę	:	:	- 50	:	
																-	

C (KACHCAR)A / DOUNDSETB

2-39

l

ļ

ł

l

ł

I

ł

I

l

l

1 1

Ć

1
•;

•

Table 2-6

Concentrations of Volatile Organic Contaminants Detected in Surface Water in the Beach Point Ares, September 1953 and June 1989 (continued)

		ĺ		ſ	ſ							C	K.7	20		CCIN	•
Ì	8		8			8										M/8//0	0/15/0
		- 11 M	Cares.	e./8/10	alfante.	arra/an	alcola	4/14/4	*/21/2	4/11/0							
			I		ſ						0.	:	~	l	• • •	-	,
		36			•••	-	04								5		,
					•		•••	;	• 50	•	•••						
					:				4	Ŷ		•	\$	•	\$7.	•	
· · · · ·		:	•		:							•	:	÷	¢7.	• •	-
	•	51-	•	:	5	•	:						:		92.	÷	4
	ę	• 8 -	•		-96	•	• 1 •	•	140	•							
					1	:	ı	•	•	•		•		:	-		
	•	-								5		2		ę,		ę.	
į	*	•		•	•	2									. 1 .	1	:
	1		,	•	:	-	;	-	ž								,
				:		1		. 1	• • •	-	:	-					
	·	:	-						\$	1	•	!	9	1	.40	-	
	, ,	•	-	•	•	-		-					2	1	9	1	I
		•			•	,	.	-	2	,						,	4
		- 66	-	ŗ	•		•	-	•	-					•	-	ł
		Ŧ				1	•	1	2	,	•	-					
				ŧ	•	L		ı	\$		\$	•		-			
							1		;	1	ŗ	١	. 21	1		-	
:		4	,	2	ţ	•											

18. replicate sample, mg/L, milligrams per liter, *, compound detected in method bank, #, indicates all estimated value because peak was present but concentration was below detection limit; <, less than, -, compound not everyzed for it - | · · · · · · · 4. .

~

 ${}^{1}_{\rm p}$ are results reported in micrograms per litter (eg/L) unless otherwise indicated (

C (BEACHEORITIA) (SDIRWP2 & TBL

2-40

ł

I

۱

١

(

ł

ł

t

l

l

ł

Date: 10/5/93 Page: 41 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

It is important to note that several of the detected metals (especially zinc, aluminum, and lead) are major components of many pyrotechnic and smoke mixtures. Therefore, their presence at elevated concentrations in surface water may be related to past pyrotechnic/smoke testing activities at the point. Also, as noted previously, zinc oxide was a major component of the XXCC3 clothing-impregnating process, and it is possible that some zinc contamination in surface water may have resulted from this operation.²

As presented in Table 2-6, numerous VOC compounds were detected at low levels (approximately 10 to 70 ug/L) in several surface water samples collected in Sectember 1989. VOCs were detected primarily at locations CCSW-5 (on the Bush River shoreline) and CCSW-7 (on the Kings Creek shoreline). Predominant contaminants included 1,1,2,2-tetrachlorethane, TCE, and PCE. However, detectable levels of many other chlorinated VOCs were also found, including 11-DCE, TCFM, chloroform, and carbon tetrachloride. Aromatic VOCs, including ethylbenzene and toluene, were also detected. An earlier sampling round conducted by USGS in September 1988 detected no VOC contamination in surface water at Beach Point with the exception of 10 ug/L of 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane at sampling station CCSW-3, located on the Bush River. SVOCs were analyzed in selected samples from both 1988 and 1989 sampling events but were not detected, with the exception of very low levels of tentatively identified compounds related to hexanoic acid.

VOCs such as 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane and PCE were known to have been associated with clothing-impregnating operations, and it is possible that other solvents such as TCE, DCE, chloroform, and carbon tetrachloride may also have been used on an experimental or pilot-scale basis. Many of the chlorinated VOCS that were detected in the 1989 sampling event may also be present as a result of degradation reactions involving the more highly chlorinated compounds (e.g., vinyl chloride may be present resulting from the degradation of PCE, TCE, or DCE). In addition, several of these compounds have been identified in

⁴Records indicate that activities on Beach Point primarily involved the CC2 clothing-impregnating process (USAEHA, 1989), but it is possible that some pilot-scale testing or full-scale production work involving the XXCC3 process was also performed.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Focused Feasibility Study

groundwater at Beach Point. Thus, these compounds appear to be site-related. Because of the differences between the 1988 and 1989 sampling efforts, particularly with regard to the VOCs, the data from those efforts must be treated with caution. Laboratory contamination or analytical problems might also explain the presence of these compounds.

Background data for VOCs from other sampling locations within Kings Creek are available. However, no VOCS were detected at any upstream stations with the exception of chloroform at CCSW-10 (58 ug/L). Because VOCs typically persist in surface water for only a short time period because of volatilization, they are likely to be present only in the immediate vicinity of source areas (e.g., groundwater plumes). Thus, background data for VOCs is not as significant as for the previously discussed metals and inorganic compounds.

Table 2-7 presents the current chemicals of concern (COCs) for the Beach Point Test Site.

2.5 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL

The scope of this task addresses only groundwater and sediments which are the major pathways of concern for the Beach Point site (see Figures 2-9 and 2-10). The primary release mechanism for the Beach Point site is infiltration and percolation of contaminants through subsurface soil. This release mechanism allows contaminants to migrate either vertically and/or horizontally through subsurface soil eventually reaching groundwater and/or surface water/sediments. Storm water runoff and dust/volatile emission release mechanisms transport contaminants present in the surface soil to either air or surface water bodies. Although the scope of this work addresses only aquatic biota receptors, a qualitative risk assessment for human receptors will be done for limited scenarios and pathways.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Ĩ

Page: 43 Cf 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

I

1

ł

ł

L

I

t

Table 2-7. Chemical of Concern at Beach Point:Maximum Detected Surface Water Concentrationsand Fresh Water Aquatic Toxicity Criteria

Chemical	Maximum Detected Surface Water Concentration (µg/L)	Acute Toxicity Value (yg/L)	Chronic Toxicity Value (µg/L)	Toxicity Values Exceeded
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	10	9300 ¹	6900 ²	None
Trichloroethene	37	18,000 ¹		None
Aluminum	3300	750 ³	87 ³	Acute and Chronic
Cadmium	6.7	3.9 ⁴	1.14	Acute and Chronic
Lead	13	834	3.24	Chronic
Mercury	2.2	2.44	0.012 (AWQC) ⁴ 0.26 (LOEC) ⁵	Chronic
Nitrate	800		90,000 ⁶	None
Zinc	182	1204	1104	Acute and Chronic

¹48-hour LC50 in Daphnia (LeBlanc 1980) ²28-day LOEC [lowest observed effect concentration] in Daphnia (AQUIRE 1990) ³AWQC [Ambient water quality criteria] (EPA 1988a) ⁴AWQC (1986) ⁶Chronic LOEC (EPA 1986) ⁶Estimated protective concentration (EPA 1986)

.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN





P

į,

•

۲

Focused Feasibility Study

2.6 DATA QUALITY OBJECTIVES

The Data Quality Objectives (DQO) process is a Total Quality Management tool developed by EPA to facilitate the planning of data collection activities. The DQO process used here will focus data collection activities to ensure that results from the FFS produce the right type and quality of information. By following the DQO process, it will be possible to reduce the overall costs of sampling and analytical activities and accelerate project planning and implementation. The DQO process includes the following steps:

- Stating the problem to be resolved,
- Identifying the decision to be made,
- Identifying inputs to the decision,
- Defining the boundaries of the study,
- Developing decision rules,
- Specifying limits on uncertainty, and
- Optimizing design for obtaining data.

The DQO process allows data users to evaluate the potential consequences of uncertainty before the data is collected, and to specify limits on the amount of uncertainty that can be tolerated in the decision that will be based on the study results. The DQO process is dynamic and the decisions, inputs, boundaries and uncertainty limits may be modified as the investigation proceeds.

This work plan has been designed to address the seven steps of the DQO process. The objective of the FFS is to assess potential environmental risks, evaluate contaminant remediation alternatives, and provide a basis to select a cost effective remedial action. The site investigation will focus on potential risk to biological receptors from known contaminants in Kings Creek and Bush River, evaluate the fate and transport of contamination attributable to the site, and determine source areas of contamination. For example, the degree to which groundwater contamination impacts surface water and sediments will be assessed.

J.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Date: 10/5/93 Page: 47 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

This data will be utilized to develop the ecological risk assessment and provide input for selection of possible remedial alternatives. Analytical data quality levels appropriate to these objectives will be specified. During the planning phase of the FFS, existing information for each potential source area or groundwater volume that has been identified for remediation will be evaluated in terms of potential remedial actions and cleanup levels on the basis of potential risks and ARARs. Data for each source area will be assessed to determine if they are sufficient to evaluate remedial alternatives and prepare accurate risk estimates. If existing data are not sufficient, data collection activities to address data gaps will be planned.

The current investigation will be conducted using a phased approach. In the initial phase of the FFS, source areas will be identified, the extent to which the ecology of Beach Point is effected from contaminants will be defined, and background levels in the Beach Point Test Site will be established. The scope of the subsequent phases of the investigation will include collection of additional data for characterization of chemistry and geometry of groundwater contamination and an evaluation of engineering alternatives that may be applied to remediate contaminant sources or contaminated groundwater.

2.6.1 Data Uses

2.6.1.1 <u>Site Characterization</u>. Data will be collected to determine the nature and extent of contamination at the site. Site characterization usually requires the most data collection. Site characterization data are generated through the sampling and analysis of waste sources and environmental media. Data will be collected to determine the presence or absence of conteminants above background concentrations in groundwater, soil, soil gas, sediment, and sediment porewater at the site. The specific data quality objectives for field activities to further characterize the site are presented in Table 2-8. DQO are also addressed in Section 4.0 of the Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Date: 10/5/53 Page: 48 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland Foursed Feesibility Study

TABLE 2-8 DATA QUALITY OBJECTIVES FOR FIELD ACTIVITIES

	Surveying and examining a god prisem will prove unation currents, using gen currents, and subsequent suit instatistion promising with instatistion promising with instatistion	Solo gue incluse and automotic and guezonyment auroups province and Edit and Ea provinced the segment real and other guezonyments real and other guezonyments of contents in any content of contents in a second and and guest to any con- dimension and the second contents are and the second and and building building and to contents of automa sol and and building buildings and be purely	Rear monocharry wells with the regression of syndrom and content of syndrom and providence and hardwork to the syndromean may be determined. Laggaph of new wells will be provide a the submitted of another and the submitted of another and the submitted of another and the submitted and another another the submitted another the submitted another the submitted another another the submitted another the s	Sedament data witi be collected in Bush River to determine the extent to which past disposal practices have impacted yous water and sediment quality.	Surface and subsurface, soll samples will be collected in aruses to deermine al contrariant transports so occurring from suspected source tocations.	Chemical residue analysis to assess biseccamulation of contaminanta. Human exposure will be discussed qualitatively, not quantitatively
] .	ŝ	et suit ges sumpties aus colorume: Sampties aut ce colorume: Sampties aut ce scripties for a variety of surgens aut the substrate colorum Arrahemes for passions aut ges varieties are suit to be dimensioned.	Construction and subsections coll spinopers will be analyzed for TCL VDCs and BMAL TAL enorgances (MaxMan and Lass for GMACATA and Lass for profession, anglorphen, profession, anglorphen, professions products.	 Stadmant camptes will be analyzed for TCL VOCs. TCL BMAs. 7AL nongenics, CSM besiddown products, andhostes, doarne/lurens, total organic safton and use phosthrouts. West point samples will be analyzed for TCL VOCs and TAL inorganics. 	Surface and somewall be analyzed for TUL VOCs and BUVs, TAL morge: vcs. CSM Prosektome product: vcs. Allow to Hydrogenete investigation for discussion of soil boring chemical data.	Pone

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BEPWREFES

2-48

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

÷

8		Set Gas and Geophysics. Inveitigation	· Hydrogiologic Investigation		Constanting South States	
	 There permanent reference mutures will be established at Beach Point surveyed to an accuracy of 1 foot in lateral coordinates and 0.01 toot in elevation. Girds with 20-foot cals. Fayroducble to 2 feat, will be reproducble to 2 feat, will be established in the Baach Point Test San for geophysical and sol ges surveys. All new and existing monitoring wells will be surveyed in elevation and coordinates. Accuracy-0.05 feot) god. 	 Seismic data will include reflected radar signals for interpretation. EMI data - subsurface conductivities will be interpreted. 	 Visual logging of 6 new wells. Natural gamma ray logging of at new wells form a ray logging of control and correlation. Temperature. Eh. pH. DO. turbidby, and conductivity measurements before. during, and after pre-sample purging. Flow metter logs will be performed in each of the current wells and the 6 new well installations. Waater level measurements will be taken within a 24-hour period from all wells, accurate to 0.01 fest. Map coondinates for the sampling locations will be generated us.ing GPS. 	 Temperature, pH, and conductivity measurementants will be collected prior to sampling. Grain size distribution will be determined on all sediment samples Map coordinates for the sampling locations will be generated using GPS. 	 Visual characterization of soil types. Map coordinates for the sampling locations will be generated. 	erov .
Sempling Method	Chemical Date No sempling to be performed. <i>Physical Date</i> Bissed, non- intrusive	Chemical Dutz Field analysis of soil gas samples. Physical Data Environmental, biased, non- intrusive	Chemical Data: Environmental, biased, grab, composite (subsurface soil from shallow borings only), and intrusive. Physical Data: Environmental, biased, grab, intrusive	Chemical Data: Environmental, biased, grab, and intrusive. Physical Data: Environmental, biased, grab and intrusive	Chemical Data: Environmental, blased, intrusive, composte (subsurface soll from shallow borings only) Physical Data: Environmertal, bised, intrusive	<i>Chemical Date:</i> Environmental, biased, grab, and intrusive. <i>Physical Date:</i> Environmental, biased, grab, and intrusive.
	Site Characterization	Site Characterization/Source Identification	Site Characterization Risk Assessment	Site Characterization Risk Assessment	Site Characterization Risk Assessment	Site Characterization Risk Assessment

Table 2-3 (Continued)

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BPPWPLFFS

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

2-49

•

•

7

•

ä

١

)

Date: 10/5/93 Page: 50 of 65

C

\$ 0 ÷.,

7

•

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland Focused Feasibility Study

Table 2-3 (Continued)

	Personal and Examination Orie System	Soft Can and Camphysical Investigation	Nythogendegic investigation	Settiment truckfeition		
Analysical Data Land	As dura will be equivalent to EPA Level (Seismic and EMI data will be equivalent to EPA Level 1. 	CLP-certified analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level IV	• CLP-certified analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level IV	 CLP-certified analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level IV 	 CLP-certified analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level IV
		 Son gas data will be equivalent to EPA Level II. 	USAEC and EPA-certified analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level III.	• USAEC. and EPA-centited analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level III.	USAEC- and EPA-certited analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level 11.	USAEC- and EPA-certified analyses will be equivalent to EPA Level III.
			 Physical testing of soils will be equivalent to EPA Level V. 	 Physical testing of soils will be equivalent to EPA Level V. 	 Visual logging will be equivalent to EPA Level I. 	 Taxonomic classification will be equivalent to Level I.
			 Field screening physical data and logs will be equivalent to Level 1. 	 Field screening physical data and logs will be equivalent to Level 1. 		
Analytical C.U.B. USAEC, E.P.A. and ASTR	No chemical or physical analytical data is required for surveying and grid establishment.	 No chemical or physical analytical data is required for geophysical data. Sol gas samples will be analyzed by non-certified, chemical specific USAEC, EPA, or ASTM methods. 	Chemical leading: CLP Methods-(CLM01.8, ILM02.0 DFLM01.01, 8, ILM02.0 DFLM01.01, 8, 270.2M, 245.2M, 245.5M, 270.2M, 245.5M, GCMS, and GC/ECD, USMEC Methods- Methods- Methods- Methods amples- Method numbers are laboratory specific. Solid samples- Method numbers are laboratory specific. Physical Teeting. ASTM Methods for soil samples- D422.0, D2216, D2487, D2374, D-4318, and EPA method 9100.	Chemical leading CLP Methods—(CLM01.8, ILLMc2.0, DFLM01.0) 8280, 200,7M, 265.2M, 293.2M, 270.2M, 245.5M, GCMS, and GC-ECD, USNEC Methods- For solid samples- Method numbers are laboratory specific. Physical Testing ASTM-certitied methods for soil samples- D-422, D-2316, D- 2487, D-2974, D-4318, and EFA Method 9100.	Chemical testing: CLP Methods-(ILM02.0, CLP Methods-(ILM02.0, CLM01 & Ro DFLM01 0 8280, 200.2M, 245.5M, 336.3M, 270.2M, 245.5M, 336.3M, GCMS, and GC-ECD ISAEC Methods For solid samples- Method numbers are laboratory specific.	Chemical testing: CLP Methods-(ILM02.0, CLM01.8, DFLM01.0) 8280, 200.7M, 206.2M, 239.2M, 270.2M, 245.5M, 335.3M, GCMS, and GC-ECD. USKEC Methods- For solid samples- Method numbers are laboratory specific. Bioarasy Endpoints: Mysid Shrimp (Mysidopsis baha)- survival after 48 hours. Sheepshead Minnow (Cyprinodon variegates)- survival after 48 hours.
Detection		ryprairy i poo ror vous in soil gas samples.	lyphotany i poor lor water and i pom for soil.	typically 1 ppm.	Typically Tippm.	Typically 1 ppm.
Country Control Semples	Kone	Soi gas: Performance evaluation samples, matrix spakes, and blanks. Geophysicat: None.	Trip Blanks, Rinse Blanks, Duplicates, Fitter Blanks, Ambent Blanks, Method Blanks, Internal Laboratory Standards	Trip Blanks, Rinse Blanks. Duplicates, Ambient Samples, Method Blanks, Internat Laboratory Standards	Rinse Blanks, Duplicates, Method Blanks, Ambient Samples, Internal Laboratory Standards	Rinee Blanks, Duplicates, Method Blanks, Ambient Samples, Internal Laboratory Standards Bloassays: Control Group-must be 90% or greater. Three replicates per test concentration.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations H

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN E. PWP.FFIS

Page: 51 of 65	Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Mai	Focused Feasibility Study	4
	•		

· · · ·

Table 2-3 (Continued)

ŧ	
x soli sampling from boring Nu	
sediment samples each Selet i Kings Creek and Bush progravement i will be taken at locations tream and downstream from tream and downstream from the Point. Data must be utted carefully, taking into but tidal/storm ktilushoes addment.	
Constant sample from well from thom thom the sample sample sample some some some some some some some som	
Grow	
kin	
Local None Betranding	

Note: DQO's from Phase III will be developed during Phase I and/or Phase II.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BEPWRIFFS

Focused Feasibility Study

2.6.1.2 <u>Ecological Risk Assessment and ARAR Evaluation</u>. Data will be collected in support of an ecological risk assessment that will be prepared by UM/ICF in accordance with EPA Risk Assessment Guidance. Preliminary cleanup levels for contaminants in soil, soil gas, sediment porewater, sediment and groundwater will be developed in part from the risk assessment results. Potential receptors and exposure pathways will be evaluated.

Contaminant concentrations in all media will be evaluated in terms of ARARs. All promulgated requirements that affect contaminants and remedial activities will be evaluated. When preliminary cleanup levels for media have been identified, remedial alternatives that will attain the cleanup levels will be selected and evaluated. Background information and site specific data concerning bioavailability and mobility; and physical characteristics such as pH, oil and grease, and total organic carbon that impact toxicity and mobility will be utilized.

2.6.1.3 <u>Remedial Alternatives</u>. Specific data requirements for the development of remedial alternatives include determination of the volumes or areas of waste or media that must be addressed, the chemical-specific information on waste constituents, and information necessary to identify those remedial action alternatives that would be effective for the contaminants and media of concern. Treatability studies are conducted to provide sufficient data to allow treatment alternatives to be fully developed and evaluated and to reduce the cost and performance uncertainties for treatment alternatives to acceptable levels. A data gathering procedure closely related to treatability studies is aquifer testing. To evaluate the velocity of contaminant migration and to determine the design of remedial action, aquifer testing may be required.

2.6.2 Analytical Data Quality Levels

The following are associated analytical data quality levels and broad use categories:

 Level I (Field Screening) - Provides the lowest quality data but with immediate field results. Results are often not compound specific and results are typically qualitative. Data uses for Level I data include:



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Date: 10/5/93 Page: 53 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- -site characterization
- -monitoring
- -implementation
- Level II (Field Analysis) Provides a tentative identification of compounds through analyte specific analysis. Yields immediate field results with more sophisticated equipment than Level I. Data generated may have highly variable quality. Acceptable uses of Level II data include:
 - ---site characterization
 - -evaluation of alternatives
 - -engineering design
 - -monitoring during implementation
- Level III (Non-CLP Methods/RCRA Characteristic Testing) Provides analyte specific analytical results. Data is often comparable to Level IV (CLP) data. Laboratory QA/QC may be less vigorous than Level IV. Acceptable uses of Level III data include:
 - -risk assessment
 - -site characterization
 - -evaluation of alternatives
 - -engineering design
 - -monitoring during implementation
- Level IV (CLP analytical methods) Provides data of known quality using CLP methods, rigorous QA/QC, and data validation. Data is used for:
 - -risk assessment,
 - -engineering design
 - -evaluation of alternatives.
- Level V (Modified Analytical methods) Provides data of known quality using modified methods, or analysis for nonconventional parameters. Data is used for:

-risk assessment.

2.6.3 Data Quality Indicators (DQIs)

Data quality is defined as the degree of uncertainty with respect to precision, accuracy, representativeness, completeness, and comparability of a data set. These characteristics will be used to develop sampling protocols and identify applicable documentation, sample handling procedures, and measurement system procedures. These objectives are established based on site conditions, objectives of the project, and knowledge of available measurement systems. USATHAMA sets minimum data quality standards for analytical methods which will be followed.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

1

1

1

1

1

Ł

1

Ł

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Precision — Precision is a measure of how well repeated measurements of the same parameter on the same sample or a duplicate sample agree with one another. Precision will be measured by the relative percent difference between duplicate samples. Precision limits are specified by USATHAMA for specific analytes and methods.

Accuracy — Accuracy is a measure of the degree that a sampling protocol can produce analytical results which match known standards. Accuracy will be measured against the percent recovery of an analyte. Accuracy limits are specified by USATHAMA for specific analytes and methods.

Representativeness — Measurements will be made to ensure that results are representative of the media. Sampling and sample handling protocols will be developed to protect the representativeness of the collected samples.

Completeness — Completeness is the amount of valid data obtained compared to the amount of data collected.

Comparability — The characteristic of comparability reflects both internal consistency of data and consistency of data to previously collected information.

DQIs are discussed in greater detail in Section 4.2 of the Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan.

2.6.4 Specifying Limits of Uncertainty and Optimizing Design for Obtaining Data

Limits on uncertainty will be based on careful consideration of the consequences of incorrect conclusions during design of the field sampling and quality assurance plans. Statistical methodology will be utilized to establish an acceptable probability for decision errors, i.e. false positives or false negatives. Based on the acceptable level of uncertainty, the field sampling effort will utilize the most cost effective design to achieve project goals. Table 2-8, illustrates the type of information which will be included during planning of field sampling activities at each suspected source area and at sites requiring remediation.

J

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations



Focused Feasibility Study

1

1

ŧ.

1

ł

2.7 APPLICABLE OR RELEVANT AND APPROPRIATE REQUIREMENTS (ARARs)

The Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA) amended the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA). Prior to the SARA amendments, CERCLA on-site actions were not required to be in compliance with other laws although other federal environmental laws were required to be considered in the remedial alternative selection process. The National Oil and Hazardous Substance Contingency Plan (NCP) was created to effectuate the response powers of CERCLA. The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) stated in NCP Section 300.68(i)(1) that CERCLA response actions would attain or exceed applicable or relevant and appropriate environmental and public health standards unless one of five specifically enumerated situations were present. CERCLA Section 121 requires all applicable, relevant and appropriate federal standards and any more stringent state standards to be considered for all on-site remedial actions initiated by the EPA or performed under EPA guidance.

2.7.1 Purpose

A preliminary identification and screening of federal and state environmental regulatory requirements that may be applicable or relevant and appropriate to potential remedial actions that may be conducted at the Beach Point site is presented to assist in the selection and implementation of an appropriate remedial methodology for the site. CERCLA Section 121(d) lists specific federal environmental laws that must be considered as part of an applicable, or relevant and appropriate requirements (ARARs) analysis. This list includes:

- Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA).
- Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA).
- Clean Air Act (CAA).
- Clean Water Act (CWA).
- Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act (MPRSA).
- Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA)/Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).



Jacobs Engineering Group inc. Washington Operations

Focused Feasibility Study

Section 121(d) also states that remedial actions must meet the applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements of any promulgated standard, requirement, criteria, or limitation under a state environmental or facility-siting law that is more stringent than any federal standard, requirement, criteria, or limitation. Criteria, advisories, and guidances that are not law may be used to ensure protectiveness of human health or the environment in the absence of ARARs, or when ARARs are not sufficient to accomplish this. These criteria, advisories, and guidances fall in the "to be considered" (TBC) category and can be used to ensure protection.

Applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements are defined as:

"Applicable requirements are those clean-up standards of control, and other substantive environmental protection requirements, criteria, or limitations promulgated under Federal or State law that specifically address a hazardous substance, pollutant, contaminant, remedial action, location, or other circumstance at a CERCLA site."

"Relevant and appropriate requirements are those clean-up standards, standards of control, and other substantive environmental protection requirements, criteria, or limitations promulgated under Federal or State law that, while not "applicable" to a hazardous substance, pollutant, contaminant, remedial action, location, or other circumstance at a CERCLA site, address problems or situations sufficiently similar to those encountered at the CERCLA site that their use is well suited to the particular site." (EPA, 1988)

It should be noted that:

"a requirement that is judged to be relevant and appropriate must be complied with to the same degree as if it were applicable." (EPA, 1988)



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN BPPWP FS

Focused Feasibility Study

1

1

ł

L

L

Other non-promulgated advisories or guidance issued by State or Federal governments are not legally binding and do not have the legal status of potential ARARs. These "to-beconsidered" (TBC) requirements will be evaluated along with ARARs in determining site risks.

The identification and screening of ARARs for a site is best achieved by examining the body of Federal, State, and local environmental laws, regulations, standards, etc. relative to three general categories:

- Chemical-specific ARARs health or environmentally based numerical values limiting the amount of a contaminant that may be released to, or allowed to remain in the environment. These include, for example, maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) established under the Safe Drinking Water Act.
- Location-specific ARARs are those requirements that may restrict remedial action because a site is in a special location such as an urban setting, a floodplain, wetland, or historical area.
- Action-specific ARARs technology or activity based requirements that may include, for example, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) effluent standards or incinerator contaminant destruction standards.

2.7.2 Chemical-Specific ARARs and TBCs

"Chemical-specific ARARs are usually health- or risk-based numerical values or methodologies which when applied to site specific conditions, result in establishment of numerical value. These values establish the acceptable amount or concentration of a chemical that may be found in, or discharged to, the ambient environment" (EPA, 1988).

The media of potential concern at the site include groundwater, sediment and soil. Based on previous site investigations (USGS 1986 to 1989; ICF; Darda and others, 1991), the potential contaminants of concern at the site include:

- 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane (1,1,2,2-TCA)
- trichloroethene (TCE)
- aluminum

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Focused Feasibility Study

- cadmium
- lead
- mercury
- nitrate
- zinc

The following are common chemical-specific standards or references that are used to establish chemical-specific ARARs. Potential chemical specific ARARs for these contaminants of concern are presented in Tables 2-9 and 2-10.

Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Maximum Contaminant Levels. Maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) for toxic compounds have been established under the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA). MCLs are enforceable standards for public drinking water systems that are set as close to MCL goals as feasible when considering the best available technology and treatment techniques. MCLs have been established for mercury, nitrates, lead, cadmium, and TCE. The contaminated aquifer is classified as brackish and is not used as a drinking water source; therefore the SDWA MCLs are probably neither applicable or relevant and appropriate.

 Clean Air Act National Primary/Secondary Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) and National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs).

- Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) regulations.
- Federal Ambient Water Quality Criteria (AWQC) are non-enforceable guidelines that set concentrations of pollutants that may be relevant and appropriate depending on the uses of the surface water body, the media affected, purposes of the criteria and current information.
- Federal Regulatory Standards EPA Risk Reference Doses and EPA Carcinogen Assessment Group (CAG) Polency Factors are used to characterize current and potential site risks.
- Maryland Drinking Water Law (ACOM, Env. Article, Title 9). The purpose of this
 regulation is to establish that the state has primary enforcement responsibility for
 drinking water standards under the federal SDWA. Again, drinking water
 standards are not applicable or appropriate and relevant in this case.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Date: 10/5/93 Page: 59 of 65

•

.

•

a

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Compound	AWQC for Protection of Aquatic life Freshweter Acute (ug/l)	AWQC for Protection of Aquetic life Brechwater Chronic (ug/l)	AwQC for Protection of Aquatic life Marine Acute (ug/l)	AWQC for Protection of Aquatic life Marine Chronic (ug1)	Sediment Quality Criteria (ug/kg)
Inorganic Mercury	2.4	1.2E-02	2.1	2.5E-02	
Alkyl Mercury	2.4	1.2E-02	2.14	2.5E-02	
Zinc	130	110	96	86	•
Nitrate		•			·
Lead (inorganic)	80 +	3.2 +	100	5.6	
Cadmium	3.9 +	1.1 +	43	93	•
Aluminum		•		•	
TCE	4.5E04 *	2.1E04 *	2.0E03 *	•	•
1,1,2,2- tetrachioro- ethane	2.4E03 *	•	9.0E03 *	•	•

Table 2-9. Chemical-Specific ARARs for Protection of Aquatic Life

• ||

+ Harness-dependent

· LOEL

••

Page: 60 of 65

1

8

.

.

b

1

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

lap	le i	2-10.	Chemi	cal-S	Specific	: ARARs	for	Protection	of	Human H	ealth
-----	------	-------	-------	-------	----------	---------	-----	------------	----	---------	-------

Compound	Proposed RCRA Action Levels for solie (mg/kg)	Proposed RCRA Action Levels for Air (ug/m [*])	SDWA MCLs April 1901 (ug/l)*	SDWA MCLQs (ugit)	RCRA MCLs (ug/l)	Meryland Hazardoue Wasts regulation Limit for Groundwater that may impact Surface Water	AWQC humen basikh water only (ugil)	AWQC human health fish and weisr ingestio n (ug/l)	HAL. (ug/i)	10-4 cancer risk (ug/l)	Carcinogen Class
Mercury	20	•	2(F)	2(F)	2	2	0.14	0.15	2(F)		D
Zinc Zinc Cyanide Zinc Phosphide	4E03 2E03	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	20(D)	•	D
Nitrate	•	,	10,000 as N (F)	10,000 (F)	·	-	10.000	•	•	•	D
Lead	-	•	5 at source (P)	0 (P)	50	50	50	·	•	•	82
Cadmium	4E01	6E-04	5 (F)	5 (F)	10	10	10	•	5 (F)	•	D(SDWA) B1(RCRA)
Aluminum		,	•	•	•	,	•	1		•	D
TCE	6E01		SIF)	0(F)	•	•	0.6	42	•	300 (F)	82
1,1.2.2- tetrachioro- ethane	3EQ2	1	•	•	•	·	•	•	70 (F)	100 (F)	c

(F) = Final

(P) = Proposed

(0) + Orali

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Date: 10/5/93 Page: 61 Of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Maryland Air Quality Control Act (ACOM, EA, Title 2 chapter 240 and amendments). The purpose of this act is "to maintain the degree of purity of the air necessary to protect the health, the general welfare, and property of the people of the state." It includes "regulations that require a permit or registration before a person constructs, modifies or uses a source that may cause or control emissions in the air".
- Maryland Hazardous Waste Regulations concern the disposal of controlled hazardous substances and the impact of groundwater quality on wildlife crops and vegetation. They also protect against potential adverse effects on surface water that is hydraulically connected to groundwater.
- Maryland Environmental Service Act of 1970 (ACOM Natural resource Article, Title 3). The act is designed to "assist with the preservation, improvement and management of the quality of air, land, and water resources... and to provide for dependable, effective, and efficient water supply and purification and disposal of liquid and soil wastes and to encourage reduction in the amount of waste generated and discharged to the environment."
- Maryland Water Pollution Control Law (ACOM, EA, Title 9, Chapter 240 and amendments). The purpose of the law is "to establish effective programs and to provide additional and cumulative remedies to prevent, abate, and control pollution of the waters of the state". This includes maximum permissible long term and short term concentration of pollutants in water and issuance of discharge permits.

2.7.3 Location-specific ARARs

Restrictions placed on the concentration of hazardous substances or the conduct of activities because they are in specific locations are location-specific ARARs. Some sensitive locations for which there are ARARs include floodplains, wetlands, historic places, and sensitive ecosystems and habitats.

"A site's location is a fundamental determinant of its impact on human health and the environment. Location-specific ARARs are restrictions placed on concentrations of hazardous substances or the conduct of activities solely because they are in specific locations." (EPA, 1988)

X

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Focused Feasibility Study

The following are location-specific standards or references that are used to establish location-specific ARARs:

- National Historic Preservation Act.
- Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act.
- Historic Sites, Buildings and Antiquities Act.
- Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act.
- Endangered Species Act.
- Coastal Zone Management Act.
- Wild and Scenic Rivers Act.
- Clean Water Act.
- Antidegradation Policy.
- Rivers and Harbor Act of 1899.
- Maryland Wetland Regulations
- Maryland Coastal Facilities Review Act and Rules
- Maryland Wotlands Law
- Maryland Hazardous Waste Facilities Siling Rules
- * Manyland Hazardous Waste Facility Siting Law
- Maryland Hazardous Substance Spill Response Law
- Maryland Solid Waste Management Regulations
- Maryland Hazardous Waste Regulations
- Maryland Regulations reflecting Chesapeake Bay Critical Area Commission Criteria for Local Critical Area Program Development
- Maryland Threatened and Endangered Species
- Maryland Water Appropriation or Use

2.7.4 Action-specific ARARs

Action-specific ARARs are technology or activity based requirements or actions taken with respect to hazardous wastes. Action-specific ARARs do not determine the remedial alternative but indicate how a selected alternative must be achieved. Action-specific ARARs may establish performance levels, actions or technologies as well as specific levels for discharged or residual contaminants.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 63 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

"Action-specific ARARs are usually technology- or activity-based requirements or limitations on actions taken with respect to hazardous wastes. These requirements are triggered by the particular remedial activities that are selected to accomplish a remedy." (EPA, 1988)

The following are action-specific standards or references that are used to establish actionspecific ARARs:

- Solid Waste Disposal Act.
- Resource Conservation and Recovery Act/Land Disposal Restrictions, Minimum Technology Requirements, Land Treatment Requirements, TCLP. To determine the applicability of RCRA requirements, the definition of solid and hazardous waste, the types of activities covered and time periods covered should be analyzed. In general, Subtitle C requirements are applicable if:
- (1) the waste is a listed or characteristic waste under RCRA, and
- (2) the waste was treated, stored, or disposed after the effective date of RCRA requirements, or

(3) the activity at the CERCLA site constitutes treatment, storage or disposal as defined by RCRA.

- Hazardous Materials Transportation Act. Department of Transportation (DOT) Regulations for Hazardous Material Transport. DOT Regulations for hazardous waste transport will apply for off site transport of such wastes.
- Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). Federal OSHA requirements that regulate worker safety and employee records will be applicable during all site activities.
- Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act
- Clean Air Act, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutents
- Hazardous Waste Permit Program
- National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Program
- Maryland Wastewater Treatment Law. This law covers discharge to waters of the state including surface and underground waters of Chesapeake Bay, the Atlantic Ocean, ponds, lakes, rivers and streams.
- Maryland Well Construction Regulations
- Manyland Solid Waste Management Regulations
- Maryland Board of Well Drillers Regulations

Jacobe Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 2 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 64 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Maryland Erosion and Sediment Control Regulations
- Maryland Storm Water Management Regulations
- Maryland Oil Pollution Regulations

2.7.5 Other Potential Requirements

2.7.5.1 <u>Superfund Offsite Policy</u>. The Federai Register dated November 5, 1985 mandates that selection of an appropriate facility for offsite management of hazardous substances from CERCLA response actions, meet the following requirements:

- The hazardous waste management facility must have applicable RCRA permit or interim status.
- A RCRA compliance inspection must be performed not more than six months prior to the hazardous waste management facility's receipt of hazardous substances.
- If land disposal of the hazardous substance occurs, the landfill or suiface impoundment must meet the minimum technology requirements of a double liner and a leachate collection system.
- If land disposal is proposed at a facility with interim status, adequate groundwater monitoring data are required to identify whether or not contamination exists.
- The hazardous waste management facility must be free of significant RCRA violations or adverse environmental impacts unless the owner/operator has committed to correcting the problems through an enforceable agreement that disposal will occur only within a new or existing unit that is in compliance with RCRA requirements and is not contributing to the adverse conditions at the facility.

Finally, it is noted that a remedial action may be selected that does not meet ARARs according to CERCLA Section 121(d)(4) if:

- (a) "the remedial action selected is only part of a total remedial action that will attain such level or standard of control when completed";
- (b) "compliance with such requirements at the facility will result in greater risk to human health and the environment than alternative options";
- (c) "compliance with such requirements is technically impracticable from an engineering perspective";

Jecobs Engineering Group Inc. Weehington Operations

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 65 of 65

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- (d) "the remedial action selected will attain a standard of performance that is equivalent to that required under the otherwise applicable standard, requirement, criteria, or limitation, through use of another method or approach";
- (e) "with respect to a State standard, requirements, criteria, or limitation, the State has not consistently applied (or demonstrated the intention to consistently apply) the standard, requirement, criteria, or limitation in similar circumstances at other remedial actions with the State"; or
- (f) "in case of a remedial action to be undertaken solely under section 104 (42 USC 9604) using the Fund, selection of a remedial action that attains such level or standard of control will not provide a balance between the need for protection of public health and welfare and the environment at the facility under consideration, and the availability of amounts from the Fund to respond to other sites which present a threat to public health or welfare or the environment, taking into consideration the relative immediacy of such threats..."

S.

Jacoba Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

9

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 1 of 20

3.0 BEACH POINT FFS

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

3.1 SITE OBJECTIVES

The Beach Point Focused Feasibility Study will be conducted in a three phase approach that is comprised of the phases listed below.

- Phase I: Evaluate potential on-site sources, define morphology and limited flow patterns of the surficial aquifer (JEG) and perform biological assessments (UM) and a risk assessment at Beach Point (ICF).
- Phase II: Evaluate and define the lateral extent of the DNAPL plume that exists
 and establish flow patterns above the clay aquitard at Beach Point.
- Phase III: Evaluate treatment options as each applies to the site conditions at Beach Point.

A flow diagram detailing the phases and integration of the activities is found in Figure 3-1.

Initially, Phase I will include an evaluation of any existing on-site sources. From historical records, past site activities that occurred at Beach Point were examined including pyrotechnic testing, clothing impregnation testing, rocket fuel testing, and assorted trenching activities. From these records, it was concluded, based on historical groundwater and soil chemical data, that activities associated with the clothing impregnating operations potentially impacted the site soils and groundwater more extensively than the activities associated with the other two site operations. Therefore, the likelihood of adverse impact to the site soils and groundwater at Beach Point caused by the pyrotechnic and rocket fuel testing is minimal, but will be addressed. The source evaluation conducted in Phase I will focus primarily at characterizing the areas located near the mobile clothing impregnating units, the burn pit and old trencting areas. Soil borings will be drilled and discrete soil samples will be collected during Phase I to help define the source areas, if they exist. In addition, groundwater sampling will be conducted from all monitoring wells that currently exist at Beach Point. The purpose for the groundwater monitoring is to continue to build the chemical data base that will be used in the risk assessment.

Jecobe Engineering Group Inc. Weehington Operations



3-2

.

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 3 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Source identification and control is dependent on groundwater velocity and direction at Beach Point. These measurements will be collected during Phase I using downhole vertical and horizontal flow meters. These instruments will attempt to partially define groundwater movement, directions, and velocities at Beach Point.

Based on historical groundwater chemical data, the predominant contaminants of concern at Beach Point are volatile organic compounds that belong to a class of constituents known as Dense Non-aqueous Phase Liquids (DNAPLs). The behavior of these contaminants of concern are not well understood within the groundwater system due primarily to their physical-chemical nature. As the name of these compounds suggest, each exhibits a density greater than water. As such, DNAPLs tend to behave as "sinkers" and will migrate downward through the vadose zone into the groundwater system and rest upon an impermeable stratum such as bedrock or clay. Therefore, it is critical to understand, to the fullest extent possible, the physical geomorphology of the surficial aquifer. Part of the task in Phase I will be to define the shape and structure of the upper confining clay aquitard at Beach Point.

Assessing the impact to the environment from past site activities conducted at Beach Point is difficult without studying the effects that these past activities have on the living blota in the area. During Phase I, a risk assessment will be conducted to assess the influence of past site activities on living blota in the area of Beach Point and to qualitatively determine human health risk from limited pathways. Depending on the Phase I risk assessment analysis, a decision will be made whether to implement Phase II and Phase III. If, as a result of the analysis, no risk to human health or the environment has been determined, the need for subsequent phases will be determined.

Phase II of the FFS at Beach Point will entail defining the lateral extent of the DNAPL plume above the clay aquitard. The Phase II scope of work will be dependent on the results of the Risk Assessment. To accomplish the tasks of identifying the DNAPL plume will require invasive activities including monitoring well installation and soil gas surveys (if relevant sources are identified). Phase II will be implemented to serve as the core of the



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 4 Of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

1

1

1

Beach Point FFS defining the nature and extent of the contamination, its fate and transport, and the potential for remedy. The hydrogeologic work incorporated in this phase will help to define the lateral extent of the DNAPL plume that exists above the clay aquitard. With the installation of new monitoring well clusters during Phase II, it is expected that the groundwater flow patterns, and the structural and stratigraphic components of the aquifer which affect groundwater movement at Beach Point will be better defined. Phase II will also establish a short term groundwater monitoring program of the existing and newly installed monitoring wells to ascertain the persistence of contaminants of concern in groundwater and determine whether treatment is appropriate.

Phase III is the section of the Beach Point Focus Feasibility Study technical work plan in which the treatment options will be considered based on the findings obtained during the Phase I and II portions of the technical plan. There are three categories of options that will be considered for Phase III and each is presented below:

- (1) No treatment.
- (2) Limited action Long-term groundwater monitoring to measure the natural biodegradation of the contaminant plume and determine its long-term persistence in the groundwater system.
- (3) Pilot/treatability study/remedial alternatives for the contaminants of concern.

3.2 FIELD INVESTIGATION/SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES

3.2.1 Phase I Investigations

Phase I investigations are intended to provide a baseline data base for determining the nature of groundwater contamination, identifying possible source areas, and performing a risk assessment in the Beach Point Test Site of APG-EA. This study only addresses the surficial aquifer at Beach Point. A schedule depicting the integration of Phase I activities is found in Figure 3-2. Table 3-1 summarizes the Phase I sampling regime.

Jacobs Engineering Group In.2. Washington Operations

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 5 Of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

۵

Table 3-1.	Phase i	Samplin	a Regime
------------	---------	---------	----------

MEDIA SAMPLED	NUMBER OF SAMPLES	LOCATION OF SAMPLES**
Sediment*	10	Proximate to site
Sediment (local background)	4	Bush River, Kings Creek
Groundwater	7	Existing wells
Subsurface Soil	10	Source locations
Surface soil	20	Suspected source locations

*University of Maryland will be conducting bioassays and biotoxicity studies on groundwater and on porewater from sediment samples.

**Figure 2-6 shows sampling locations.

Y

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Figure 3-2 PROJECT SCHEDULE

เลื้อนหมือน เป็นสาวที่เป็น การเป็น เป็น เป็น เป็น เป็น เป็น เป็น เป็น		••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	-								
	ž	-	5	- f	2		ÎN.				
	j	8	3	8	8	8 ō	9	8	5	8	8
Fenere Fremer Ban Cu	N ONCE										
	2005	0	1904092								1
			13 AN 18								
Out Frat FIS web Par	1		21-71-52		9						
			(1) (1) (1)								
			C1 645 /2	-8-							
Correcto PTE Canda					2						
						F					
		N.0 .	CO-MARK		•	1					
			Cloud A	-	\$						
Orunteese Sunang			23 Sep 43								
			17 Jan 94	t		f					
Place & FTS	1		10.212				Ĩ				
		1	11 11 9 9		I		2				
			24.00.44				, ,				
	3476					•	, Ì				
			M DOG	,,		I		¢			
Out Permet Par	1		. 27 Q.S.			1	, ,	•			
			3 Mon Su			1	, , 	1			
Cold France Para			Circ M				Ì	,]			
Papetery Arres	- OK		Sever.e				I	. 1			
Print Protocol Plan	8499	2.0 C						, , , , ,			
Nets Cumula									,]		
								- L			
	Sector Street		50 mm J C2					ľ			
								3	, 	ſ	
	51 WY C2								•		
Reprint to the second sec										Į	
			• •							1	

96

٩

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 7 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

3.2.1.1 <u>Aerial Photography</u>. Sections 1.0 and 2.0 of this work plan discuss known previous operations and investigations performed in the Beach Point Test Site. This information is inadequate for determining the exact locations of suspected contaminant source areas. In order to provide more specific spatial information concerning the previous activities in the Beach Point Test Site, a search for, and analysis of available historical aerial photographs will be conducted.

All available aerial photographs presently at DSHE will be reviewed. In addition, photographs will be acquired from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and other sources, which cover time frames not available at DSHE.

Photographs will be obtained at an appropriate scale allowing for fine analysis of activities and conditions in the Beach Point Test Site and vicinity. The photographs will entail a minimum 10% coverage overlap allowing for stereoscopic photo-interpretation.

The stereo pairs will be examined to define operations and conditions noted for each time frame. Suspect hazardcus waste activities will be plotted on a base-map and used as a guide to direct surface geophysical, soil gas sampling, surface soil sampling, and soil boring activities.

3.2.1.2 <u>Surface Geophysica</u>. Surface geophysical surveys have been conducted by Argonne National Laboratory in order to better define the hydrostratigraphy and geomorphology of Beach Point, to locate magnetic bodies, and to identify potential contaminant source areas. The geophysical techniques employed include:

- 1. Seismic Reflection
- 2. Seismic Refraction
- 3. Electrical Depth Sounding
- 4. Conductivity and Resistivity Profiling
- 5. Ground Penetrating Radar Survey
- 6. Magnetometer Survey

Jacobs Engineering Girup Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 8 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

The field data was gathered starting May 25 and was completed by June 24, 1993. The data is now being compiled and interpreted by Argonne, Appendix B will contain the geophysical grids area. Ground truthing of shallow geophysics will be done in conjunction with Section 3.2.1.5 (Soil Borings).

3.2.1.3 <u>Flowmeter Logging Program</u>. A flowmeter logging program will be performed for six existing wells in the Beach Point Test Site. Measurements will be made of the lateral and vertical components of groundwater flow in the surficial aquifer. Detail of the work to be performed is presented as Appendix C.

3.2.1.4 <u>Groundwater Analysis</u>. Historical data indicates the contaminants of concern (COCs) in groundwater at Beach Point are 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane, trichloroethane, aluminum, cadmium, lead, mercury, and zinc. In order to better define the contaminant plume, seven existing wells in the Beach Point Test Site will be sampled as part of the Canal Creek Groundwater Monitoring Program. Before sample purging begins, a discrete bottom sample shall be taken from Well 33B for analysis for DNAPL.

The existing wells labeled CC-32A, CC-32B, CC-33A, CC-33B.1, CC-33B, CC-34A and CC-35A (see Figure 2-6) will be sampled for volatile organic compounds, semivolatile organic compounds, pesticides/arociors, total metals, dissolved metals, cyanide, total phosphorous, explosives, CSM degradation products including thiodiglycol 1,4 dithane, IMPA, AND MPA; organophophorous and organosulter compounds, dioxins/furans, herbicides, nitrate, chlorides, and fluorides.

The results from the full suite analysis of the groundwater sampling for existing monitoring wells conducted during the Canal Creek Groundwater Monitoring Program will be evaluated to determine the need to modify to the current group of contaminants of concern (COCs). The new suite of COCs will serve as an analyte list for future chemical groundwater testing in the Beach Point Test Site.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 9 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

3.2.1.5 <u>Surface Soil Sampling</u>. Surface soil samples will be collected in areas determined to be "hot areas", that is, potential source areas, based on surface geophysics, aerial photographs and visual soil inspections. Samples will be collected from a number of yet to be determined locations at a depth of 1 foot below ground surface (BGS) using a cleaned stainless steel bucket auger. Sampling procedures and quality assurance procedures for surface soil sampling are presented in Sections 3.5.1 of the FSP and SOP 025 of the QAPP.

Surface soil samples will be analyzed for volatile organic compounds, semivolatile organic compounds, pesticides/aroclors, TCLP metals, cyanide, total phosphorous, explosives, thiodiglycol, dioxins/furans, organophophorous and organosulfer compounds, CSM degradation products including, 4 dithane, IMPA, and MPA, herbicides and nitrate/nitrites.

3.2.1.6 Soil Borings. Based upon the results of the aerial photography and surface geophysical programs, approximately (10) soil borings (see Figure 2-6) will be performed in suspect contaminant source areas. The purpose of the borings will be to collect subsurface soil samples in the vadose zone for chemical soil analyses and to ground Truth Shallow. The chemical soil analyses will identify contaminant sources, types of contaminants associated with this source, and geophysical surveys whether the contaminants are near or in contact with the groundwater surface.

Prior to soil boring activities, all locations will be screened for the presence of UXO. UXO screening will be performed during the drilling operations as described in Section 3.5.2 of the FSP. Soil borings will be performed using a standard truckmounted drill rig and hollow-stem augers. Decontamination procedures will be followed as described in SOP 005 of the QAPP. Sampling will be performed using a 5' direct-push type sampler or 24° split spoon sampler. The soil samples will be collected from the sampler and placed in appropriate laboratory certified clean glass containers (see Sections 3.10.3 of the FSP and 5 of the QAPP). One sample will be acquired from each continuous core. Sampling will continue until the first

Jacobii Enginiarring Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 10 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

occurrence of groundwater (approximately 15') or when the photoionization monitoring detects a hot spot. The sample will then be taken at this point and the boring terminated. One sample from each well boring is anticipated, totaling ten (10) chemical soil boring samples to be sent for analysis.

Contaminants of concern selected for chemical analysis are volatile organic compounds, semivolatile organic compounds, pesticides/aroclors, TCLP metals, cyanide, total phosphorous, explosives, thiodiglycol, dioxins/furans, organophophorous and organosulfer compounds, CSM degradation products including 1,4 2, dithane IMPA, MPA, herbicides, nitrate, chlorides, and fluorides.

3.2.1.7 <u>Sediment Sampling</u>. Four sediment samples are to be collected on the Kings Creek side and six are to be collected on the Bush River side of the Beach Point peninsula (see figure 2-6 for approximate sampling locations). These samples are intended to supplement information generated by the risk assessment and provide detailed chemical analysis sediments. Two pairs of local background sediment samples will also be collected, one pair from Kings Creek upstream from the Beach Point peninsula, the other pair from the Bush River. All sediment samples will be collected proximate to shore below the low-tide elevation.

3.2.1.8 <u>Risk Assessment</u>. A Risk Assessment will be performed by ICF Kaiser Engineers for the Kings Creek/Beach Point Test Site. The scope of work includes toxicological studies to assess the impact on aquatic life due to the presence of contaminants in surface water and sediment in the Beach Point Test Site. A general work plan for this phase of work is provided as Appendix D of this FFS Work Plan. Groundwater biomonitoring will be performed by the University of Maryland, in collaboration the US Army Biomedical Research and Development Laboratory. A detailed work plan for this activity is provided in Appendix E.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN
Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 11 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

3.2.2 Phase II Investigations

Phase II investigations will be performed as required following Phase I regulatory review. Specifically, if it is determined that unacceptable risks exist at the site, or if information generated during Phase I activities is insufficient to determine the fate and transport of groundwater contamination in the Beach Point Test Site, Phase II will be undertaken.

Current well installations mainly monitor the upper portion of the surficial aquifer (4 of 6 wells). Only two wells in (Cluster 33) monitor the mid- and deep portion of the surficial aquifer (see Figure 2-5).

3.2.2.1 <u>Well Installations/Groundwater Monitoring</u>. Under Phase II, an additional six (6) groundwater wells will be installed in three clusters in the Beach Point Test Site (figure 2-6). The new well installations will allow JEG to obtain more detailed information concerning the groundwater quality in the mid to lower portion of the surficial aquifer in the Beach Point Test Site and allow definition of the vertical and horizontal extent of the plume.

The approximate locations of the new well clusters are presented in Figure 2-6. These cluster locations may be repositioned by the United States Geological Survey. (USOS) and JEG based upon flow logs and geophysical interpretation.

The wells will be installed in clusters of two wells, one well screened at the bottom of the surficial aquifer (approximately 60-75 feet BGS) and the second well in the cluster screened at the mid-level of the surficial aquifer (approximately 45-55 feet BGS). Borings for the wells will be performed using hollow stem auger (HSA) drilling techniques. Continuous soil sampling will be performed throughout the boring to:

- 1. Identify soil stratigraphy and moisture content.
- 2. Screen the soils for VOC contamination.
- 3. Identify the top of the clay aquitard.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 12 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

The borings will be drilled and work installed as detailed in Section 3.5.3 of the FSP and Section SOP 019 of the QAPP. In addition, UXO screening will be performed prior to, and during the drilling operations as described in SOP 044 of the QAPP.

Groundwater sampling will be performed at the seven existing wells in the Beach Point Test Site in addition to newly installed well locations after the wells have been properly developed (see Section 3.3.1 of the FSP and Section SOP 019 of the QAPP). The analytes chosen for sampling will be the COCs determined from the results of the Canal Creek Groundwater Monitoring Program. This second phase of sampling will be performed monthly for a total of three (3) months and will include weskly groundwater level measurements in order to provide more groundwater gradient information.

3.2.2.2 <u>Flowmeter Logging Program</u>. A flowmeter logging program will be performed on wells installed in Phase II as discussed in Section 3.2.1.3.

3.2.2.3 <u>Downhole Geophysics</u>. Gamma ray logging of newly installed wells will be performed on the Phase II wells and older USGS well 33B to provide geologic correlation. Downhole geophysics will be performed by a JEG subcontractor.

3.2.2.4 <u>Soil Ges Survey(s)</u>. Approximately 50 soil gas samples will be collected and analyzed for the presence of VOCs and/other contaminants of concern.

Objectives of the soil gas sampling program are to:

Identify valoes zone areas of source contamination.

Outline the surficial extent of source contamination.

Figure 2-2 illustrates the general study area for the soil surveys at Beach Point.

Prior to initiation of any soil gas sampling, a APG-DSHE approved, UXO contractor assisted by the APG Explosive Ordnance Disposal (EOD) team members will



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 13 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

coordinate the field work effort with AFG-EA Safety Office. An MK-26 Ordnance Locator and/or similar stallic material detector will screen the subsurface to a depth of four feet. If suspicious anomalies are encountered, the sampling point will be abandoned and moved to a safe location.

- The location of all identified or suspected UXO will be marked and reported to EOD. The UXO contractor will assist in developing a "render safe" plan for all UXO.
- Additional steps to ensure the safety of site personnel will be followed as described in the Unexploded Ordnance Clearance Scope of Work (see Sections 3.2.4 in the Work Plan, and SOP 044 in the QAPP and Section 4.1 in the HASP).

The soil gas sampling will be performed using active suil gas withdrawal. Passive soil gas sampling equipment will be used if it is not possible to penetrate the subsurface due to the presence of a large amount of potential UXO. Several off-site background soil gas samples will be collected as baseline correlations for non-source points. The background areas will be determined by Army personnel.

Soil gas surveys will be completed within six weeks. Following the completion of the soil gas surveys, possible adrinional soil boring locations (if needed) will be selected in areas of suspected significant subsurface soil contamination to identify sources.

3.2.3 Phase III -- Development and Screening of Alternatives

If Phase II is implemented, the analysis of the results of this phase will determine the development of alternatives in Phase III.

An FFS Report will be prepared which will evaluate potential groundwater waste management options applicable to the site and waste characteristics (e.g., the extent of DNAPL contamination) as identified in Phase 1 and Phase ii. ICF suil conduct a risk assessment which will provide an evaluation of the potential ecological risk and threat to human health in the absence of any remutial action. Appropriate waste management



£

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

b

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 14 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

ſ

1

options will be developed that will minimize or eliminate such risk. Depending on sitespecific circumstances, this may involve the complete elimination or destruction of hazardous substance at the site, the reduction of concentrations of hazardous substances to acceptable health and aquatic-based levels, and prevention of exposure to hazardous substances via engineering or institutional controls, or some combination of the above.

3.2.3.1 <u>No Action Alternative</u>. As required by CERCLA and the NCP, the no action alternative will be evaluated as a potential remedy. The no action alternative will serve as a baseline for comparison of other alternatives. This alternative will be selected, if the results of Phase I, Phase II, and previous sampling programs indicate compliance with ARARS and no existing ecological risk or threat to human health and the environment.

3.2.3.2 <u>Limited Action Alternative</u>. A limited action alternative will include ongoing monitoring and sampling of groundwater to detect any changes in contaminants concentrations. Due to the DNAPL characteristics at Beach Point, extreme caution will be taken when drilling in DNAPL areas in order to avoid creating new vertical pathways.

3.2.3.3 <u>Alternative Development Process</u>. Potential alternatives will be developed concurrently with Phase I and/or II contaminant characterization activities, with the results of one influencing the other in an iterative fashion (i.e., Phase II characterization data will be used to develop alternatives and screen technologies in Phase III).

If pilot treatability studies are deemed necessary, a work plan will be prepared which will constitute an amendment to the overall FFS work plan. A pilot test will be omitted in the event that screening feasibility studies are sufficiently conclusive. Table 3-2 outlines the general content of such a plan.



•)•

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

3-14

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 15 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

1

Table 3-2. Format for Pilot-scale Work Plan

1.	Remedial technology
2.	Test Objectives

3. Pilot plant installation and start-up

4. Pilot plant operation and maintenance procedures

5. Parameters to be tested

6. Sampling plan

7. Analytical methods

8. Data Management

9. Data analysis and interpretation

10. Health and safety

11. Residuals management

Pilot plant systems will be designed as small as possible to minimize cost, yet large enough to get the data required for scaling up. Pilot units will be operated in a manner as similar as possible to the operation of a full-scale system. Any waste generated will be handled and stored in a manner responsive to CERCLA requirements.

Testing procedures will be well documented, in bound notebooks. Backup copies will be made of critical items of data. In addition, data sheets will be prepared to facilitate the collection of complete data.

Alternatives for remediation will be developed by an initial screening of remedial technologies and process options based on technology development, site and waste characteristics. The retained options will undergo secondary screening based on effectiveness, implementability and relative cost. A combination of the retained



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 16 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

technologies would be assembled into alternatives that address contamination in the accelerated groundwater operable unit. This process would follow six general steps:

- (1) Develop remedial action objectives specifying the contaminants and media of concern, exposure pathways, and preliminary remediation goals that permit a range of treatment and containment alternatives to be developed. The preliminary remediation goals are developed on the basis of chemicalspecific ARARS and site-specific risk-related factors.
- (2) Develop general response actions for each medium of interest defining containment, treatment, excavation, pumping, or other actions, singly or in combination, that may be taken to satisfy the remedial objectives for Beach Point.
- (3) Identify volumes or areas of media to which general response actions might be applied, taking into account the requirements for protectiveness as identified in the remedial action objectives and the chemical and physical characterization of the site.
- (4) Identify and screen the technologies applicable to each general response action to eliminate those that cannot be implemented technically at the site. The general response actions will be further defined to specify remedial technology types (e.g., the general response action of treatment can be further defined to include physical/chemical or thermal destruction technology types).
- (5) Identify and evaluate technology process options to select a representative process for each technology type retained for consideration. Although specific processes are selected for alternative development and evaluation, these processes are intended to represent the broader range of process options within a general technology type.
- (6) Assemble the selected representative technologies into alternatives representing a range of treatment and containment combinations, as appropriate.

3.2.3.4 <u>Detailed Analysis of Alternatives</u>. JEG will conduct a detailed analysis to provide the basis for identifying a preferred alternative. Upon completion of the detailed analysis, the FFS report will be submitted for public review and comment. The results of the detailed analysis will support the final selection of a remedial action and will be the foundation of the Record of Decision.



Jacobe Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 17 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

The detailed analysis of alternatives will address the following components:

- Further definition of each alternative, if necessary, with respect to the volumes or areas of contaminated media to be addressed, the technologies to be used, and any performance requirements associated with those technologies.
- Assessment and summary profile of each alternative against the evaluation criteria.
- Comparative analysis among the alternatives to assess the relative performance of each alternative with respect to each evaluation criterion.

Two statutory requirements of CERCLA constitute threshold criteria to be met by each alternative of the FFS:

- Overall protection of human health and the environment.
- Compliance with ARARs.

Evaluation of the overall protectiveness of an alternative during the FFS will focus on whether that alternative achieves adequate protection. The evaluation will also describe how site risks posed through each pathway being addressed by the FFS are eliminated, reduced, or controlled through treatment, engineering, or institutional controls. Evaluation also allows for consideration of whether an alternative poses any unacceptable short-term or cross-media impacts.

The detailed analysis will summarize which ARARs are pertinent to each alternative and describe how the alternative meets these requirements. When an ARAR is not met, the basis for justifying one of the six waivers allowed under CERCLA will be discussed. Specifics to be included are:

 Compliance with chemical-specific ARARs (e.g., maximum contaminant levels) — This factor addresses whether the ARARs can be met, and if not, whether a waiver is appropriate.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 18 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Compliance with location-specific ARARs (e.g., preservation of historic sites)
 As with other ARAR-related factors, this involves a consideration of whether the ARARs can be met or whether a waiver is appropriate.
- Compliance with action-specific ARARs (e.g., RCRA minimum technology standards) — It must be determined whether ARARs can be met or will be waived.

All ARARs will be listed and a determination will be made of whether each will be satisfied by the specific remedial alternative.

Several criteria are largely technical in nature and as such distinguish engineering refinement in remedial design. These criteria represent the primary factors upon which the detailed analysis is based. The overall approach for analyzing technological and engineering aspects will focus first on long-term effectiveness and permanence, specifically:

- Magnitude of residual risk.
- Adequacy and reliability of controls.

With respect to effectiveness in reducing toxicity, mobility, and volume through treatment, JEG will study the following factors:

- Treatment process used and material treated.
- Amount of hazardous materials destroyed or treated.
- Degree of expected reductions in toxicity, mobility, and volume.
- Degree to which treatment is irreversible.
- Type and quantity of residuals remaining after treatment.

With respect to short-term effectiveness the factors to be studied will be:

- Protection of community during remedial actions.
- Protection of workers during remedial actions.



K

A

Jacobe Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: **19** of **20**

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Environmental impacts.
- Time until remedial action objectives are achieved.

Aspects of the implementability of the remedial alternatives which will be analyzed are:

- Ability to construct and operate the technology.
- Reliability of the technology.
- · Ease of undertaking additional remedial actions, if necessary.
- · Ability to monitor effectiveness of remedy.
- · Ability to obtain approvals from other agencies.
- Coordination with other agencies.
- Availability of treatment, storage, and disposal services and capacity.
- Availability of necessary equipment and specialists.
- Availability of prospective technologies.

Cost aspects to be evaluated during detailed analysis will be:

- Capital costs.
- Operating and maintenance costs.
- Present worth cost.

3.2.3.5 <u>Acceptability</u>. Preliminary evaluations will be made on the acceptability of the remedial alternatives to the State of Maryland and to the community in vicinity of Beach Point. Acceptability is finally determined later on the basis of the comments made in review of the FFS report.

3.2.3.6 <u>Comparative Analysis</u>. A comparative analysis will be conducted to evaluate the relative performance of each alternative in relation to each specific evaluation criterion. This is in contrast to the preceding analysis in which each alternative was analyzed independently without a consideration of other alternatives.



(

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 3 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 20 of 20

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

The purpose of this comparative analysis is to identify the advantages and disadvantages of each alternative relative to one another so that the key tradeoffs the decisionmaker must balance can be identified.

3.2.3.7 <u>Potential Remedial Alternatives</u>. Some potential remedial alternatives for the groundwater operable unit that may result from a thorough screening and combining of general response actions, technologies and process options include the following:

- No Action
- Limited Action Continue to Monitor
- Pump, Treat and Discharge to King's Creek
- Pump and Transport Off-Site
- Pump and Discharge to POTW
- Pump, Treat and Discharge to POTW
- Insitu-Bioremediation

Where removal of DNAPL by excavation is not viable, remediation using in-situ removal methods is typically considered. In addition to bioremediation, other potential in-situ options will be evaluated including:

- Induced Volatilization
- Chemically-Enhanced Displacement
- Steam Displacement
- Chemically-Enhanced Dissolution

Induced volatilization or soil vapor extraction is currently the only in-situ method being applied DNAPL at sites with success; however, even this method has limited applicability and effectiveness. Consequently, at present, most DNAPL sites are using conventional engineering approaches, such as aquifer pumping wells or combinations of cut-off walls and source area groundwater pumping, to control offsite migration dissolved contaminants. It is important to note that the remediation strategy becomes one of long-term control versus actual site clean-up.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 4 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 1 Of 1

Focused Feasibility Study

4.1 PHASE I

At the conclusion of Phase I of the project, JEG will prepare a report. The report will be submitted to EMO within 90 calendar days of the collection of the final media sample and conclusion of all other activities. The format of the report will be as follows:

- Introduction
 - Report objective and criteria
 - Governing documents and regulations
 - Summary of report contents
- Field Activities and Sampling Methodology
 - Field measurements
 - Sample collection
 - Sampling handling, documentation, and custody
 - Laboratory analytical procedures
- Observations and Summary
 - Aerial Photography Investigation
 - Surface Geophysical Investigation
 - Physical Soil Boring Data, Geology, and Down-hole Geophysics
 - Water level data
 - Chemical Data
 - Data validation summaries
 - Recommendations
 - Groundwater levels and field parameter measurements
 - Summary of laboratory analytical data
 - Summary of recommended actions
- Appendix
 - Maps
 - Surface geophysics survey location map and EM and Seismic maps
 - --- Water level contour maps
 - Contaminant plume map or cross-section/source(s) map; shaded map of contaminated areas defined by chemical data, more than one map may be constructed if spacial and graphic constraints are encountered.

Results of the sampling program will be presented in the groundwater monitoring report. The report will contain descriptions of sampling procedures and methods used to accomplish the task in addition to taboratory methods employed for chemical analyses of groundwater samples. Summaries and recommendations will be supported with tabulated data and associated maps.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Weshington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 5 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 1 Of 4

5.0 PROJECT ORGANIZATION/MANAGEMENT Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

5.1 PROJECT STAFFING

Figure 5-1 shows the overall FFS project organization, the principal lines of communication for implementation, and the functional relationships within the contractor organization.

5.1.1 Key Roles

Designated key roles for the APG-DSHE work at APG-EA are described below:

- DSHE Project Officer. The Project Officer will be responsible for coordinating and monitoring DSHE activities at APG. Responsibilities will include technical management of the investigations and review and approval of all deliverables for technical content and compliance with DSHE guidelines and requirements.
- Battelie-EMO Program Manager. The Program Manager will be responsible for overall direction, coordination, technical consistency, and review of the entire effort. Responsibilities include:
 - Formal communications with the Project Officer;
 - Final approval and review of work plans, all project deliverables, schedules, contract changes, and labor allocations; and
 - Guiding the approach to particularly difficult problems which may arise.
- JEG Project Manager. The Project Manager is vested with the authority to select personnel assigned to the project. He or she may also alter personnel assigned to the project team and approve or disapprove all submissions and modifications to budgets and schedules. In addition, the Project Manager will interact with the EMO Program Manager, Task Managers, and the Project Team to ensure consistency of work products.

The Project Manager will be responsible for directing coordination among support personnel to ensure consistency of performance. Responsibilities include:

- Technical and project management interactions with DSHE;
- Effective day-to-day management of all task operations;
- Preparation of cost and performance reports with the assistance of key support personnel;
- Management of all funds for labor and materials procurement;
- Management of the team toward unified, productive project accomplishment; and
- Technical review of all task deliverables and integration of all work elements.

Jacoba Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 5 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 2 of 4

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

.

Section: 5 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 3 of 4

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

To supervise the day-to-day operations of the project, including the preparation and technical review of all project deliverables, and management of funds, he or she has the authority to allocate budgets among the work elements required for the project, and to establish and enforce milestones to ensure timely completion of the investigation. He, or she, may also approve or disapprove any labor or material charges and contributions to any technical deliverable.

Task Manager. The Task Manager will direct all field studies and investigations and the development of assigned reports. He or she will be responsible for the completeness of data gathered during the field program.

5.1.2 Support Roles

Important support roles to the project are:

- Site Health and Safety Coordinator (SHSC). The SHSC will be responsible for:
 - Preparing and reviewing the project Health and Safety Plan. He, or she, will ensure that all elements addressed in the Plan are consistent with the field sampling requirements.
 - To fulfill these responsibilities, the SHSC has the authority to recommend and require safety systems and procedures commensurate with defined hazards at a site, and to demane compliance with all safety-related SOPs and plans, and dismiss from the site any personnel not acting in a safe manner. In addition, he or she can directly intercede to stop any activities deemed to be a threat to personal health or property, and recommend/implement procedures for correcting safety problems. Responsibilities will also include identifying the required level of protection for personnel for any field procedures, requiring the utilization of qualified personnel trained in necessary safety procedures, and ensuring that adequate emergency procedures and response capabilities are available.
- QA Coordinator (QAC). The Quality Assurance Coordinator is responsible for all quality assurance and data/documentation control activities. The role of the QAC will be to:
 - Assure that all final project deliverables are based or defensible, documented data for which uncertainties can be quantified;
 - Assure that adequate QC documentation is provided for all project deliverables; and

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 5 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 4 Of 4

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

- Assure that all QC problems are resolved in an expeditious manner and brought to the attention of the technical managers.
- To fulfill these responsibilities, the QAC has the authority to demand quality performance from all project participants and recommend solutions to observed quality problems to the Task Manager.

5.2 PROJECT MONITORING AND CONTROL

The Project Manager and appropriate technical management support staff will provide oversight and control of project progress, schedule. and budget in accordance with the approved Work Plan. Their efforts will ensure that the Battelle-EMO Program Manager remains aware of work assignment status.

5.2.1 Monthly Progress Reports

Monthly technical and financial progress/status reports will be submitted to Battelle-EMO.

5.2.2 Monitor Quality Assurance

All technical review and oversight activities will be monitored under the Jacobs Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan for DSHE. The plan is based on the premise that the quality control process is more than review of deliverables. It starts as soon as a work assignment or task order is received and continues through the planning, execution, documentation and close-out of the project. Although the primary responsibility for quality work rests with the project manager, appropriate management and technical personnel will assist in meeting this requirement. The management and technical personnel will review deliverables and participate in critical decisions on an as needed bisis. Ongoing monitoring by Jacobs management their reoccurrence. The deliverable review process will ensure their solution and to prevent their reoccurrence. The deliverable review process will ensure that documents are technically sound, complete, and understandable. For budgeting purposes, it has been assumed that a field quality assurance audit will also be conducted by a senior Jacobs employee during the field investigation.



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Weshington Operations FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Section: 6 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 1 Of 1

6.0 REFERENCES

Focused Feasibility Study

1

1

•

- Bennett, Robert R. and Rex R. Meyer, 1952, "Geology and Ground-Water Resources of the Baltimore Area", <u>Bulletin 4</u>, Maryland Department of Geology, Mines, and Water Resources.
- Dingman, Robert J. et al., 1956, "The Water Resources of Baltimore and Harford Counties", <u>Bulletin 17</u>, Maryland Department of Geology, Mines, and Water Resources.
- Durda and others, 1991, unpublished paper, ICF Kaiser Engineers. Nemeth, Gary, 1989, "RCRA Facility Assessment Report, Edgewood Area, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland", Report No. 39-26-0490-90, U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency, Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD.
- Nutter, Larry J., 1977, "Groundwater Resources of Harford County, Maryland", <u>Bulletin 32</u>, Maryland Geological Survey.
- Nutter, Larry J. and Michael J. Smigaj, 1975, "Harford County Groundwater Information: Well records, Chemical Quality Data, and Pumpage", <u>Water Resources Basic Data Report No. 7</u>, Maryland Geological Survey.
- Southwick, D.L. and J.P. Owens. 1969, "The Geology of Harford County Maryland", Maryland Geological Survey.
- USAEHA (United States Army Environmental Hygiene Agency), 1977, "Water Quality Biological Study No. 24-0043-78, An Assessment of Surface Water, Edgewood Area", Aberdeen Proving ground, MD.
- USAEHA, 1986, Phase I Ground-Water Consultation No. 38-26-0490-86 Remedial Investigation Scoping Action Interim Report, Edgewood Area, Aberdeen, MD.
- USEPA, 1988, CERCLA Compliance with Other Laws Manual: Draft Guidance.
- USEPA, 1989, CERCLA Compliance with Other Laws Manual: Part II. Clean Air Act and Other Environmental Statutes and State Requirements.
- USGS (Unites States Geological Survey), 1989a, "Hydrology of the Canal Creek Area, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland", Open File Report 89-4021 and 89-387.
- USGS [Lorah, Michelie M. and J.S. Clark, authors], 1992, "Contamination of Ground Water, Surface Water, and Soli and Evaluation of Selected Pumpage Scenarios in the Canal Creek Area of Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland", Final Dratt of HGA.



4

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Acronyms

1,1-DCE	1,1-Dichloroethene
1,2-DCA	1,2-Dichloroethane
ACOM	Annotated Code of Maryland
ANL	Argonne National Laboratory
APG-EA	Aberdeen Proving Ground - Edgewood Area
BGS	Below Ground Surface
BNAS	Base Neutral Acids
CAG	Carcinogen Assessment Group
CC2	(N.N-dichloro-bis(2.4.6-trichlorophenvi)urea)
CFC	Chiorofluorocarbon
COC	Contaminant of Concern
CLP	Contract of Laboratory Program
CRDE	Chemical Research Development Engineering
CSM	Chemical Surety Material
DCE	Dichloroethene
DNAPL	Dense Non-Aqueous Phase Liquids
DQI	Data Center Quality Indicator
DQO	Data Quality Objective
DSHE	Directorate of Safety, Health, and Environment
EMI	Electromagnetic Induction
EMO	Environmental Management Operations
EOD	Explosive Ordnance Disposal
EPA	Environmental Protection Agency
FFS	Focused Feasibility Study
FS	Feasibility Study
HC	Hydrocarbon
HGA	Hydrogeological Assessment
HMX	Cyclotetramethylenetetranitramine [Explosive]
HSA	Hollow Stem Auger
ICF	ICF Kaiser Engineers
IMPA	Isopropylmethylphoshonic Acid
IRP	Installation Restoration Program
JEG	Jacobs Engineering Group
M1	Solvent Based Process Used In Clothing Impregnating Operations
M2	Water Based Process Used in ClothingImpregnating Operations
MCL	Maximim Contaminant Level
MPA	Methylphosphonic Acid
MGD	Million Gallons Per Day
MNRC	Maryiand National Resource Code
MPRSA	Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act
NESHAPs	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pilutants
NOAA	National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration
NPDES	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System



٠

,

0

Ľ



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

.

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

,

۰,

PCB	Polychlorinated Biphenyl
PCE	Perchloroethene
POTW	Publicly Owned Treatment Works
QAPP	Quality Assurance Project Plan
QA/QC	Quality Assurance/Quality Control
RCRA	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
RDX	Hexahydro-1,3,5-trinitro-1,3,4-triazine [Explosive]
RFA	RCRA Facility Assessment
RFNA	Red Furning Nitric Acid
SAP	Sampling and Analysis Plan
SDWA	Safe Drifting Water Act
SED	Sediment
STP	Standard Temperature & Pressure
SVOC	Semivolatile Organic Compound
SWDA	Solid Waste Disposal Act
SWMU	Solid Waste Management Unit
T-1,2-DCE	Trans-1,2-dichloroethene
TAL	Target Analyte List
TBC	To Be Considered
TCA	Trichloroethane
TCE	Trichloroethene
TCL	Target Compound List
TCFM	Trichlorofluoromethane
TCPU	N-chloro-bis (2,4,6-trichlorophenyl) Urea
TDS	Total Dissolved Solids
TIC	Tentatively Identified Compounds
TNT	Trinitrotoluene
TOC	Total Organic Carbon
UDMH	Unsymmetrical Dimethylhydrazine
UM	University of Maryland
UTM	Universal Transverse Mercator
USAEHA	United States Army Environmental Health Agency
USATHAMA	United States Army Toxic and Hazardous Material Agency
USGS	United States Geological Survey
VOC	Volatile Organic Compound
WP	White Phosphorus
WWI	World War I
WWII	World War II
WWTP	Wastewater Treatment Plant
XXCC3	Micronized Impregnite [N,N'-dichloro-bis (2,4,6-trichlorophenyl) Urea] with 10% Zinc
Oxide	



and the second second

X

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN SPPWP.FS

Revision No.: 0 Date: 7/6/93

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Appendix A — Data from Groundwater Monitoring Wells in Beach Point Area*

*Data derived from the USGS HGA

121

F

•

1

Į

Jecobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

.

DRAFT FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

300 3	N 2 - 8 2 8 4 8 - 8 N 2 3 3 2 8 4 8 - 8 N 2 3 3 2 8 4 8 - 8 N 2 3 3 3 3 3 4 8 - 1 8 8 N 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 7 7 6 3 N 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 7 7 6 3 N 3	
---	---	--

Tobio A-1

Wever Quality Parameters and Major fon Concentrations Desocied in Greundwater Montiscing Weits in the Beach Point Area

CAURCEONS: MUMOR TH

Househou XI. 1042

'

, **'**

5

Table A.I

9.0

Water Quality Personalare and Major ion Concentrations Detected in Greendwater Mechaning Wate In the Beach Point Area (continued)

MERI		8	1			Ś	1			Š	¥			CC3	-				CC-3					CC-34	<		Ů	CSM		
THE'	•		•	٠					•		Ę		-		•	-	*	Ĭ	e E	(MH)	•	Ē	4		-	-	<u> </u>		-	
ANALYSES"																									┢			-	\vdash	-
1		2	+	ł		:	1	ł	:	*	2	÷	1	:	1		2	:					•	—					<u>'</u>	
1	R	2	1	1		1	•	1	•		ŝ,	*	1	:		-	-		5	5				†,				<u>↓ </u>	1	
		:	1	1	3		ı	1	R.	\$	•	L.	1	:	1	•	*	। 9					8	2					1	
T	5	•	t	1	¥.	1	1	1			-	2	1		•	•		8	1			:	-	8	. .		<u> </u> .	<u> </u>	<u> '</u>	-
	2	2	1	1	1		1	t	Ŧ		3	1	1	1			•		ž				2	•	, ,				<u>'</u>	T
	8		ł	1			ı	1	8		,	2	1	8				і 8	<u>'</u>					8				+-		
	•	:	1	1		÷	,	,	-	¥.	-		1	÷		8	•	ı ō					8					<u> </u>	<u> '</u>	
\$	1	ı	i	1	ı	1	1	1	ŧ	-	,	1	1				•	ı	1						· ·		-	-	<u> </u>	
1	1	1	1	ŧ	ł	:	ι	1	1	R	*	8	ı	2			-	:	-		•	-	,	-	1				' .	
	Ę	ŧ	t	1	¥.	1	•	,	5	1		ı.	1		1 1	•	۱ ة	1	-				ē						<u> </u>	
778	1	•	١	ł	Ŧ	1	1	1	1	:		1	. •	Ţ	1	2	8	ž 8	न १	8	8	ş	•		1			- <u>-</u> -	1	ſ
							i i			İ	1			ł	1000	1								1	1		1	ł		1

المتركة والمتقالة فبعد المنعاب بالإداري المعدية وزاراتها المعدية وإلازتها المندب عارديتها

وأبه محتجه مختجو با حلالا فيروكينيه مد يعولا حجمه ويجبوه مجموع ا

CALIFORNIA MANAGER

۰.

.

D

Þ

.

Howmber 23, 1682

MELL		8	Į	Π		8				8	VIE			ŝ	1.00				8			Π		ö	ş			8	Ă	
	-	2	•	•	-	*	•	•	•		WX		-	N		•	-	~	(H)C	(MH)C	•	4 (F)	-	8		•	-		•	•
ANALYRES"																														
		-	-	1		1	<u> </u>	ŀ	1	1	•	1	,	'	•	,	-		8	8	3000	4200	1	+	,	-				
1	į	•	1	1	i	•		1	14. -	•	2.		1	•	•		*	•	۰ رو	•1	2,	21,	4 2 4	ŝ	-	1	;	1	,	1
I	•	:		-	•			-	*	••	:	•	,	;	'	_ '	:	:	•	:	;	ç	÷	;	ı	1	1	1	•	ı
1	•	•	-	-	1	1	,	١	ı	1	Å	2	•	;	١	1	,	,			3	1	1	t	,	1	1	,	1	
1	:	•	-	•	:	:	+	-	:	1	١	•		9.	۱	1	•	2	1	•	ı	1	•1	. 16	,	1	;		1	1
1	1		1		8	2	•	1	8	3	ert-	- 276		8	•	ı	8	8	016 -	. 310	. 270	< 270	220	908	1	•	•	-	1	
	••	-	•	1	7	:	•	۱	•	:	\$	•	1		•		ņ	^	\$:	3	ŝ	42	1	ı	1	1	-	,	L.
	•	•	١	-	:		•	-	•	:	ł	ş	1	:	'	,	:	÷	Ŗ	3	â	8	2	•	1	1	4	ı	I	1
ţ	•	•		-	2			-	•	-	R .	a.	ı	•	•	1	5	õ	1	8	a	22,	10	-	1	4	1	1	t	1
ļ		:		-	ş	•		-	į	:		•	١	•		,	8	•	4	2		•	8	11	1	1	ı	,	,	1
(;	•	•	-	•	•	1	-		•	;	,	1	•	١	١		•	·	•	ı	1	£ 3	8	I	ı	1	4	1	1
11			1	-	2	1	•	١	•	:	Ŗ	\$	ſ	1	,	ı	ŝ	¥	R	310	2	8	•	•	1	,	1	\$	1	,
1	••	:	1	-	•	:	-	1	•	:	:			:	,	,	?	:		•	;		ŗ	;	1	,	,	,	1	t
1	•	•	1	-	1	•	•	١	1	1	••	-	ľ	ı	1	۱	ı	,	*	• •	:		ł	1	1	Ţ	1	1	,	
ł	•	,	١	1	1	1	•	•	1	ł	ų	;		1	1	1	1	,	8	\$	ş		١	ı	1	ı	,	1	t	
1	8	8	1	-	1	2	١	•	1	2	- 45	ş	1	82	•	•	ş	ŝ	\$10	\$10	ş	\$	\$	818	,	-	1	1	1	ł

آیا میشدند. معجلی از است. گزارینهای دهندانید همی آسید در از از این این است کران این است کران این است کران این است در باز از این ا گزارینهای دهندانید همی است است در از از این این آسی کران این این این این این این کران این است در باز از این ا

CAURTONOMIC. ANYANA STR

,

Norrabel 23, 1632

~

I

I

l

I

l

D

D

Table A-2

Meas Cancantestene Dutected in Groundwater Montloring Wells In the Beech Peint Area

, **'**

Ø

•

•

Table A-3

. .

.

Concertrations of Valattie Organic Constituents Delected in Groundwater Nontexting Week CC-324, CC-324, and CC-328, 1 In the Basch Point Anal

		8	1			3	1			ġ	¥			CC-#	. .	
Į	•	-	•	•		•	•	•	-	•	ų.	•	-	•	•	*
		-	1	1	and set as	and che	I	ł	10/11/21	0/1/08	4/36/4	40/11/01	Ŧ	m/L/a	Ŧ	I
	-	R al	}]	34141	an/m/s	I	1	\$/0/07	98/12/0	1	1	ł	e/31/46	ł	I
	1	1		1	ł	-	1	١	,	1	•		1	,	:	-
					1	1	•					1	ŀ	,		-
	2	1	1	1	Ē	1	4		600 1	1	120	810	1	'	,	,
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	ı	ş	1	I	ı	1	1	1	1
		R	1	٤	•	÷	-	t	ş	,	t	1	ı	÷	:	
1	:		•	1	••	-30	,	1	198.	. 10	1	10	1	9 8 ,	1	1
]	:	•	1	•	•	. 38	1	1	• • • •	.30	1	ş	1	• 40	-	:
ļ	:	•	-	-	••	ş	1	1	.00	. 30	1	98,	'	0 8 y		,
	•		-	1	••	•••	1	1	•2.	. 20	01.	•••	-	- 00	,	,
		••	•				1	4	R.	. 30	• 13	•	,	•••	,	!
		1	1	1	2		-	ı	991.	•	с ·	:	'	*	-	-
		ŝ	•	•	1	:	1	ı		2	06.	دب.	,	0	,	
	•••		-	1	•••	\$	1	1	3		R'	2	, ,	8	1	1
		8	,		• • •	-30	1	1	• 26	3	:		,			;
			1		•••	*	,		- 100	9	R ·	•	,	•	:	1
				I		•	1		ġ.	04		;	1	. 40	,	1

CULLED STRATES IN MARKED STR

•

,

·

1

l

)

8

•

₽

۲

E-N olde A-3

•

•

Concentrations of Valuatio Organic Constituents Detected in Groundwater Monitoring Wells CC-324, CC-328, CC-338, and CC-338.1 In the Bookh Peini Area estimated

1		8				8	!			8	1	ſ		Š	;	ſ
1	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	-	•	4ule	•	-	-	•	•
	11/13/10	6/7/10	1	1	10/12/00	04/4/0	ł	1	12/17/06	0/2/00	4/36/90	10/11/00	ł	1 1/10	I	ł
	1/5/10	.	ł]	0/6/	e/m/m]	Burneles	(18/82	0/14/00	1	-	1	-/31/1 4	1	1
-	•		•	-		••	•	1	3	2	:	2	1.	•	•	1
	41	•	1	-			1	1	R.	ľ	ĝine	ŝ	,			1
	:	••	1	t	•1•	•••	۱	1	Ř	• • •	R .	419	1	•••	-	1
	:	•	L	ł			1	1	- 22 -	201	- 65	411		•••	1	1
They check	•••	•	2	1	c 1-	414	1	•		91 -		• 3 •	-	31.	-	-
L) ++ Direction	1	ı	ı	•	E	ı			;		•••	- 10	-	•	ı	I
	1	,	ł	1	۱	ı			-	1	. 71	•••	1	:	,	1
c, c.c. for any second second	١	I	I	1	1	1	•	3	-	1	R .	449	5	1	,	1
	1	1	1	1	ı	ł	۱	1	'	1		419	ı	,		1
	•	-	•	1	1	1	'	,	1.	1	• •	42 8	3	1	1	1
	l	1	1		۱	1	1	1	ı	•	с ·	40.	1	•	'	4
	1	ı	1	ł	1	•	1	•	1	1	\$	111	1	1	ı	1
	١	•	1	•	•	1	•	1	1	t	8	-71	1		1	1
	1	1	1	ł	۱	1	1	1	•	١	*	891	1	I	1	1
.) 0.0000000	1	4	1	ł	1	1	•	1	1	۱	\$	¢ 10	1	1	ı	1
	٠	١	1	•	١	1	1	1	1	1	2	982	1	1	ł	
1.4 Dummerum	-	1	١	1	•	1	1	1		1	\$	į	1	1	-	1

÷

C. Bracketter (J. Brackets S.B.

*

۰`

5

Concentrations of Volutile Organic Constituents Detacted in Groundwater Meeting Weils CC-324, CC-328, CC-324, and CC-338.1 In the Basel Petri Area examined

		8	1			8				ġ	EM.			3	-	
Į	4	•	•	•		•	•	•	-	•	ŧ	•	-		-	•
BALANCERS BATT	1412/100	91/U9	1	1			1	1	**/20/80	*///•	es/ca/o	44/11/41	ł	w/u/o	1	I
	enter:	ant suits	ł	}	gadail a		1	ł	10/0/0	•#/ns/e	,		ł	er/u/o	l	I
ann nac ⁶																
	ŧ						,			1	:		,	 ,		

1864. J spimered upto becade per power tur tattas delector kind. P. sonpit als dirlet. • 1415 Per. • propri Kun ارام میکند. همچن از اکستان مطرح پیشد از میکنده مصرف از کستانده د

•

CURRENTIAL BUILDED TO

Ī man bes as undersul after some adj

Texts A-3

14

Concontrations of Valentia Organic Constituantia Oblactiod in Groundwater Internationary wears CC 334, CC 344, and CC 354. In the Basch Petri Area"

						The same of case of the same of	The second s	The second s								
1				8	t					ż	1			1-33	1	
Ĩ	-	••	£	•	ŗ	•	.\$	ţ	•	-	•	•	•	•	-	•
	MA(2370)	017190	an/178		el TRAM		and onlas	a4)11/88	*****	ani ci a	1	3	em/41/81	1	1	1
	- (5,000			-	,	ł	,	•	10/01	-/si/m]	}	10/07	}]	}
Antice state																
Comerce, but a support projekt		-	-	:	:		•		,	1	ı	t		1	1	3
Shere haven in the project	1		1	1	ļ,	5	!	1	97	,		1	16	1	1	1
	!		1		1				\$	ı	ı	1	:		1	ł
l'agent Autopri, lette projekk vakuates	1	1	1	2	ł	·			2	8	1	1		1	1	1
1	ł	••-	÷		،	•			•		,	,	••	1	-	1
Ĩ	28.	89-	96-	1	,	• • •	• # •	1		•••	•	•		-	•	1
	+ 3 864	44.	•••	-	۱		•	•	185-	- 30	1	1	••	-		1
Constant		•		41		. 16	•••	-		•	,	ł	•	Į	1.	1
	- Ma	49-	- 16	*	¥ .	-58	• * *	t .		•••		1		1	-	1
(menter	1	3	1	G .	4.7	6 A B	2	- 66	:	:	1	1	14	ł	-	1
	į	•	•	-36	49-	· E3	46-	.4.	-910		1	1	•	1	1	1
L.F.Z.A Turazzunantara	ł	Į	Į		•2•	Į	ļ	919-	•	R	1	1	• •		,	
the formation		44		\$	5	1		Ŧ	•••		1	1	•••	1		t
1.2 Chimmenus	44	-	:		8.	9.9. 1	:	2	- 180	61	1	ł	414	1	1	1
1. P. Davidson	, N	*	• •	45 2	• •	•••		2.	-966	••	t	1		1	1	1
		1	1	-		1	1	ş								

 .

2

, **'**

its Desected in G CC-33A Cim ĉ

												ſ				
i i				Ĩ	ľ	•	\$	ţ		.		•	-	•	•	•
	New Yes	erite.			245		and and an	48/11/20	44/21/15	**/17*	1	1	12/11/20	ł	1	1
	1474	afthere.			ľ	1	,	l	10/07	0/31/10]	Burnple	(3/1/1	1	l	ļ
and sold a																
	1	1	5	1	ţ	***		ą	1	9	•	•	:	1	,	1
	ł	ļ	\$			\$		*		44-	•	1	•	۱	1	ı
· / vers de recenters		:	1			Ŗ	1	ŧ		•	1	1	•	1	t	1
	į	•		#	e	:	:	•		2	1	ı	•••	t	3	-
·	в		,		:		**	•		1	•	-	,	1	1	1
A.S. Name Martin and and	,	Ĺ		Ę	ş	44-	34-			1		1	1	1	1	1
S.R.P. Hattananthana						48-		• •	•	1	ł	2	1	1	1	1
Contraction of the second s	'			•••	•	•••	***	4×	•	ł	1	1	1	1	1	-
·			,	3	e 48			44 -		1	١		1	F	1	-
			,		44 .	, *				•	1	'	,	1	-	-
		1		•	*		•••	, FB		1	1		ı	1	t	1
Commence.				*		•	:	# -	•	1	,	ł	t	,	1	,
						:	9		Ľ	,		1	1	1	,	1
Bertenteriere						ę		8		-	1	•	1	1		1
·				**	•			¢\$		1	,	· .	1	۱	1	1
					,			1		ł	1	1		;	1	1

•

Table A-4

and the second and the second second as the second
Ũ

Concent: Yone of Volatifs Organic Constituents Detected in Groundwater Monitoring Wells CC-398, CC-34A, and CC-35A in the Beach Point Area (continued)

TIGAN				8	84					Ś	1			Ü	1	Γ
and t	-	•=	Ę	1. 6134	a ficiale	۰	ş	ŧ	-	-	•	•	-	•	•	
CANANA CANA	11/22/28	e/1/te	94/1/8	*)/w/*	esteries.	48/11/41	40/11/01	16/33/00	**/41/81	**/1/*	Ŧ	ł	**/11/81	1	1	ł
ANALYBOR BATTE	salat.	erinie		1	1		1		1/0/01	01/12/0	I	ł	19/1/1	I		
	1	1	1	.	-	,	1				1	1				
	2							Contraction of the local division of the loc				and the second se				

ned (see Fable A 3), 4, sample was divided, + , less than, + , grader than, 000000 jase Table A St. 1 supplies for organ ł ¹PL, supress service, PL, holicanon analysis perifs multi-r, and -r, compound on analysis fau | ²Plin servic reports for pyL, policypeus po Boy urboy urbos

1. · · · · CURACIPOLICA PAR

TABLE A-5

CONCENTRATIONS OF SEMIVOLATILE ORGANIC CONSTITUANTS AND ORGANOSULFUR COMPOUNDS DETECTED IN GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELL CC-33B IN THE BEACH POINT AREA¹

Phase	2	3(H)	3(HR)
Sampling Date	9/7/88	4/26/89	4/26/89
Analyses ²			
Bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate	72	-	-
Butyrolactone#	71	_	-
1-Methyl-2-pyrrolidinone	6		_
2-Ethylhexanoic acid#	6	8	4
Ethenyi cyclobutane#	3	-	
Diethylborinic acid, methyl ester#	5		-
Hexanedioic acid, dioctyl ester#	450	_	
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane#		600	800
Unknown (4.61 min.)*	8		-
Unknown (5.63 min)*	10	_	
Unknown (5.69 min.)*	2	-	
Unknown (5.77 min.)*	3		-
Unknown (6.42 min.)*	39	-	_
Unknown (6.50 min.)*	12		-
Unknown (7.64 min.)*	9		-
Unknown (13.4 min.)*	6		
Dithianet	-	3.0	3.2

'[H. halocarbon analysis performed; R. replicate sample; #, tentatively identified organic compound with estimated concentration; *, unknown compound identified by peak retention time with estimated concentration; †, compound detected by organosulfur analysis (performed in Phase 3 only).]

²[All results reported in mg/L. (milligrams per liter).]

Q

\$ 13

Section: 6 Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 5 of 1

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Appendix B — Argonne National Laboratory Draft Geophysics Work Plan**

the second

Q

.

0

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

S. N. M. Co. 4 .

6-5 .

October 29, 1992

TO: Francine Gordon Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. FROM: L.D. McGinnis ES-372

SUBJECT: Attached Draft Point Geophysics

This is a draft geophysics workplan. We are exploring SOP's for seismic and electrical geophysics with EPA and ASTM. Please get back to me on Workplan modifications.

LDM/ma Attachunent

ARGONNE NATIONAL LABORATORY

> cr: D.E. Edgar/ANL K.L. Brubaker/ANL

Ţ

Beach Point Geophysics Workplan for FFS

October 29, 1992

30.0 FUL

Background

150 July 1

A Geophysical Workplan designed to assist a sampling and data collection program in the Beach Point area of Aberdeen Proving Ground is described. The Work Plan objective is based upon discussions with Jacobs Engineering personnel. Recommendations on how the objective is to be resolved are based on experience of the ANL geophysics team in the Canal Creek and Westwood areas, geologic logs for USGS boreholes 32, 33, and 34, and a literature search. It is assumed that geophysical properties of sediment in the Canal Creek and Westwood areas are similar to those at Beach Point.

Objective

Objective - Determine hydrostratigraphy from geophysical measurements down to the base of the surficial aquifer beneath Beach Points

Approach

No geophysical technique has been tried on the Beach Point. In order to determine the hydrostratigraphy down to the base of the surficial initial lying at a depth of approximately 60 ft, it is proposed that a geophysical calibration provide subsurface hydrostratigraphic control beneath Gunpowder Neck and adjacent water. A tribute staff have conducted electrical sounding and profiling and seismic refraction sounding to be Chail Creek area of the Edgewood section of Aberdeen Proving Grounds. The LISGS has uccessfully profiled the surficial aquifer using marine, single channel seismic menotypoints of the result.

Following completion tenne citation for profile, short profiles will be run to areas of concern in the time frame provided time stipched schedule (Figure 1).

Four techniques will complied, timely:

- 1. Setting floct
- 2. Seismiour metic
- 3. Electrical Editor Sounding
- 4. Resistivity Profiling

Because of the success achieved with high-resolution seismic reflection profiling offshore, a non-intrusive land reflection profile will be shot along the axis of Beach Point along with several profiles orthogonal to the axis. Profiles will be tied to existing boreholes to establish subsurface correlation. It is expected that reflectors will be seen at lithologic boundaries, the Pleistocene/Cretaceous unconformity, base of the surficial squifer, and at the basement unconformity. The seismic array will be optimally designed to provide information between the surface and 100 ft. However, data will be recorded to times adequate to map basement which is expected to lie at depths of approximately 500 ft.

A continuous seismic refraction profile will be run along the axis of Beach Point. Shallow seismic refraction soundings over the Building 103 Dump indicate velocities in the soils above water table average about 300 m/s (i.e., near that in air). Below the water table, velocities increase

to 1870 m/s at the base of the surficial aquifer (Figure 2). From the work of Hughes (1991), a refractor was anticipated at the boundary between the surficial aquifer and the upper confining layer. Velocity data provided by the refraction profile will aid in the conversion of reflection times to depths.

Electrical depth soundings will be taken at 50 ft intervals along the axis of Beach Point. Four experimental electrical depth soundings were made by the ANL team during building decommissioning studies. Soundings were made too far apart to attempt correlations between them or with borehole data. However, extremely large variations in resistivities were observed which suggests that electrical techniques will be very useful in characterizing subsurface lithologies and hydrogeochemistry beneath Beach Point. A prominent electrical boundary was observed at the unconformity separating the lower Cretaceous sediments from crystalline basement at a depth of 50 m in the Westwood area (Figure 3).

A continuous, horizontal electrical profile will be run along the axis of Beach Point. Horizontal and vertical gradients in salinities and contaminant concentrations beneath Beach Point may also produce electrical gradients. Electrical profiling of the subsurface may therefore provide information on subtle changes in hydrogeochemical provides. Horizontal electrical gradients were measured by ANL staff using resistivity method in the Sanal Creek area. Argonne has developed a variation of the resistivity method using a object were studie. Octapod. The Octapod is favored over the GEONICS EM-34 for horizontal measurements because traverses can be made at equivalent speeds, it can be operated by one or two technicians, depending on the length of the Octapod array, versus three for the EM-34, and is similar to interference caused by extraneous radio-wave *i*requencies. Although the EM-34 can be perated over more rugged terrain than the Octapod, this poses no advantage at Beach Point becker in the surface is a cut-grass, estuarine spit of land with little relief.

It is expected that in a brackish, estua in continuous in painting that at Beach Point, natural soil and water salinities will play a more dominantical in paintivity and conductivity of the subsurface than contaminants. However, natural salinities due to the proximity of Chesapeake Bay will produce an electrical halo sub-parallel in the shortine. It is probable that differentiation of natural conditions, from those artifically induce, by contaminants, is possible.

Task Schedule

A tentative estimate on the required for geophysical measurements is given in Figure 1. Following testing of the four techniques listed, the time committed to a specific task may change in order to optimize the pattern objective.

2

2

(Weeks)
Schedule
Geophysics
each Point
Estimated B

A Article	
	1 A- A A
Inches a contract	1 b- 4 Rais West Dass Reduction Reduction Reduction
Same Arrent	
	HOTE: The Party colors give the contex of partic brokend in the field and only.

-=.= - 64

い

.

-30-192 FRI 11:40 ID: φ¢,

TEL NUT



· · · · · ·

· · · ·


Revision No.: 0 Date: 7/6/93

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

ł

1

I

I

ł

L

1

1

Appendix C — K-V Associates Flowmeter Logging Program.

ŀ

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

DRAFT FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN



K-V Associates, Inc. ANALYTICAL SYSTEMS

21 MAIN STREET + P.O. BOX 574 + FALMOLTH, MASSACHUSETTS 32541 + (508, 540-8561 + FAX, 508; 457 452)

October 27, 1992

Mr. Wayne Mandell Mr. Dave Stein Jacobs Engineering 1212 N.Y. Avenue, NW Suite 1050 Washington, D.C. 20005 FAX: (202) 371-2241

RE: Groundwater Flow Metering, Aberdeen Proving Grounds, MD

K-V Associates, Inc. is pleased to present this proposal for services associated with conducting a groundwater flow metering program at the Aberdeen Proving Grounds site in Aberdeen, MD.

This project will require measurements of groundwater flow rates and directions using a KVA Geoflow, Hodel 40 flowmetar and horizontal flow measurements in one well using the KVA Model 90 Borehole Plowmeter. From our telephons conversation of October 27, 1992, K-V Associates, Inc. (KVA) understands that the project will require horizontal flow and velocity measurements in six (6) existing 4-inch diameter PVC monitoring wells and the possibility for similar flow measurements in an additional ten wells. The existing wells are installed into an upper aquifer of sandy deposits (both well sorted and poorly sorted sands) sytending below the surface to approximately 60 feet. An aquitard (confining unit) exists below the 50 foot depth. The average depth to groundwater at the site is 13 to 14 ft.

The existing wells are completed with 10-foot screens. A vell cluster (triplet) in which one well is screened at 55 -65 feet, an intermediate well is screened at approximately 40 -50 feet and an upper well is screened from 10 -20 feet will be flowmetered as a part of this study. The deep well (existing) will be flowmetered in the cased, upper zone to determined vertical flow characteristics. The remaining three existing wells are all screened in the upper water table zone, from 10 -20 feet. The contaminants of concern at the site include VOCS, SVOCS and TCLP Metals. The groundwater gradient at the site is estimated to be very shallow.

Revision No.: 0 Date: 7/6/93 ٠

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study

Appendix D — ICF Risk Assessment Plan.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations DRAFT FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN



ICF KAISER ENGINEERS INC 9300 LEE HIGHWAY FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 22031-1207 703/934-3300

November 11, 1992

Francine Gordon Jacobs Engineering 1212 New York Avenue, NW Suite 1050 Washington, D.C. 20005

Francine:

..

Enclosed is a hard copy and disk copy (Wordperfect 5.1) of our risk assessment plan to be included in the Beach Point groundwater Focussed Feasibility Study Workplan. At the request of Wayne Mandell, I have prepared the risk assessment plan as a stand-alone document that can be incorporated as an appendix to your workplan. Please give me call if you need anything else. Also, could you please send me a draft copy of the full workplan once it is available for distribution? Thanks.

Sincerely,

Judi Durda

John Wrobel (APG-DSHE) John Paul (APG-DSHE) Larry Thebeau (ICF KE)

PROPOSED PLAN FOR CONDUCTING A RISK ASSESSMENT FOR BEACH POINT GROUNDWATER

ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND, MARYLAND

Prepared for:

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1212 New York Avenue Washington, D.C.

Prepared by:

ICF Kaiser Engineers Clement Division 9300 Lee Highway Fairfax, Virginia

November 1992

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Sec. Name

. 13.fr:

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
2.0	SELECTION OF CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN	1
3.0	RECEPTOR CHARACTERIZATION 3.1 Ecological Receptors 32 Human Receptors	2 2 2
4.0	EXPOSURE ASSESSMENT 4.1 Ecological Exposures 4.2 Human Exposures	2 2 3
5.0	TOXICITY ASSESSMENT 5.1 Aquatic Toxicity 5.2 Human Toxicity	3 3 4
6.0	RISK CHARACTERIZATION	4
7.0	REFERENCES	4
	 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0 6.0 7.0 	 1.0 INTRODUCTION

ì

Page

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This workplan has been prepared by ICF Kaiser Engineers (ICF KE) to address potential risks associated with known groundwater contamination at Beach Point, located in the Edgewood Area of Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. The workplan has been prepared at the request of the U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency (USATHAMA) and Aberdeen Proving Ground Directorate of Safety, Health, and Environment (APG-DSHE) under Task Order Number 4 of Contract DAAA15-91-D-0014. The approaches outlined in this workplan are consistent with the overall approaches outlined in the general Technical Plan (ICF KE 1992) for risk and biological impact assessment at APG.

Beach Point is a peninsula located immediately adjacent to the mouth of Kings Creek, a major tributary to the Bush River that drains a large number of the chemical storage and research and development areas at APG. As the former location of propellant, smoke, and pyrotechnic testing activities, as wells as chemical protective clothing-impregnating operations, the Beach Point site is known or suspected to be contaminated with various industrial solvents and military-related compounds, and may be impacting the aquatic environment in nearby Kings Creek and the near-shore areas of the Bush River.

This workplan outlines the approach to be used to evaluate potential risks associated with chemical contamination in groundwater at the Beach Point site. The risk assessment will focus on potential impacts in aquatic life inhabiting nearby areas in Kings Creek and the Bush River, because aquatic species are the receptors potentially at greatest risk from exposure to chemicals released from groundwater. Potential human health risks associated with exposures to chemicals released to surface water from groundwater will be evaluated qualitatively.

The risk assessment will consist of five principal steps: (1) identification of chemicals of potential concern: (2) receptor characterization; (3) exposure assessment; (4) toxicity assessment; and (5) risk characterization. The basic components of each of these steps and the proposed approach for conducting the Beach Point groundwater risk assessment are outlined below.

2.0 SELECTION OF CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN

The first step of the risk assessment will be to review the results of available environmental sampling, as well as other site-specific information to identify chemicals of potential concern for detailed study in the risk assessment. Factors to be considered in selecting a chemical of potential concern include the chemical's relatedness to the suspected source or to past activities at Beach Point and the relationship of the sample chemicals. Data collected by USGS (1989a,b) as part of a hydrogeological study of the Canal Creek area will be used along with data to be collected by Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Jacobs) as part of the current study to select chemicals of concern. Based on the information collected to date, the principal chemicals of concern in groundwater at Beach Point are volatile organic chemicals and some metals.

3.0 RECEPTOR CHARACTERIZATION

After the chemicals of potential concern have been selected, the populations (receptors) that could be exposed to chemicals in groundwater will be identified.

3.1 Ecological Receptors

For this assessment, it will be assumed that the primary receptors of concern in the Beach Point area are aquatic species that could be exposed to chemicals released from groundwater to surface water and sediment.

The principal aquatic receptors for this assessment are assumed to be those occupying groundwater discharge areas near Beach Point. Benthic and water-column invertebrates, including clams, isopods, and insects, are probably common in the area. A variety of freshwater and estuarine fish also occur in the area. Fish species that have been caught in Kings Creek include carp (Cyprinus carpio), channel catfish (Ictalurus punctatus), menhaden (Brevoortia tyrannus), drum (Sciaenidae), minnows (Cyprinidae), white perch (Morone americana), yellow perch (Perca flavescens), and gizzard shad (Dorosoma cepedianum). Other fish species likely include blueback herring (Alosa aestivalis), alewife (Alosa pseudoharengus), bay anchovy (Anchoa mitchilli), atlantic silverside (Menidia menidia), and hogchoaker (Trinectes maculatus). Most of these species probably use Kings Creek and the Bush River near Beach Point as a nursery area.

3.2 Human Receptors

Human use of the Beach Point area is limited. The closest human receptors occupying the area on regular basis are workers at the sewage treatment plant, located near the southern portion of the Beach Point peninsula. Commercial and recreational fishing from boats occurs in the Bush River (no fishing occurs in Kings Creek). The nearest residents are in the Canal Creek area, located one to two miles west of Beach Point. There are no water supply wells located on Beach Point.

4.0 EXPOSURE ASSESSMENT

After the potential receptors have been identified, the pathways by which they may be exposed to chemicals of potential concern will be identified. All complete exposure pathways will be evaluated quantitatively or qualitatively in the risk assessment.

4.1 Ecological Exposures

The principal exposure pathway of concern in the Beach Point area is release of chemicals in groundwater to surface water with subsequent exposure of aquatic life. Aquatic life living along and adjacent to the Beach Point shoreline in the groundwater discharge zone could be exposed to chemicals present in surface water via respiration (i.e., uptake over the gills) or via direct ingestion of surface water, although the latter route is not likely to result in significant exposure relative to respiration. Sessile and less mobile benthic species are susceptible to the greatest impacts as these species cannot move out of the contaminated area to reduce exposures. Fish are less susceptible to large exposures as these species can move out of the contaminated area. Further, because they generally range over a much larger area than benthic species, fish are likely to spend a much smaller proportion of their total time near the Beach Point shoreline.

Aquatic life also may be exposed to chemicals released from groundwater that sorb to sediments. The primary pathways by which sediment exposures can occur is via direct contact and ingestion of sediment. Exposure via respiration can occur as chemicals are released (desorbed) from sediments. Benthic species are most susceptible to exposures as these species live in sediment and thus, can be in constant contact with contaminants.

4.2 <u>Human Exposures</u>

No pathways exist by which human populations could be exposed directly to chemicals in groundwater or to groundwater chemicals released to surface water or sediment. As discussed above, There are no water supply wells at Beach Point. Additionally, neither Kings Creek nor the Bush River downgradient of Beach Point are used for drinking water supplies. Further, no swimming or wading occurs in the area.

Persons in the area could be exposed to chemicals that have volatilized to air as most of the organic chemicals detected in groundwater to date will partition to air once released to surface water. Persons fishing in the Bush River near Beach Point and persons working at the sewage treatment plant could be exposed via inhalation to chemicals that have volatilized from surface water and dispersed to these receptors. Based on the groundwater and surface water sampling data collected to date, such exposures are not likely to be large, given the relatively low concentrations of most volatile organic chemicals and the distance to potential receptor points. However, these exposures will be evaluated qualitatively in the risk assessment.

Chemicals present in surface water could accumulate in aquatic life, resulting in exposures of humans ingesting aquatic life from the area. Food-chain exposures are expected to be of minimal concern in the assessment because volatile organic chemicals (the principal chemicals of concern in the groundwater) do not accumulate to any appreciable degree in aquatic life. Exposures via this pathway will be evaluated qualitatively in the risk assessment.

5.0 TOXICITY ASSESSMENT

Chemicals of potential concern will be characterized with respect to their toxic effects in the selected receptor species.

5.1 Aquatic Toxicity

The results of bioassays conducted on-site with Beach Point groundwater will be used to assess the potential aquatic toxicity of chemicals of potential concern. The principal data to be used will be those obtained from the following groundwater assays: (1) Selenastrum capricornutum growth assay: (2) Ceriodaphnia dubia survival and reproduction assay; (3) Pimephales promelas survival and growth assay: and (4) Microtox assay. These data will be supplemented by the results of the Microtox assays conducted on sediment pore water collected from the groundwater discharge zone in Kings Creek to estimate potential toxic effects in aquatic species inhabiting nearby surface waters.

Bioassays conducted with 100% groundwater and sediment pore water will be used to evaluate potential aquatic toxicity directly in the area of groundwater discharge. This will represent an evaluation of the "worst-case" scenario. Bioassays conducted with diluted groundwater will be used to evaluate potential toxicity in areas of Kings Creek and Bush River that are outside of the immediate groundwater discharge area.

5.2 Human Toxicity

The potential human toxicity of the chemicals of concern will be discussed qualitatively in the risk assessment. Therefore, no quantitative criteria will be presented. General EPA reference documents (e.g., IRIS, health assessment documents) will be used as the source of qualitative toxicity information.

t

1

6.0 RISK CHARACTERIZATION

Potential aquatic life impacts will be characterized based on the results of the site-specific bioassays, as well as information (or estimates) on the size and location of the groundwater discharge zone and the likely fate, transport, and dilution of chemicals discharged from groundwater to Kings Creek and Bush River. These results will be used along with chemical analytical data to identify (to the extent possible) the particular chemicals or chemical groups that are driving the toxic response. The focus of the risk characterization will be potential impacts on the aquatic populations and communities of Kings Creek and Bush River, rather than on localized impacts on individuals inhabiting the discharge zone. This approach is consistent with EPA's general guidance regarding the scope and objectives of ecological assessments (see EPA 1989a,b).

Potential human health impacts will be evaluated by qualitatively comparing estimates of exposure with toxicity information.

7.0 REFERENCES

- Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 1989a. Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund. Volume II. Environmental Evaluation Manual. Interim Final. EPA/540/1-89-001. Washington, D.C. March
- Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 1989b. Ecological Assessment of Hazardous Waste Sites: A Field and Laboratory Reference. EPA/600/3-89/013. Corvallis, Oregon. March.
- ICF Kaiser Engineers (ICF KE). 1992. Risk and Biological Impact Assessment at U.S. Army Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Technical Plan. Volume I. Draft Final. July.
- United States Geological Survey (USGS). 1989a. Hydrogeology of the Canal Creek Area, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Water Resources Investigations Report 89-4021.
- United States Geological Survey (USGS). 1989b. Inorganic and Organic Ground-water Chemistry in the Canal Creek Area of Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Water Resources Investigations Report 89-4022.

Revision No.: 0 Date: 10/5/93 Page: 3 Of 1

Beach Point Test Site, APG-EA, Maryland

Focused Feasibility Study



5



Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. Washington Operations

FINAL PROJECT WORK PLAN

6-3



MARYLAND INSTITUTE FOR AGRICULTURE AND NATURAL RESOURCES AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION Wye Research and Education Center

November 2, 1992

Ms. Francine J. Gordon Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1212 New York Avenue, N.W., Suite 1050 Washington, DC 20005

Dear Francine:

Enclosed in a copy of ASTM Designation E 1391-90 which is a standard guide for working with sediments. To my knowledge, there is no EPA SOP for isolating pore waters. Section 11 describes several methods for collecting pore water. We use the centrifugation method described in the second paragraph on page 1144. The standard guide also contains recommendations for sediment holding times (Table 2; page 1142).

I recommend that you consider running EPA 7-day chronic toxicity tests with both an invertebrate and fish for the 10 samples at Beach Point. It appears that estuarine organisms should be used since the Bush River and the lower part of Kings Creek are low salinity areas. It is also my understanding that the groundwater is high in dissolved solids. The two EPA recommended species that probably should be considered are the mysid and a silverside. As I discussed, if estuarine species are used, it will be necessary to add salt to the test medium.

If we have a little time, we could consider two freshwater organisms which can tolerate low salinities. This would avoid having to add large amounts of salt. I will look into the species issue and get back to you.

If you need more information, please let me know.

Sincerely yours,

Dennis T. Burton, Ph.D. Senior Research Scientist

Enclosure

- 14101 827-8056 . FAX: 4101 827-9039

PO BOX 169 . QUEENSTOWN MARYLAND 21630



MARYLAND INSTITUTE FOR AGRICULTURE AND NATURAL RESOURCES AGRICULTURAL EXPERIMENT STATION Wye Research and Education Center

September 28, 1992

U.S. Army Aberdeen Proving Ground Directorate of Safety, Health, and Environment STEAP-SH-EE ATTN: Michael Kanowitz Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD 21005

RE: Information for Beach Point Biomonitoring Study

Dear Mr. Kanowitz:

Enclosed in a brief statement of work which explains the study we will be conducting for USARBDL this GFY93 at Beach Point. As discussed in our meeting on September 14, 1992, with Vicky Cwiertnie, we would like to explore the possibility of discharging a maximum of #1 gallon of groundwater (well 33b) mixed with #2 gallons of dechlorinated APG tap water to the APG-EA Wastewater Treatment Plant. The enclosed document shows the concentrations of contaminants that are expected to be present in the groundwater from well 33b at Beach Point.

Please call me after you have considered my request so that I will know how to proceed. I appreciate your help

Sincerely yours,

Dennis T. Burton, Ph.D Senior Research Scientist

cc: T.R. Shedd V. Cwiertnie

Enclosure

Pri BON 100 0 OF FENETHIN MARYLAND 21450

- 2. Chronic toxicity tests
 - a. Green algal growth test- The potential toxicity (96-h EC50 for growth) of the groundwater to <u>Selenastrum</u> <u>capricornutum</u>) will be determined three times at 2month intervals by the procedure EPA/600/4-89/001.
 - b. Daphnid survival and reproduction test- The chronic toxicity of the groundwater to <u>Ceriodayhnia dubia</u> will be determined three times at 2-month intervals using the procedure EPA/600/4-89/001. All tests will be started with neonates <24 h old.</p>
 - c. Fathead minnow survival and growth test- The chronic toxicity of the groundwater to fathead minnow (<u>Pimephales promelas</u>) will be determined thrue times at 2-month intervals using the procedure EPA/600/4-89/001. All tests will be started with larvae <24 h old at the start of the test.</p>

3. Mutagenicity

Genotoxicity potential will be determined using the <u>Salmonella</u>/mammalian-microsome reverse mutation assay (Ames test). The assay will be performed three times at 2-month intervals on both raw groundwater and diluent water. The assays will be conducted by Hazelton Washington, Vienna, VA, on both unconcentrated and concentrated (10X via XAD-2 resin extracts) samples of the groundwater and diluent water.

4. Teratogenicity

Developmental toxicity will be determined by the 96-h frog embryo teratogenesis assay-<u>Xenopus</u> (FETAX) using ASTM Designation E 1439-91. FETAX will be performed three times at 2-month intervals under flow through conditions using <u>Xenopus laevis</u> stage 8 blastulae to normal stage 11 gastrulae at the initiation of the test.

5. Carcinogenicity

The Japanese medaka (<u>Oryrias lations</u>) will be used in a 6month continuous assay to test for environmental pollutants in the groundwater which may induce neoplasms. Both unexposed and embryos initiated with disthylnitrosamine will be used. Procedures developed by USABRDL will be followed for all phases of the study.

6. Chemical analyses

Comprehensive chemical analyses including the priority

pollutants will be performed before the biomonitoring studies are initiated on both the groundwater and dechlorinated tap water. Since it is anticipated that the majority of groundwater contaminants are volatile organic compounds (see attached list), the comprehensive chemical analysis of the groundwater may be modified to focus on the VOCs for the 6-month study. This would allow us to make more frequent analyses of the VOCs during the study.

The following routine water quality analyses will be taken daily on all carcinogen and diluent water tanks: dissolved oxygen, pH, and temperature. In addition, alkalinity, total ammonia-nitrogen, hardness, and conductivity will be measured twice a week in all tanks. Total residual and free available chlorine will also be measured two times per week in the dechlorinated diluent water tanks.

Additional Tasks

Dr. Dennis T. Burton, Principal Investigator, will be responsible for project coordination, writing of reports, and quality assurance. USABRDL approved SOPs will be used for all phases of the study conducted both on-site and off-site. Quarterly technical progress reports will be submitted to USABRDL during the project.

TABLE 2.2*

ANALYTICAL RESULTS FROM USES GROUNDWATER TESTING

Ì

BEACH POINT	SITE - ABERDEEN U RESULTS (mg/1)	PROVING GROUND)	(heck mic's
CHEMICAL	RANGE OF CONCENTRATIONS	ARITHMETIC MEAN CONC.*	NO. OF TIMES DETECTED PER NO. OF SAMPLES
Toluene	<.4 - 2	• • 0.2	1/12 Sour A 10:2
Senzene	<.5 - <25**	0	0/12 5
ithylbenzene	<.4 - <20**	0	0/12 Fau 5 20 M
Chlorobenzene	<.6 - 2***	0.25	2/12 97
Carbon Tetrachloride	<1.5 - <75**	0	0/12 5?
thloroform .	2.0*** - 66	16.9	9/12
ethylene Chloride	3.5 - 14	5.9	9/12
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	<1.4 - 9,030	2,244	7/11 ?
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	2.0*** - 30	18.8	5/12
1,2-Dichloroethane	<1,5 + <75**	0	0/12
1,1-Dichloroethane	<1.0 - <50**	0	0/12
[etrachloroethylene	<1.5 - 64	43.6	5/12
Irich loroethylene	1.7 - 935	345.5	9/11
l,1-Dichloroethylene	<1.9 - <95**	0	0/12
.2-Trans-Dichloroethylene	<1.6 + 610	347.0	4/12
inyl Chloride	<1.3 - <65**	Ŭ	0/12

 Samples with results below detection limit assumed to have 0 concentration.

** Sample was diluted.

.*** Estimated concentration, prak present, but concentration below reported detection limit.

Table 2.2 was taken from the following report: Proposed plan for Beach Point Site Aberdeen Proving Ground, Naryland. July 1990. R&R International, Inc., Aberdeen, ND.

Designation: E 1391 - 90

UN - Justan

Standard Guide for Collection, Storage, Characterization, and Manipulation of Sediments for Toxicological Testing¹

This standard is issued under the fixed designation E 1391; the number immediately following the designation indicates the year of original adoption or, in the case of revision, the year of last revision. A number in parentheses indicates the year of last reapproval. A superscript epsilon (a) indicates an editorial change since the last revision or reapproval.

Scope

3

1 **1**

13

131

19

3:

¥

GL .

1.1 This guide covers procedures for obtaining, storing, paracterizing, and manipulating saltwater and freshwater diments, for use in laboratory sediment toxicity evaluaions. It is not meant to provide guidance for all aspects of ediment assessments, such as chemical analyses or moniming, geophysical characterization, or extractable phase/ actionation analyses. Some of this information might, lowever, have applications for some of these activities. Methodological considerations which affect toxicity studies will be reviewed and the apparent consensus approach for met methods discussed. Currently, the state-of-the-art is in its infancy, and the development of standard methods is not fasible; however, it is crucial that there be an understanding af the significant effect which these test methods have on ediment quality evaluations. It is anticipated that recommended test methods and this guide will be routinely indated to reflect progress in our understanding of sediments and how to best study them.

1.2 There are several regulatory guidance documents (1-16)³ concerned with sediment collection and characterization procedures, which might be important for individuals performing Federal or State agency-related work. Discussion of some of the principles and current thoughts on these approaches can be found in Dickson et al., 1987 (17).

1.3 This guide is arranged as follows:

Scope		L
Referenced Decurrence		2
Terminology		3.
Summary of Guide		. 4
Separation and Use		· •
Interferences	·.	4
Appersive		2 🕈
Safety Hazarda		
Sampling and Transport	۰.	•
Sionar		IŬ
Collection of Internitial Water		11
Characterization		: 12
Manufaction		- 13
Quality Assurance	•	14
Report		15
Keinenna		16

1.4 Field collected sediments might contain potentially baic materials and thus should be treated with caution to minimize occupational exposure to workers. Worker safety

must also be considered when working with spiked sediments containing various organic or inorganic contaminants. or both, and those that are radio-labeled. Careful consideration should be given to those chemicals which might biodegrade, volatilize, oxidize, or photolyze during the test period.

1.5 This standard does not purport to address all of the safety problems associated with its use. It is the responsibility of the user of this standard to establish appropriate safety and health practices and determine the applicability of regulatory limitations prior to use. Specific hazard statements are given in Section 8.

2. Referenced Documents

- 2.1 ASTM Standards
- D1129 Terminology Relating to Water³
- D4387 Guide for Selecting Grab Sampling Devices for Collecting Benthic Macroinvertebrates*
- D4822 Guide for Selection of Methods of Particle Size Analysis of Fluvial Sediments (Manual Methods)⁵
- D4823 Guide for Core Sampling Submerged, Unconsolidated Sediments⁵
- E 729 Guide for Conducting Acute Toxicity Tests with Fishes, Macroinvertebrates, and Amphibians*
- E 380 Practice for Using the International System of Units (SI) (the Modernized Metric System)*
- E 943 Terminology Relating to Biological Effects and Environmental Fate⁴
- E 1023 Guide for Assessing the Hazard of a Material to Aquatic Organisms and Their Uses*
- E 1295 Guide for Conducting Three Brood Renewal Toxicity Tests with Ceriodaphnia dubia
- E 1367 Guide for Conducting 10-day Static Sediment Toxicity Tests with Marine and Estuarine Amphipods'

3. Terminology

3.1 The words "must," "should," "may," "can," and "might" have very specific meanings in this guide. "Must" is used to express an absolute requirement, that is, to state that the test ought to be designed to satisfy the specified condition, unless the purpose of the test requires a different design. "Must" is only used in connection with the factors that directly relate to the acceptability of the test. "Should" is

* Innual Book of ASTM Standards, Vol 11.02

This pude is under the partition of ASTIA Committee E-17 on Biological Efforts and Environmental Fate and a dir dotter responsibility of Subcommittee EAT O) on Sediment Tourology

Current educes approved Nov. 30, 1990. Published Jasuary 1991. ³ The boldface sumbers in parenthems seler to the list of references at the end يوانينه فنبأت أأ

Annual Book of ASTM Standards, Vol 11.01.

^{*} enrivel Book of ASTM Standards, Vol 11.04.

^{. (}annual Book of ASTM Standards, Vol 14 02.

E 1391

	TABLE 1 Summary of E	lottom Sempling Equipment ⁴	
Device	Use	Advantages	Deserventarces
Ruorocarbon plastic or Glass Tube	Shallow wadzable waters or deep waters if SCUBA available. Soft or semi-consolidated deposits.	Preserves layering and permits historical study of sediment deposition. Rapid-samples immediately ready for laboratory shipment. Minimal risk of contaministion.	Small sample size requires repeaters sampling.
Hand Corer with removable Fluorocarbox plastic or glass liners	Same as above except more consolidated sediments can be obtained.	Handles provide for greater ease of substrate penetration. Above advantages.	Careful handling necessary to prevent spillage. Requires removal of times before rapetitive sampling. Sight rate of metal contamination from based and core curter.
Box corer	Same as above	Collection of large sample undisturbed allowing for subsampling.	Hard to handle.
Gravity corers, that is, Phieger Corer	Deep lakes and rivers. Sens- consolidated sediments.	Low risk of sample contamination. Meintains sediment integrity relatively well.	Careful handling necessary to avoid sediment spillage. Small sample, requires repetitive operation and removel of liners. Time consume
Young Grab (Rucrocarbon plastic- or kyner-lined modified 0.1 m ² ven Venni)	Lakes and menne areas	Eiminetes metal contaminetion Reduced bow wake	Expensive. Requires which.
Exman or Box Drudge	Soft to semi-soft sediments. Can be used from boat, bridge, or pier in waters of verious depths.	Obtains a larger sample then coring tubes. Can be subsampled through box lid.	Possible incomplete jaw closum and sample loss. Possible shock were which may disturb the fines, Mage construction may introduce contaminents. Possible loss of "Snes" on retnevel.
PONAR Grab Sampler	Deep takes, rivers, and estuanes. Useful on sand, sit, or day.	Most unversal grab sampler. Adequate on most substrotes. Large sample obtained intact, permitting subsampling	Shoot were from descent may defuse "fines". Possible incomplete coaure of jaws results in sample loss. Possible contamination from matter frame construction. Sample must be further prepared for analysms.
BMH-53 Pelgn Cover	Waters of 4-6 it deep when used with extension rod. Soft to semi- comparised deposits	Piston provides for greater sample reserved	Cores must be extruded on see to other contenersMetal barres estroduce res of metal contenersion
Van Vean	Open lakes, overs, and estuanes. Liberks on send, sill, or clay	Adequate on most substrates, Large sample oblamed mlact, permitting subsampling.	Shock were from descent may desure "fines" Possible incomovel closure of jows results in sample loss. Possible contamination from results frame construction. Sample must be further prepared for analysis.
844+60	Samping ensing waters from a fixed platform	Streambred configuration allows sampling where other devices could not achieve proper chemistich	Possible contermation from measi conversion. Subsempling attack Not effective for sampling the sectiones.
Person Only Sengter	Deep lakes, rivers, and excitate Upold on most substrates	Large simple: can panetrate most sufficients	Heavy, may require which his cause to to parmit subsampling. All other disabilishingss of Elizant and Para-
Shain Grab Bartatar	Used privarily in matter waters and large entry lipits and rearrants	Sample bucket may be opened to permit subsampling. Recars fine graned tactments effectively.	Possible contamination from many construction: Heavy, May require winch
Orange-Peak Grab Simil-Archityre Oran	Deep lakes, rivers, and selfusites Useful on most subsmalls.	Designed for sampling hand subsidies.	Loss of lines. Heavy-may returns winth: Possible metal contamination
Scener, Drey Duckers	Various anwomments depending on dependent and substrate.	Inergenants, easy to herite.	Loss of fries on non-evel through wear column

"Commission represent subjective analyzingent.

used to state that the specified condition is recommended and ought to be met in most tests. Although a violation of one "should" is rarely a serious matter, violation of several will often render the results questionable. Terms such as "is desirable," "is often desirable," and "might be desirable" are used in connection with less important factors. "May" is used to mean "is (are) allowed to, ""can" is used to mean "is (are) able to," and "might" is used to mean "oculd possibly." Thus, the classic distinction between "may" and "can" is preserved, and "inight" is never used as a synonym for either "may" of "can."

3.2 Definitions—For definitions of terms used in this guide, refer to Guide E 729, Terminology E 943, and Terminology D 1129, and Guide D 4357; for an explanation of units and symbols, refer to Practice E 380.

4. Summary of Guide

4.1 This guide provides a review of widely used methods to collect, store, characterize, and manipulate sediments for

which testing. Where the science permits, recommendaing are provided on which procedures are appropriate, while identifying their limitations.

Significance and Use

S.1 Sediment toxicity evaluations are a critical componet of environmental quality and ecosystem impact assessents, used to meet a variety of research and regulatory discrives.

5.2 The manner in which the sediments are collected, ored, characterized, and manipulated can greatly influence to results of any sediment quality or process evaluation. Adtensing these variables in a systematic and uniform manner at aid interpretations of sediment toxicity or bioaccumulation results and may allow comparisons between studies.

Laterferences

-6.1 Maintaining the integrity of a sediment environment during its removal, transport, and testing in the laboratory is entenely difficult. The sediment environment is composed of a myriad of microenvironments, redox gradients, and other interacting physicochemical and biological processes. Many of these characteristics influence sediment toxicity and bioavailability to benthic and planktonic organisms, microjul degradation, and chemical sorption. Any disruption of this environment complicates interpretations of treatment effects. causative factors, and in situ comparisons. For additional information see Section 9.

7, Apparatus

7.1 A variety of sampling, characterization, and manipubaion methods exist using different equipment. These are gviewed in Sections 9 through 14.

7.2 Cleaning-Test chambers and equipment used to prepare and store dilution water and stock solutions should be cleaned before use. New and used sample containers should be washed following these steps: (1) non-phosphate drengent wash, (2) triple water rinse, (3) water-miscible organic solvent wash, (acetone followed by pesticide grade becane (2, 8), (4) water risse, (5) acid wash (such as 5% concentrated hydrochloric acid), and (6) triple rinse with denouzed-distilled water. Altering this cleaning procedure might result in problems. Many organic solvents might leave a film that is insoluble in water (Step 3). A dichromatesulfuric acid cleaning solution can generally be used in place of both the organic solvent and the acid (Steps 3 through 5), but it might attack silicone adhesive. (See 9.10 for cleaning during sample collection.)

8. Safety Hazarda

8.1 Many substances can adversely affect humans if adequate precautions are not taken. Information on toxicity to humans (18) and recommended handling procedures of toxicants (19) should be studied before tests are begun with my contaminant or sediment. Health and safety precautions should be considered before beginning a test.

8.2 Field-collected sediments might contain a mixture of proper handling to avoid human exposure is important. Therefore, skin contact with all test materials and solutions should be minimized by such means as wearing appropriate protective gloves, especially when washing equipment or putting hands in dilution water over sediments, or into sediments. Proper handling procedures might include sieving and distributing sediments under a ventilated hood or an enclosed glove box, enclosing and ventilating the toxicity test water bath, and using respirators, aprons, safety glasses, and gloves when handling potentially hazardous sediments. Special procedures might be necessary with radiolabeled test materials (20) and with materials that are, or are suspected of being, carcinogenic (19).

8.3 Disposal of sediments, dilution water over sediments, ind test organisms containing hazardous compounds might pose special problems. For tests involving spiking sediments with known toxicants, removal or degradation of the toxicant(s) before disposal is sometimes desirable. Disposal of all nazardous wastes should adhere to the requirements and regulations of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and any relevant State or local regulations.

* 10 11

1.1%

ļ

)

9. Sampling and Transport

9.1 Sediments have been collected for a variety of chemical, physical, toxicological and biological investigations. These collections have been made with both a series of grab sampling devices and core samplers (see Table 2 of Guide D 4823). The advantages and disadvantages of the various collection methods have been previously reported (3, 4) and are summarized in Table 1. All sampling methods disturb the sediment integrity to a degree. For purposes of sediment toxicity evaluations it is important to obtain sediments with as little disruption as possible, to allow for realistic laboratory evaluations of in situ conditions. Choosing the most appropriate sediment sampler for a study will depend on the sediment's characteristics, the efficiency required, and the study objectives. Several references are available which discuss the various collection devices (3, 4, 21, 22, 23). The efficiency of these samplers for benthic collections have been compared and in general the arab samplers are less efficient collectors than the corers but are easier to handle, work in beavier seas, often require fewer personnel and are more easily obtained (21, 23-31).

9.2 The principal disadvantage of dredge samplers varies: common problems are shallow depth of penetration and presence of a shock wave that results in loss of the line surface sediments. Murray and Murray (32), however, described a dredge usable in heavy seas which quantitatively samples the top 1 cm of sediment and retains fine materials. Other grab samplers that quantitatively sample surface sediments have been described by Grizzle (33). The depth profile of the sample may be lost in the removal of the

9.3 Studies of macroinvertebrate sampling efficiency with various grab samplers have provided useful information for sempling in sediment toxicity and sediment quality evaluations. The Ekman dreige is the most commonly used sampler for benthic investigations (...1). The Ekman's efficiency is limited to less compacted, fine-grained sediments, as are the corer samplers. The most commonly used corer is the Kajak-Brinkhurst corer. In more resistant sediments the Petersen, PONAR, and Smith-McIntyre dredges are used most often (21). Based on studies of benthic macroinverte-

TABLE 2	Sampling Containers, Preservation Requirements, and
	Holding Times for Sediment Samples ⁴

Contaminant	Container [®]	Preservation	Holding Time
Andr	P, G	Cool, 4°C	14 days
Abrahoshy	P.G	Cool, 4°C	14 days
Ammonia	P.G	Cool. 4°C	28 days
Suita a	P.G	Cool. 4*C	28 days
C. J. Martin	P.G	Cool. 4*C	28 days
C. Játa	P.G	Cooi, 4°C	48 h
Auto	P.G	Cool. 4°C	48 h
THU BUS Slovete Nitote	P.G	Cool, 4°C	28 days
Ninta	P. G	Cool. 4°C	49 h
All and Greate	G	Cool. 4°C	28 days
Oreania Carboo	P.G	Cool, 4°C	28 days
Metals		Card ATC	40.5
Chromium VI	P, G	COO, 4°C	
Mercury	P, G		6 cardina
Metals, except above	P. G		
Organic Compounds			
Extractables (including phina-ates, atrosamines	G, teflon-lined cap	Cool, 4*C	7 days (until extraction)
organochlonne pesticides. PCB's artroaromatics, isophorone, Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons, haloethers, chlornated burknearbons and TCDD)			extraction)
Extractables (pnenols)	G, tefion-lined cap	Cool, 4°C	7 days (until extraction) 30 days (after extraction)
Purgables (halocarbons and	G, teflon-lined septum	Cooi, 4°C	14 days
Purgables (acrolein and	G. teflon-lined	Cool, 4°C	3 d a %s
	PG	Cool, 4°C	48 h
Pesticides	G. teffon-lined	Cool, 4*C	7 days (until extraction)
			30 days (after extraction)
	9.6	Cool 4°C	28 days
Phenois	6	Cool 4°C	48 h
Phosphorus (elemental)	5	Cool 4"C	28 days
PTIOSPHORUS, TOTAL	C. Jakon, Snort	Cool 4°C	7 davs (until
compounds	Capital Capita		extraction)
	•		30 deys (afte

A Taken from EPA 600-4-84-075. See also Ref. 85.

Polyemylene (P) or Glass (G)

brate populations, the sediment corers are the most accurate samplers, followed by the Ekman dredge, in most cases (21). For resistant sediments, the PONAR dredge was the most accurate and the Petersen the least (21). A comparison of sampler precision showed the van Veen sampler to be the least precise; the most precise were the corers and Ekman dredge (21).

9.4 Many of the **mattern list** first with drates samplersmetargely overcome with the orers the best course for most sediment studies are hand-held fluorocarbon plastic, high density polyethylene, or glass corers (liners), or large box-corers. The corers can maintain the integrity of the sediment surface while collecting a sufficient depth. Furthermore, the box core can be sub-cored or sectioned at specific depth intervals, as required by the study. The box corer, unfortunately, is large and cumbersome; thus, it is difficult to use. Other coring devices which have been successfully used include the percussion corer (34) and vibratory corers (35-37).

9.5 Corer samplers also have several limitations. More corers do not work well in sandy sediments; dredge samplers or diver-collected material remain the only current alternatives. In general, corers collect less sediment than dredge samplers which may provide inadequate quantities for some studies. Small cores tend to increase bow waves (that is disturbance of surface sediments) and compaction, thus altering the vertical profile. However, these corers provide better confidence limits and spatial information when multiple cores are obtained (21, 24, 38–41). As shown by Rutledge and Fleeger (42) and others, care must be taken is subsampling from core samples, since surface sediments might be disrupted in even hand-held core collection. They recommend subsampling in situ or homogenizing core

تناهوا

14):

1 m

Ì

di.

ġ.

eft

SIL.

15

dir.

¥ 11

<u>io</u>ic

\$1

ø

10

200

¢ و

لعو

360 2051

52) 52)

ģ

201

304

D

966 1856

12

115

Q.

*

200

2017

4.

21

9.

ma

<u>۵</u>0.

л¢

20'

177

2

120

2.4

20

200

Vdđ

tor.

34

DU

7.0 Studies of sediment toxicity, interstitial waters, microbiological processes, or chemical fate probably will require from sampling to best maintain the complex integrity of the sediment. When obtaining cores from shallow waters one must ensure that the vessel does not disturb the sediments prior to sampling (30). Most of the studies in the literature employed grab samplers although box corers (43-45), gravity corers (46) and hand collection (47-49) methods are reported with increasing frequency. For additional information of various core types see reference USEPA (4).

9.7 Subsampling, compositing, or homogenization of sediment samples is often necessary and the optimal methods will depend on the study objectives. Important consider. ations include: loss of sediment integrity and depth profile, changes in chemical speciation by means of oxidation and reduction or other chemical interactions; chemical equilib. rium disruption resulting in volatilization, sorption, or desorption; changes in biological activity; completeness of mixing; and sampling container contamination. In most studies of sediment toxicity, it is advantageous to subsample the inner core area (not contacting the sampler) since this area is most likely to have maintained its integrity and depth profile and not be contaminated by the sampler. Subsamples from the depositional layer of concern, for example, the top 1 or 2 cm should be collected with a nonreactive sampling tool, such as, a polytetrafluoroethylene-lined calibration scoop (50). Samples are frequently of a mixed depth but a 2-cm sample (51) is the most common depth obtained. although depths up to 40 ft have been used in some dredging studies. For some studies it is advantageous or necessary to composite or mix single sediment samples (16, 50). Composites usually consist of three to five grab samples. Subsamples are collected with a nonreactive sampling scoop and placed in a nonreactive bowl or pan. The composite sample should be stirred until texture and color appear uniform.

9.8 Due to the large volume of sediment which is often needed for toxicity or bioaccumulation tests and chemical analyses, it dight not be possible to use subsampled cores because of sample size limitations. In those situations, the investigator should be aware of the above considerations and their possible affect on test results as they relate to in situ conditions.

9.9 Assessment of in situ sediment toxicity or bioaccumulation is aided by collection and testing of reference and control samples. For purposes of this guide, a reference sediment is defined as a sediment possessing similar characix.

itics to the test sediment but without anthropogenic staminants. Sediment characteristics, such as particle size ribution and percent organic carbon, should bracket that the test sediment. If there is a wide range of test sediment the reference sediment characteristics should be in an ermediate range unless the test species is affected by ticle size. The appropriate ASTM guides for marine and hwater invertebrates should then be consulted to deterthe particle size requirements of the test species. It is frable that reference sediments be collected from the me aquatic system, located close to, and have similar hysical, chemical, and biological characteristics to the test stiment. In some situations, the reference sediment might toxic due to naturally occurring chemical, physical, or icogical properties. For this reason, it is important to also -- 7 the toxicity of control sediments. The reference sediment results might be analyzed as either a treatment or as a metrol variable, depending on the study objectives. For purof this guide, a control sediment might consist of natufor artificially prepared sediments of known composition of consistent quality that have been used in prior sediand of consistent quality that have been used in prior sedi-ment toricity tests or culturing, and for which baseline data wists which shows they do not cause toxicity. Control sedi-ments have been successfully used in toxicity evaluations ments have been successfully used in toxicity evaluations (52).

th

i in

n Sij

12

They.

CONE:

100

licro.

aun ...

Nentes

line

lavity

C. IDC

ation . -

it.

f sedii

ibode

Ndere

ofile

uilib

n or

ss of

mont

imple

this

Benth

inpics.

e top

pling

ation

but a

lined.

deine

iry to

hpos-

npics

laced

bluot

1 . **S**

often

inical

cores

the

i and

sim

ł

and

repot

1.10

and

l' the 🚲

Wide 32

9.10 When collecting sediment grab samples, it is imporiont to clean the sampling device, scoop, spatua, and mixing lowis between sample sites. The cleaning procedure can follow that outlined in Section 7 or the following (53): 1) soap and water wash, 2) distilled water rinse, 3) methanol inse, 4) methylene chloride rinse, and 5) site water rinse. Waste solvents should be collected in labelled hazardous waste containers.

9.11 In most cases the transport conditions for the samples were not specified in the references reviewed. Where conditions were specified, the sediments were usually transported whole, in both plastic, polyethylene (54-56), and glass (48, 49, 57) containers and transported under refrigeration or on ice (48, 49, 51, 57-62).

9.12 Collection, transport, storage, and test chamber maerial composition should be chosen based on a consideration of sorption effects, sample composition, and contact time. For example, in sediments where organics are of concern, brown borosilicate glass containers with fluorocarbon plastic lid liners are optimal, while plastic containers are recommended for metal samples. Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTF) or high-density polyethylene containers are relatively inert and optimal for samples contaminated with jultiple chemical types. Additionally, polycarbonate containers have been shown not to sorb metal species (63). idditional information on sample containers, preservation, storage times and volume requirements, in regards to chemical analyses, are available in other guidance documents (3-6, 10, 16). In many cases these criteria are applicable to toxicity test chamber requirements.

10. Storage

10.1 Containers for storage were generally not specified although it was assumed that the "ontainers were the same as the transport containers, where specified, and were generally polyethylene (see 9.12). Where sediments contain volatile compounds, transport and storage should be in air-tight PTF or glass containers with PTF-lined screw caps. For further information on storage requirements for chemical analyses see Table 2 and EPA, 1982ab.

10.2 Drying, freezing, and cold storage conditions all affect toxicity (17, 64-69). Often the storage time of sediments used in toxicity tests was not specified and where specified ranged from a few days (70) to one year (55). Storage of sediments after arrival at the laboratory was generally by refrigeration at 4°C (54-56, 58-62, 67, 70-73). Significant changes in metal toxicity to cladocerans and microbial activity have been observed in stored sediments (68, 74). Recommended limits for storage of metal-spiked sediments have ranged from within 2 days (64) to 5 days (70) to 7 days (75, 76). A study of sediments contaminated with nonpolar organics found that interstitial water storage time did not affect toxicity to polychaetes when samples were frozen (77). Cadmium toxicity in sediments has been shown to be related to acid volatile sulfide (AVS) complexation (78). When anoxic sediments were exposed to air. AVS were rapidly volatilized. AVS is apparently the reactive solid phase sulfide pool that binds metal, thus reducing toxicity. If a study objective is to investigate metal toxicity and the sediment environment is anoxic, then exposure to air might reduce or increase toxicity due to oxidation and precipitation of the metal species or loss of acid volatile sulfide complexation. It is generally agreed that sediments to be used for toxicity testing should not be frozen (17, 67, 69, 70, 75, 79).

10.3 Although risking changes in sediment composition, several studies elected to freeze samples (51, 67, 80-84). Fast-freezing of sediment cores has been recommended for chemical analyses; however, this alters sediment structure and profile distortion occurs (42). Freezing has been reported to inhibit oxidation of reduced iron and manganese compounds (81). It has also been recommended for stored sediments which are to be analyzed for organics and nutnents (85).

ents (85). The storage (86, 187), even when stored at in situ temperatures (87). Coagulation and precipitation of the humic material was noted when interstitial water was stored at 4°C for more than one week (88). Oxidation of reduced arsenic species in pore water of stored sediments was unaffected for up to 6 weeks when samples where acidified and kept near 0°C, without deoxygenation. When samples were not acidified, deoxygenation was necessary (89).

10.5 In summary, sediments for toxicity tests and chemical analyses are typically refrigerated or placed on ice in polyethylene containers during transport. If, in addition, samples are to be used for chemical analyses, then the appropriate container should be used as described above. The storage conditions should be refrigeration at 4°C and under anoxic conditions if appropriate (10, 16, 90). It has been shown that sediments can be stored at 4°C for up to 12 months without significant alterations in toxicity (91). Limits to storage time before testing, therefore, appear to be a function of both sediment and contaminant characteristics. While it is prudent to complete the testing of sediments with a minimum of storage time (probably less than 2 weeks) this may not be possible for any number of reasons.

11. Collection of Interstitial Water

1

i

-

1

His solation of sediment interstitial water can be accomplithed by several methods: centrifugation, squeening, seetion, and equilibrium dialysis. In general, methods for recovery of relatively large volumes of interstitial water from sediments are limited to either centrifugation (57, 88, 92, 93) or squeezing (94-97). Other methods, such as suction (98), gas pressurization (50), in situ samplers (99), and equilibration by using dialysis membrane or a fritted glass sampler (100-103), do not produce large quantities of interstitial water. In the case of the dialysis, sufficient time must be allowed to ensure that the sample has come to equilibrium with the interstitial water. The suction and dialysis equilibrium methods are most useful for laboratory studies. Some pore water constituents, for example, dissolved organic carbon or dimethylsulfide, might be significantly affected by the collection method (99). Other constituents, such as salinity, dissolved inorganic carbon, ammonia, sulfide, and sulfate, might not be affected by collection methods providing oxidation is prevented (99). If sediments are anoxic, all steps involved in sample processing might need to be conducted in inert atmospheres to prevent oxidation of reduced species (99, 104, 105).

1112-If interstitial water is collected by centrifugation and filtration, then effects on the interstitial chemistry need to be considered after centrifugation. Centrifugation followed by 2 µm filtration yielded similar metal concentrations to dialysis methods (106). However, filtration with glass fiber or plastic filters is not appropriate in some cases and has been shown to remove nonpolar organics (107). Centrifugation at 7600 × g with glass contact only was shown to be superior to filtration methods (107). Other studies have produced contrary results. recommending filtration with polycarbonate filters (98, 108). Filtration is normally conducted to remove particles with a 0.45-um pore size, however 0.20-um or smaller pore size membranes have been recommended (81). Removal of all becteria and colloidal materials might require filter pore sizes of less than 0.2-µm. Immediate collection of interstitial water is recommended since chemical changes might occur even when sediments are stored for short periods at in situ temperatures (87) (see 10.4).

12. Characterization

12.1 The characteristics that have been most often measured in sediments are moisture content, organic carbon or volatile matter content, and particle size. When attempting to characterize a sediment, quality assurance should always be addressed (3, 4, 16). Sediments, by their nature, are very heterogenous; they exhibit significant temporal and spatial heterogeneity in the laboratory and in situ. Replicate samples should be analyzed to determine the variance in sediment characteristics and analytical methods. Sediment characterization will depend on the study objectives and the contaminants of concern, however, a minimum set of characteristics should be included which are known to influence toxicity and will aid data interpretation: in situ temperature, particle size distribution, moisture or interstitial water content, ash-free weight, organic carbon (determined by titration or combustion) pH. Et. scid volatile sulfides, ammonia, and dation exc) ange capacity. Many of the methods of characterization have been based on analytical techniques for soils

and waters and the literature should be consulted for further information (15, 23, 109, 110).

12.2 The moisture content of sediments is measured by drying the sediments at 50 to 105° C to a constant weight (23).

12.3 Volatile matter content is often measured instead of and in some cases in addition to, organic carbon content as measure of the total amount of organic matter in a sample. This measurement is made by ashing the sediments at his temperature and reporting the percent ash free dry weight (7, 111, 112). Although the exact method for ashing the sample is often not specified, the normally accepted temperature in $550 \pm 50^{\circ}C$ (16, 23).

12.4 Carbon fractions which may be of importance is determining toxicant fate and bioavailability include; total organic carbon (16, 113-115), dissolved organic carbon (80); dissolved inorganic carbon, sediment carbonates, and repotive particulate carbon (116, 117). Reactive particulate carbon is that portion which equilibrates with the aqueous phase. The organic carbon content of sediments has been measured by wet oxidation which is also useful for the determination of the organic carbon content of water (118). Organic carbon analyses have also been conducted by utration (119), modification of the utration method (120), or combustion after removal of carbonate by the addition of HCl and subsequent drying (73).

12.5 Particle sizing of sediments can be measured by numerous methods (15, 121, see Guide D 4822) and the most effective method is dependent on the particle properties of the sample (122). Particle size distribution is often determined by wet sieving (2, 15, 16, 23, 123). Particle size classes might also be determined by the hydrometer method (124, 125), the pipet method (15, 126), settling techniques (127), X-ray absorption (123, 126) and laser light scattering (128). The pipet method may be superior to the hydrometer method (129). To obtain definite particle sizes for the fine material, a Coulter (particle size) counter method might be employed (130-131). This method gives the fraction of particles with an apparent spherical diameter. Another potential method for determining the particle size distribuuon of a very fine fraction is through the use of electron microscopy (132). The collection technique for the very fine materials can result in aggregation to larger colloidal structures (132-135). Comparisons of particle sizing methods have shown that some produce similar results and others do not. These differences might be attributed to differences in the particle property being measured, that is, the Malvers Laser Sizer and Electrozone Particle Counter are sizing techniques, and the hydrophotometer and SediGraph determine sedimentation diameter based on particle settling (132, 136-138). It is preferable to use a method which incorporates particle settling as a measure, as opposed to strictly sediment sirine.

12.6 Various methods have been recommended to determine bioavailable fractions of metals in sediments (7%, 139-141). One extraction procedure, cation exchange Grpacity, provides information relevant to metal bioavailability studies (199). Amorphic oxides of iron and manganese, and reactive particulate carbon have been implicated as the primary influences on metal sorption potential in sediments (81, 140, 142-144). Measurement - act science withde

VS) and divalent metal concentrations associated with S extraction provides insight into metals availability in robic sediments (78). Easily extractable fractions are removed with cation displacing solutions, for exmple, neutral ammonium acetate, chloride, sodium acetate, pitrate salts (145). Extraction of saltwater or calcareous diments, however, is often complicated by complexation sects or dissolution of other sediment components (141. (6). Other extractants and associated advantages and disaduntages have been recently discussed (141, 144, 147, 148). some extractants which have been successfully used in solutions of trace metals in nondetrital fractions of sedients are EDTA or HCl (141, 149, 150). Metal partitioning sediments might be determined by using sequential atraction procedures which fractionate the sediments into gyeral components such as interstitial water, ion exchangethe, easily reducible organic and residual sediment composents (93, 148, 151, 152). Unfortunately at this time no one sethod is clearly superior to the others (147). This might be me, in part, to site specific characteristics which influence boavailability, for example, desorption and equilibration grocesses.

12.7 pH is important for many chemicals and can be geasured directly (23) or in a 1 to 1 mixture of sediment/soil water (153).

12.8 Eh measures are particularly important for metal sociation and for determining the extent of sediment uidation. Redox gradients in sediments often change rap-

Aly over a small depth and are easily disturbed. Care must be taken in probe insertion to allow equilibration to occur when measuring Eh. These measurements are potentiometric and measured with a platinum electrode relative to a gandard hydrogen electrode (23).

, 12.9 Biochemical oxygen demand and chemical oxygen demand might provide useful information in some cases (23). Sediment oxygen demand might also be a useful descriptor, however, a wide variety of methods exist (99, 154-157).

12.10 Analysis of toxicants in sediments is generally performed by standard methods such as those of the EPA (2, 23). Soxhlet extraction is generally best for organics but depends on extraction parameters (158, 159). Concentrations are generally reported on a dry weight basis.

U. Manipulation

(

: 13.1 Manipulation of sediments is often required to yield maintenance of the sediments is often required to yield maintenance of the sediments of the section are: spling (dosing) regimes for laboratory and control sediments; mixing; sieving for attainment of maximal particle ment; dilutions for concentration-effect determinations; dutriates; capping; air drying; and sterilization. For discustion of subsampling, compositing, or homogenization effects me 9.7.

² 13.2 Spiking—The spiking method to be used is contingent on the study objectives. For example, when attempting to mimic in situ conditions, sediment cores should be spiked by adding aqueous or suspended sediment solution of baicants to the overlying water column; or when investisting dredging effects or conditions of sediment perturbation where toxicant sorption processes are accelerated, mixing toxicants into sediment slurries may be advantageous. When investigating the source of sediment toxicity or interactive effects of sediment toxicants, it is useful to spike both reference and control sediments with the toxicant of concern present in the test sediment. Mixing time should be limited to a few hours and temperatures kept to a minimum, due to the rapid alterations which occur in the sediment's physicochemical and microbiological characteristics, which thereby alter bioavailability and toxicity. Recalcitrant organics and some metals, for example, cadmium and copper, might be mixed for extended periods without adverse effects (see Sections 9 through 12 for additional discussion).

13.3 Organic compounds are generally added by means of a carrier solvent such as acetone or methanol to ensure that they are soluble and that they remain in solution during mixing. While organic compounds are generally added in an organic carrier, metals are generally in aqueous solutions. Compounds are also added to water overlying sediments and the compound allowed to sorb with no mixing (71, 160-167). Occasionally the carrier has been added directly to sediment (52, 82-84, 112, 137, 168-171) and the carrier evaporated before addition of water. This approach does not seem to result in compounds being sorbed to sediment at the same sites as dosing under aqueous conditions (172). Word, et al. (107) compared several sediment-labelling techniques using methylene chloride, ethanol, and glycine as carriers. They found glycine was superior when mixed with sediment for 7 days. In most cases, the compound is either coated on the walls of the flask and an aqueous slurry (sediment and water in various proportions) added, or the carrier containing mixture is added directly to the slurry. When the sediment to water ratio is adjusted for optimal mixing. sediments that are too dense to mix by slurrying in water have been successfully mixed using a rolling mill (72). Other mixing techniques may be used for spiking specific sediments but care should be taken to ensure complete mixing and analyses of spiked compounds run to ensure that labelling is uniform in the mixed material. The use of a polar, water soluble carrier such as methanol has little effect on the partitioning of nonpolar compounds to dissolved organic matter at concentrations up to 15% carrier by volume (173). Another study, however, shows that changes in partitioning of a factor of approximately two, might well occur with 10 % methanol as a cosolvent for anthracene sorption (174). Thus, caution should be taken to minimize the amount of carrier used. The time between the spiking of the compounds and the use of the test sediment has been variable (46, 47, 70, 72, 73, 30, 111, 168, 175) and does seem to effect the biological availability of compounds (37, 67, 175).

•

13.4 Highly volatile compounds have been spiked into sediments in a similar manner to the less volatile materials using cosolvents and mixing in an aqueous slurry by shaking. These experiments were tested immediately in covered flow-through systems (108).

13.5 If a solvent other than water is used, both a sediment solvent control and a sediment negative control or reference sediment, or both, must be included in the test. The solvent control must contain the highest concentration of solvent present and must use solvent from the same batch used to make the stock solution (see Practice E 729). 13.6 Because the **second** carbon content of the sediments might b: one of the most important characteristics affecting the biological availability of contaminants, modifications of the carbon content have been made in many studies. **Second** used include dilution with clean sand (55, 56, 62, 105), although humics, (170) and other organics such as sheep manure (52) have also been added. Such dilutions also change the particle composition and the size distribution of the particles; thus, results from such experiments should be interpreted with care. The organic carbon content has also been altered by the use of combustion (14, 52). Combustion may alter the type of carbon as well as oxidize some of the inorganic components thus altering greatly the characteristics of the sediment.

13.7 A variety of methods have been used to spike sediments with metals. The two principal categories of methods are: metal addition directly to the sediment which is mixed and then water added (64, 68, 176–178); and addition of the metal to the overlying waters (80, 166, 179–180). Thorough mixing of spiked sediments has been accomplished using the rolling mill technique. Eberbach and gyro-rotary shakers.

13.8 Equilibration and mixing conditions vary widely in spiking studies. The duration of contact between the toxicant and sediment particles can affect both the partitioning and bioavailability of the toxicant. This effect apparently occurs because of an initial rapid labile sorption followed by movement of the toxicant into resistant sorption sites or in the particle (181-183). Because of the kinetically controlled changes in the partitioning that results in changes in bicavailability (174, 184-185), the contact time can be important when spiking sediments. Bounds on the sorption time can be estimated from the partition coefficient for the sediment following the calculations in Karickhoff and Morris (182). In addition, it is important to recognize that the quantity of toxicant spiked might exceed the complexation capacity of the test sediment system and not allow reactions to attain equilibrium. These phenomena will complicate test result interpretation (68, 147).

CHECK: MEDiagrand Seving are two other manipulations for sediments that are often performed before toxicity testing (46, 52, 58-60, 67, 70, 111, 112, 163, 168, 170, 175, 186). Sediment samples have been sieved for a variety of reasons including the removal of large debris and stones. mereby increasing the sample's homogeneity and method replicability; the increased case of counting organisms; the increased case of sediment handling and subsampling; and the ability to study influence of particle size on toxicity, bioavailability, or contaminant partitioning. Sieving of material to a specific size fraction might alter the concentration of contaminant in the sediment by removing large, lowsorptive materials.

110 Toxicants and organic carbon concentrations tend to be higher with fibe-grained sedments (thus-is, clay and; silt) due to increased surface area (in relation to the weight of the sample) and sorptive capacity. Measuring size fractions of less than 63 µm has been recommended in contaminant studies, particularly for metals (172, 187). In studies of sediment metal concentrations, normalizing to the <63-µm size fraction was superior for describing metal binding in redintents permutations normaliized to dry weight, by organic carbon content, or corrected by a centrifugation procedure (172). Small size fractions and characteristic of depositional areas in aquatic systems how ever, sieving of sediments from non-depositional sites to obtain the fine fraction might significantly alter the sediment characteristics. The usual sieve size for toxicity testing greater than 500-µm. If sieving is performed it should be done for all samples to be tested including control and reference sediments.

13.11 Mixing of various layers of sediments might result in either dilution or enhancement of concentrations. The sediment quality will be influenced by the depth of sampling depth of biological activity, contaminant solubility and partitioning characteristics, and depth of the contaminant concentration peak which is dependent on historical contamination and sedimentation rates for the study size (see Section 10 for additional relevant discussion).

13.12 Another manipulation of sediments for foxicity testing is sediment dilution. In order to obtain concentration is solid phase sediment toxicity evaluations, differing concentrations of the test sediment should be used. Currently, there is little information available on the most appropriate method for diluting test sediments to obtain a graded contaminant concentration or concerning the methodological effects of such a dilution. A "clean" noncontaminated sediment should be used as the "diluent" which optimally consists of physicochemical chase acteristics similar to the test sediment, such as organic matter/carbon, particle size, but does not contain elevated (above background) levels of the toxicants of concern. Refer to the preceding sections for relevant information.

13.13 Many studies of sediment toxicity have been conducted on the elutriate or water-extractable phase (188). This method was developed to assess the effects of dredging operations on water quality. Sediments are shaken in site or reconstituted water (1 to 4 volume to volume ratio) for 30 min. The water phase is then separated from the sediment by centrifugation, followed by filtration of the supernatant through a 0.45-µm filter when conducting some tests, such as algal growth assays. The filtration step may be removed depending on the study objectives (see Section 11 for interferences).

13.14 Sediment pollution remediation alternatives might include capping the contaminated sediments with "clean" sediments. Laboratory design of such experiments should vary the depth of both the contaminated sediments and the capping sediment layers to evaluate contaminant transport by means of physicochemical and biological (bioturbation) processes.

13.15 Sometimes sediments have been air dried before us (56, 168, 189-190) but these sediments have generally been used for laboratory studies after some additional manipulation, such as spiking sediments with various levels of contaminants for concentration-effect data (111, 190). Air drying would result in losses of volatile compounds and might result in changes in the sediment characteristics particularly particle size (see Section 10). The presence of size and air drying have all been shown to change metal availability and complexation (141).

13.16 Sterilization of sediments to inhibit biological 2001 . tivity has been performed in some antime. Autociaving is used in most cases (191). Other sterilization techniques have jocluded antibiotic addition, addition of chemical inhibitors such as HgCl₂ or sodium azide, or gamma irradiation. The technique chosen should be contingent on study objectives. Antibiotics, such as streptomycin and ampicillin, have been successfully used in sediment studies (192, 193). Some antibiotics, however, are labile and light sensitive, or readily bind to organic matter. Mercuric chloride appears to be superior to sodium azide as a bacteriocide. Autoclaving is the least desirable method as it causes the greatest alteration to the sediments physical and chemical characteristics. In studies requiring sterility, it is crucial that a sterility control be incorporated.

14. Quality Assurance

14.1 Quality assurance guidelines (3, 4, 10, 16) should be followed. Quality assurance considerations for sediment modeling. QA-QC plans, statistical analyses (for example, sample number and location) and sample handling have been addressed in-depth (10).

14.2 Sediment heterogeneity significantly influences studies of sediment quality, contaminant distribution, and both benthic invertebrate and microbial community effects. Spatial heterogeneity might result from numerous biological, chemical, and physical factors and should be considered both horizontally (such as, the sediment surface) and vertically

"at is, depth). Accumulation areas with similar particle size ibutions might yield significantly different toxicity paturns when subsampled (79, 194); therefore, an adequate aumber of replicates should be processed to determine site variance. When determining site variance one should consider within sample (that is, subsample) variance, analytical variance (for example, chemical or toxicological), and the sampling instruments' accuracy and precision. After these considerations a sampling design can be constructed which addresses resource limitations and study objectives.

14.3 As stated in previous sections, the methodological approach used, such as, number of samples, will be dependent on the study objectives and sample characteristics. For information on sediment heterogeneity, splitting, compositing, controls, or determining sample numbers, sampler accuracy and precision, and resource requirements, there are a number of references available (4, 10, 21, 85, 172, 195, 196).

1.

. .

15. Report

15.1 Documentation—The record of sediment collection, storage, handling, and manipulation should include the following information either directly or by reference to existing documents. Published reports should contain enough information to clearly identify the methodology used and the quality of the results.

15.1.1 Name of test and investigator(s), name and location of laboratory, and dates of starting and ending of sampling and sediment manipulation,

15.1.2 Source of control, reference or test sediment, method for handling, storage, and disposal of sediment,

15.1.3 Source of water, its chemical characteristics, and a description of any pretreatment,

15.1.4 Methods used for, and results (with confidence limits) of, physical and chemical analyses of sediment, and

15.1.5 Anything unusual about the study, any deviation from these procedures, manipulations, and any other relevant information.

REFERENCES

- (1) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers, "Procedure for Handling and Chemical Analysis of Sediment and Water Samples," *Technical Report EPA/CE-11-1*, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS, 1981.
- (2) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers, "Chemistry Laboratory Manual for Bottom Sediments and Elutriate Testing," Report V, Chicago, IL, EPA-905-4-79-014 (NTIS PB 294596), 1979.
- (3) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers, "Sampling Protocols for Collecting Surface Water, Bed Sedurest, Bivalves, and Fish for Priority Pollutant Analysis," Final Draft Report, Office of Water Regulations and Standards Monitoring and Data Support Division, Washington, DC, 1982.
- (4) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers, "Handbook for Sampling and Sample Preservation of Water and Waterwater," Environmental Monitoring and Support Lab, Clacinnati, EDA-600/4-82-029, 1982.
- (5) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers, "A Compendium of Superfund Field Operation Methods," Office of Emergency and Remodial Response, Washington, DC, EPA/ 540-P-87/001, 1987.
- (6) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers, "Sampling Guidance Manual for the National Dioton Manual," Draft, Office of Water Regulations and Standards, Monitoring and Data Support Division, Washington, EC, 1984.
- (7) American Public Health Association, "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Waterwater," 16th ed. Washington, DC, 1985.

- (8) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, "Samplers and Sampling Procedures for Hazardous Waste Streams," EPA 600/2-80-018, 1980.
- (9) U.S. Environmenial Protection Agency, "Characterization of Hazardous Waste Sites—A Methods Manual (Vols 1-))," Environmenial Monitoring Support Lab. Las Vegas, EPA 600/ 4/84-075 (NTIS P8 85-215960), 1985.
- (10) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, "Sediment Sampling Quality Assurance User's Guide," Environmental Menitoring and Support Lab, Las Vegas, EPA 600/4/83/048 (NTIS PB 85-233342), 1985.
- (11) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, "Test Methods for Evaluating: Solid Wasse: Physical/Chemical Methods," Office of Solid Wasse and Emergency Response, Washington, DC, SW-346 (NTIS PB 85-103026), 1986.
- (12) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, "Field Operations Manual for Resource Contaminant Assessment," Washington, DC, 1986.
- (13) Environment Canada, "Sediment Sampling and Preservation Methods for Drudging Projects," Conservation and Protection, Quebec Region, Ontario, 1987.
- (14) International Joint Communion, "Guidance on Astenument and Remediation of Contaminated Sediment Problems in the Great Lakes," Draft 1987, 10.31, Windson, Ontario, 1987.
- (15) U.S. Geological Survey, "Techniques of Water-Resources Investigations of the U.S.G.S.," Chip. C1, Harold P. Guy, p. 58, Laboratory Theory and Methods for Sediment Analyzir, Book 5, Laboratory Analysis, U.S.G.S., Arlington, VA, 1969.
- (16) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 10, "Recommended Protocols for Conducting Laboratory Bioassays on Paget

Sound Sediments," Puget Sound Estuary Program, Prepared by TetraTech, Inc. and E.V.S. Consultants, Inc., Final Report TC-3991-04, USEPA, Seattle, WA, 1986.

GD E 1391

(17) Dillon, T., "The Effects of Storage Temperature and Time on Sediment Toxicity," Poster presented at Fourth Annual Meeting Society of Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Arlington, VA, 1983.

- (18) International Technical Information Institute, Toxic and Hazardous Industrial Chemicals Safety Manual, Tokyo, Japan, 1977; For example, see: Sax, N. L. Dangerous Properties of Industrial Materials, 5th Ed., Van Nostrand Reinhold Co., New York, NY, 1979; Patty, F. A. (ed.), Industrial Hygiene and Toxicology, Vol II, 2nd Ed., Interscience, New York, NY, 1963; Hamilton, A., and Hardy, H. L., Industrial Toxicology, 3rd Ed., Publishing Sciences Group, Inc., Acton, MA, 1974; Goselin, R. E., Hodge, H. C., Smith, R. P., and Gleason, M. H., Clinical Toxicology of Commercial Products, 4th Ed., Williams and Wilkins Co., Baltumore, MD, 1976.
- (19) Green, N. E., and Turk, A., "Safety in Working with Chemicals," MacMillan, New York, NY, 1978; For example, see: National Research Council, Prudent Practices for Handling Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories, National Academy Press, Washington, DC, 1981; Walters, D. B., (ed.), Safety Handling of Chemical Carcinogens, Mulagens, Teratogens, and Highly Toxic Substances, Ann Arbor Science, Ann Arbor, MI, 1980; Faween, H. H., and Wood, W. S. (eds.), Safety and Accident Prevention in Chemical Operations, 3nd Ed., Wiley-Interscience, New York, NY, 1982.
- (20) National Council on Radiation Protection and Measurement, "Basic Radiation Protection Criteria," NCRP Report No. 39, Washington, DC, 1971, For example, see: Shapiro, J., Radiation Protection, and Ed., Harvard University Press, Cambridge, MA, 1981.
- (21) Downing, J. A., "Sampling the Benthos of Standard Waters, A. Manual on Methods for the Assessment of Secondary Producuvity in Freshwaters," 2nd Edition, IBP Handbook 12, Blackwell Scientific Publications, Boston, MA, pp. 87-130, 1984.
- (22) Hopkins, T. L., "A Survey of Manne Bottom Samples," Progress in Oceanography, Vol. 2, Pergamon Press, New York, pp. 215-254, 1964.
- (23) Plumb, R. H., "Procedures for Handling and Chemical Analysis of Sediment and Water Samples," Environmental Protection Agency/Corps of Engineers Technical Committee on Criteria for Diredged and Fill Material, Contract EPA-4805572010, EPA* CE-81-1, p. 478, 1981.
- (24) Elliotti, J. M., "Some Methods for the Statistical Analysis of Samples of Benthic Invertebrates," Freshwater Biological Association of Science Publications, Vol 25, 156 pp., 1977.
- (25) Ellion, J. M., and Dinke, C. M., "A Comparative Study of Seven Grabs for Sampling Benthic Macroinvertebrates in Rivers," *Freshwater Biology*, Vol 11, pp. 99-120, 1981.
- (26) Flannagan, J. F., "Efficiencies of Various Grabs and Cores in Sampling Freshwater Benthon." Journal of Fisheries Research Board Canada, Vol 27, pp. 1691-1700, 1970.
- (27) Howmiller, R. P., "A Comparison of the Effectiveness of Ecknan and Ponar Grabs." *Transaction American Fisheries Society*, Vol 100, pp. 560–563, 1971.
- (23) Hudson, P. L., "Quantitative Sampling with Three Reathic Dredges," Transaction American Fisheries Society, Vol 99, pp. 403-607, 1970.
- (29) Nalepa, T. F., Quigley, M. A., and Ziegler, R. W., "Sampling Efficiency of the Ponar Grab is Two Different Beathic Environments." *Journal of Great Lakes Research*, Vol 14, pp. 89-93, 1988.
- (30) Sty. P. G., "Bonom Sediment Sampling," Proceedings of 12th Conference Gran Lakes Research, pp. 883-898, 1969.
- (31) Word, J. Q., "An Evaluation of Benthic Invertebrane Sampling Devices for Investigating Habitute of Fish," Proceedings of the Paulific Northwest Technical Workshop on Fish Food Habits

Studies, Washington University Sea Grant, Seattle, WA, 198

- (32) Murray, W. G., and Murray, J., "A Device for Obtaining Representative Samples from the Sediment-Water Interface Marine Geology, Vol 76, pp. 313-317, 1987.
- (33) Grizzle, R. E., and Stegner, W. E., "A New Quantitative Grab for Sampling Benthos," Hydrobiologia, Vol 126, pp. 91-95, 1985.
- (34) Gilbert, R., and Glew, J., "A Portable Percussion Coring Device for Lacustrine and Marine Sediments," Journal of Sediment, Petrology, Vol 55, pp. 607-608, 1985.
- (35) Fuller, J. A., and Meisburger, E. P., "A Simple, Ship Benef," Vibratory Corer," Journal of Sediment Petrology, Vol 52 642-644, 1982.
- (36) Imperato, D., "A Modification of the Vibracoring Technique for Sandy Sediment," Journal of Sediment Petrology, Vol 57, pp. 788-789, 1987.
- (37) Lanesky, D. E., Logan, B. W., Brown, R. G., and Hine, A. C. "A. New Approach to Portable Vibracoring Underwater and on Land." Journal of Sediment Petrology, Vol 49, pp. 654-657, 1979.
- (38) Blomqvist, S., "Reliability of Core Sampling of Soft Bottom Sediment—An In Situ Study," Hydrobiologia, 1985. https://www.sci.uku.com/ 1985.
- (39) Findlay, S. E. G., "Influence of Sampling Scale on Apparent Distribution of Meiofauna on a Sandflat," Estuartes, Vol 5, pp. 322-324, 1982.
- (40) Fleeger, J. W., Sikora, W., and Sikora, J., "Spatial and Long-Term Variation of Meiobenthic-Hyperbenuc Copepods in Lake Pontchartrain, Louisiana," *Estuarine Coastal Shelf Science*, Vol 16, pp. 441-453, 1983.
- (41) Mclivityre, A. D., and Warwick, R., "Meiofauna Techniques," Methods for the Study of Marine Benthos, 2nd ed. Blackwell, pp. 217-244, 1984.
- (42) Rutledge, P. A., and Fleeger, J., "Laboratory Studies on Core Sampling with Application to Subudal Meiobenthos Collection," *Limnology and Oceanography*, Vol 33, pp. 274-280, 1988.
- (43) Carlton, R. G., and Wetzel, R., "A Box Corer for Studying Metabolism of Epipelic Microorganisms in Sediment Under In Situ Conditions." *Limnolology and Oceanography*, Vol 30, pp. 422-426, 1985.
- (44) Oliver, B. G., "Uptake of Chlonnated Organics from Anthropogenically Contaminated Sediments by Oligochare Worms," Canadian Journal of Fisheries and Aquatic Science, Vol. 41, pp. 878-883, 1984.
- (45) Oliver, G. B., "Biouptake of Chlorinated Hydrocarbons from Laboratory-Spiked and Field Sediments by Oligochaets Worms," Environmental Science and Technology, Vol. 21, pp. 785–790 1987.
- (46) Klump, J. V., Krezoski, J. R., Smith, M. E., and Kaster, J. L. "Dual Tracer Studies of the Assimilation of an Organic Contaminant from Sediments by Deport Feeding Oligochartes." *Canadian Journal of Fisheries and Aquatic Science*, Vol 44, pp. 1574-1583, 1987.
- (47) Breteler, R. J., and Sakus, F. L. "The Role of Sediment Organ: Matter on Sorption Desorption Reactions and Bioavailability of Mercury and Cadmium in an Interoidal Ecosystem," Aquan: Toticology and Hazard Amessment, Seventh Symposium, ASTM STP 854, pp. 454–468, 1985.
- (48) Jafvert, C. T., and Wolfe, N. L., "Degradation of Selected Halogenated Ethanes in Anoxic Sediment-Water Systems," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 6, pp. 827-837, 1987.
- (49) Wolfe, N. L., Kitchen, B. E., Maclady, D. L., and Grundl, T. J. "Physical and Chemical Factors that Influence the Anacrobic Degradation of Methylparathione in Sediment Systems," Entrronmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol. 5, pp. 1019-1026 1986.
- (30) Long, E. R., and Buchman, M. F., "An Evaluation of Candidate Measures of Biological Effects for the National Status and Trends Program," NOAC Tech. Memorypidum NOS OMA 45, Seanh. WA, 1989.

- 4) Reichert, W. L., Le Eberhart, B., and Varanasi, U., "Exposure of Two Species of Deposit-Feeding Amphipods to Sediment-Associated [³H]benzoapyrene: Uptake, Metabolism and Covalent Binding to Tissue Macromolecules," Aquatic Toxicology, Vol 6, pp. 45-56, 1985.
- 3) Adams, W. U., Kimerle, R. A., and Mosher, R. G., "Aquatic Safety Assessment of Chemicals Sorbed to Sediments," Aquatic Toxicology and Hazard Assessment, Seventh Symposium, ASTM STP 854, ASTM, pp. 429–453, 1985.
- 3) NOAA, "Collection of Bivalve Molluscs and Surficial Sediments, and Performance of Analysis for Organic Chemicals and Toxic Trace Elements," Phase 1 Final Report, National Statistics and Trends Mussel Watch Program, Prepared by Battelle Ocean Sciences for the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Rockville, MD, 1987.
- 4) Alden, R. W., and Butt, A. J., "Statistical Classification of the Toxicity and Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbon Contamination of Sediments from a Highly Industrialized Seaport," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 6, pp. 673-684, 1987.
- 9 Clark, J. R., Patrick, J. M., Moore, J. C., and Forener, J., "Accumulation of Sediment-Bound PCBs by Fiddler Crabs," Bulletin of Environmental Contamination and Taxicology, Vol 36, pp. 571-578, 1986.
- i) Clark, J. R., Patrick, J. M., Moore, J. C., and Lores, E. M., "Waterborn and Sediment-Source Toxicities of Six Organic Chemicals to Grass Shrimp (*Palaemonetes pugto* and Amphioxus (*Branchiostoma caribaeum*)," *Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology*, Vol 16, pp. 401-407, 1987.
- Giesy, J. P., Graney, R. L., Newsted, J. L., Rossu, C. J., Benda, A., Kreis, R. G., and Horvath, F. J., "Comparison of Three Sediment Bioassay Methods Using Detroit River Sediments," *Environmental Taxicology and Chemistry*, Vol 7, pp. 483-498, 1988.
- 4) Malueg, K. W., Schuytema, G. S., Gakstatter, J. H., and Krawczyk, D. F., "Effect of Hexagenia on Dophnia Response in Sediment Toxicity Tests," *Environmental Toxicology and Chem*ury, Vol 2, pp. 73-82, 1983.
- e) Malueg, K. W., Schuytema, G. S., Gakstatter, J. H., and Krawczyk, D. F., "Toxicity of Sediments from Three Metal Contaminated Areas," *Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry*, Vol 3, pp. 279-291, 1984.
-) Malueg, K. W., Schuytema, G. S., Krawczyk, D. F., and Gakstatter, J. H., "Laboratory Sediment Toxicity Tests. Sediment Chemistry and Distribution of Benthic Macroinvertebrates in Sediments from the Keweenaw Waterway, Michigan," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol. 3, pp. 233-242, 1984.
- I Rubinstein, N. L. Lores, E., and Gregory, N. R., "Accumulation of PCBs, Mercury and Cadmium by Nereis virens, Mercinaria mercenaria and Palaemonetes pugio from Contaminated Harbor Sediments," Aquatic Toxicology, Vol 3, pp. 249-260, 1983.
- 3 Tatem, H. E., "Bioaccumulation of Polychlorinated Biphenyls and Metals from Contaminated Sediment by Freshwater Prawns, Macrobracium rozenbergii, and Clama, Corbicule flumines," Archives of Environmental Contamination and Taxiculagy, Vol. 13, pp. 171-183, 1966.
- Fritzweier, S. E., Knauer, G. A., and Martin, J. H., "Metal Contamination and Its Effect on Primary Production Measurements," *Lumoology and Oceanography*, Vol 27, pp. 544-551, 1982.
- Furton, G. A., and Stemmer, B. L., "Factors Affecting Effluent and Sediment Toucity Using Cladocerun, Algae and Microbial Indicator Amays," Abstracts Annual Meeting of the Society of Environmental Toucologista, Pensacola, FL, 1987.
- Lee, G. F., and Jones, R. A., "Discussion of: Dredged Material Evaluations: Correlation Between Chemical and Biological Evaluation Procedures." *Journal of Water Pollution Control Federa*tion, Vol 54, pp. 406–409, 1982.

(66) Lee, G. F., and Plumb, R., "Literature Review on Research Study for the Development of Drodged Material Disposal Criteria," Contract report D-74-1. U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS, 1974. Sec. 1.

.

12.

1

-,†

.

Ì

- (67) Malueg, K. W., Schuytema, G. S., and Krawczyk, D. F., "Effects of Sample Storage on a Copper-Spiked Freshwater Sediment," *Environmental Taxicology and Chemistry*, Vol 5, pp. 245-253, 1986.
- (68) Stemmer, B. L., Burton, Jr., G. A., and Leibfritz-Frederick, S., "Effect of Sediment Test Variables on Selenium Toxicity to Daphnia magna," *Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry*, Vol 9 (in press), 1990.
- (69) Swartz, R. C., "Toxicological Methods for Determining the Effects of Contaminated Sediment on Marine Organisms," Fate and Effects of Sediment-Bound Chemicals in Aquatic Systems, Pergamon Press, New York, pp. 183-198, 1987.
- (70) Swartz, R. C., DeBen, W. A., Jones, J. K., Lamberson, J. O., and Cole, F. A., "Phoxocephalid Amphipod Bioassay for Marine Sediment Toxicity," Aquatic Toxicology and Hazard Assessment, Seventh Symposium, ASTM STP 854, pp. 284-307, 1985.
- (71) Silver, M. L., "Handling and Storage of Chemically and Biologically Active Ocean Sediments," MTS Journal, Vol 6, pp. 32-36, 1972.
- (72) Swartz, R. C., Ditsworth, G. R., Schults, D. W., and Lamberson, J. O., "Sediment Toxicity to a Marine Infaunal Amphipod: Cadmium and Its Interaction with Sewage Sludge," *Marine and Environment Research*, Vol 18, pp. 133-153, 1985.
- (73) Wood, L. W., Rhee, G. Y., Bush, B., and Barnard, E., "Sediment Desorption of PCB Congeners and Their Bio-Uptake by Dipteran Larvae," *Water Research*, Vol 21, pp. 873-884, 1987.
- (74) Burton, G. A., Jr., and Stemmer, B. L., "Spiking Method, Sample Storage and Spatial Heterogeneity Effects on Sediment Toxicity to Daphnia magna." Abstracts Annual Meeting of the Society of Environmental Toxicologists and Chemists, Arlington, VA, 1988.
- (75) Anderson, J., Birge, W., Gennle, J., Lake, J., Rodgers, Jr., J., and Swartz, R., "Biological Effects, Bioaccumulation, and Ecotoxicology of Sediment-Associated Chemicals," Fate and Effects of Sediment-Bound Chemicals in Aquatic Systems, Pergamon Press, New York, pp. 267-296, 1987.
- (76) Plumb. R. H., Jr., "Sampling, Preservation, and Analysis of Sediment Samples: State-of-the-Art Limitations," Proceedings Fifth United States-Japan Experts Meeting on Management of Bottom Sediments Containing Toxic Substances, New Orleans, LA (1979), EPA/60019-80-044, pp. 259-272, 1980.
- (77) Carr, R. S., Williams, J. W., and Fragsta, C. T. B., "Development and Evaluation of a Novel Marine Sediment Pore Water Toxicity Test with the Polychaete Dinophilus gyracilianus," Environmental Tuxicology and Chemistry, Vol 8, pp. 533-543, 1989.
- (78) Di Toro, D. M., Mahony, J. D., Hansen, D. J., Scott, K. J., Hicks, M. B., Mayr, S. M., and Redmond, M. S., "Toaicity of Cadmium in Sediments: The Role of Acid Volatile Sulfide," Draft Report to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Criteria and Standards Division, Washington, DC, 1989.
- (79) Stemmer, B. L., "An Evaluation of Various Effluent and Sediment Toxicity Tests," M.S. Thesis, Wright State University, Dayton, OH, 1988.
- (80) Cairna, M. A., Nebeker, V., Gakstamer, J. H., and Griffa, W. L., "Toxicity of Copper-Spiked Sediments to Freshwater Invertebrates," *Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry*, Vol 3, pp. 435-445, 1984.
- (81) Jeane, E. A., and Zachara, J. M., "Factors Influencing the Sorption of Metals," Fast and Effects of Sodiment-Bound Chemicals in Aquatic Systems, Pergamon Press, New York, pp. 83–98, 1987.
- (82) Muir, D. C. G., Griff, N. D., Townsend, B. E., Matner, D. A., and Lockhart, W. L., "Comparison of the Uptake and Bioconcentration of Fluridose and Terburys by Raisbow Trout and Chironomus tensous in Seriantes and Water Systems," Archiver of Environmental Contamination and Toticology, Vol 11, pp. 595-602, 1982.

- (83) Muir, D. C. G., Townsend, B. E., and Lockhart, W. L., "Bioavailability of Six Organic Chemicals to Chironomus tentans Larvae in Sediment and Water," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 2, pp. 269-281, 1983.
- (84) Muir, D. C. G., Rawn, G. P., Townsend, B. E., Lockhart, W. L., and Greenhalgh, R., "Bioconcentration of Cypermethrin. Deltamethrin, Fenvalerate and Permethrin by Chironomus tenians Larvae in Sediment and Water," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 4, pp. 51-61, 1985.
- (85) Rochon, R., and Chevalier, M., "Sediment Sampling and Preservation Methods for Dredging Projects," Conservation and Protection-Environment Canada, Quebec Region, 1987.
- (86) Watson, P. G., Frickers, P., Goodchild, C., "Spatial and Seasonal Variations in the Chemistry of Sediment Interstitial Waters in the Tamar Estuary," *Estuaries and Coastal Shelf Science*, Vol 21, pp. 105-119, 1985.
- (87) Hulbert, M. H., and Brindle, M. P., "Effects of Sample Handling on the Composition of Marine Sedimentary Pore Water," Geological Society of America Bulletin, Vol 86, pp. 109-110, 1975.
- (88) Landrum, P. F., Nihart, S. R., Eadie, B. J., and Herche, L. R., "Reduction in Bioavailability of Organic Centaminants to the Amphipod Powoporeia hoyi by Dissolved Organic Matter of Sediment Interstitial Waters," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 6, pp. 11-20, 1987.
- (89) Aggett, J., and Kriegman, M. R., "Preservation of Arsenic (III) and Arsenic (V) in Samples of Sediment Interstitial Water," *Analyst*, Vol 112, pp. 153-157, 1987.
- (90) Andersen, F. O., and Helder, W., "Comparison of Oxygen Microgradients, Oxygen Flux Rates and Electron Transport System Activity in Coastal Manne Sediments. *Marine Ecology* Progress Series, Vol 37, pp. 239-264, 1987.
- (91) Tatem, H. E., "Use of Daphnio magna and Aysidopsis almyre to Assess Sediment Toxicity," Water Quality '88. Seminar Proceedings. Charleston, SC, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Committee on Water Quality, Washington, DC, 1988.
- (92) Edmunds. W. M., and Bath, A. H., "Centrifuge Extraction and Chemical Analysis of Interstitial Waters," Environmental Science and Technology, Vol 10, pp. 467-472, 1976.
- (93) Engler, R. M., Brannon, J., Rose, J., and Bigham, G., "A Practical Selective Extraction Procedure for Sediment Characterization." *Chemistry of Marine Sediments*, Ann Arbor Science Publishers, Ann Arbor, MI, pp. 163-171, 1977.
- (94) Bender, M., Martin, W., Heis, J., Sayles, F., Ball, L., and Lambert, C., "A Whole-Core Squeezer for Interfacial Pore-Water Sampling," *Limmology and Oceanography*, Vol. 32, pp. 1214-1225, 1987.
- (95) Jahake, R. A., "A Simple, Reliable, and Inespensive Pore-Water Sampler," *Limnology and Oceanography*, Vol 33, pp. 483-487, 1988.
- (96) Kalil, E. K., and Goldhaker, M., "A Sediment Squeezer for Removal of Pore Waters Without Air Coatact," Journal of Sediment Petrology, Vol 43, pp. 553-557, 1973.
- (97) Recburgh, W. S., "An Improved Interstitut Water Sampler," Limnology and Oceanography. Vol 12, pp. 163-165, 1967.
- (98) Knezovich, J. P., and Harrison, F. L., "A New Method for Determining the Concentrations of Volatile Organic Compounds in Sediment Internitial Water," Bulletin of Environmental Contermination and Taxicology, Vol 38, pp. 937-940, 1987.
- (99) Howes, B. L., Dacey, J. W. H., and Wakeham, S. G., "Effects of Sampling Technique on Measurements of Porewater Constituents in Salt Marsh Sediments," *Limnology and Oceanography*, Vol 30, pp. 221-227, 1985.
- (106) Bottomicy, E. Z., and Bryty, I. L., "A Sediment Porcurater Sampler Used in Rost Zone Studies of the Submerged Macrophyse. Myriophyshum spicerum," Linnology and Oceanography, Vol 29, pp. 671-673, 1964.
- (101) Hendin, R. H., "An In Situ Sampler for Close Interval Pore Water Studius," Limnology and Oceanography, Vol 21, pp. 912-914, 1976.

- (102) Mayer, L. M., "Chemical Water Sampling in Lakes and ments with Dialysis Bags," Limnology and Oceanography, 21, pp. 909-911, 1976.
- (103) Pittinger, C. A., Hand, V. C., Masters, J. A., and Davidson, "Interstitial Water Sampling in Ecotoxicological Testing tioning of a Cationic Surfactant," *Toxicology and Hazard Amment*, Vol 10, pp. 138-148, 1988.
- (104) Bray, J. T., Bricker, O. P., and Troup, B. N., "Poopland Interstitial Waters of Anoxic Sediments: Oxidation Effects D. Sampling Procedure," Science, Vol 180, pp. 1362-1364, 1971
- (105) Lyons, W. B., Gaudette, J., and Smith, G., "Pore Water Same in Anoxic Carbonate Sodiments: Oxidation Artifacts," New Vol 277, pp. 48-49, 1979.
- (106) Carignan, R., Rapin, F., and Tessier, A., "Sediment Portal Sampling for Metal Analysis: A Comparison of Technin Geochimica et Cosmochimica Acta, Vol 49, pp. 2493-2497
- (107) Word, J. Q., Ward, J. A., Franklin, L. M., Cullinan, V. 1.
 Kiesser, S. L., "Evaluation of the Equilibrium Parities Theory for Estimating the Toxicity of the Nonpolar Or Compound DDT to the Sediment Dwelling American Report, Task 1, WAS6, Sequim, WA, 60 pp., 1987.
 (108) Knezovich, J. P., and Harrison, F. L., "The Bioavailables'
- 108) Knezovich. J. P., and Harrison, F. L., "The Bioavailable, Sediment-Sorbed Chlorobenzenes to Larvae of the Man Chironomus decorus," Ecotoxicology and Environmental Vol 15, pp. 226-241, 1988.
- (109) Black, C. A. (ed.), "Methods of Soil Analysis," American Son of Agronomy, Agronomy Monograph No. 9, Madison, WI 1915
- (110) Page, A. L., Miller, R. H., and Keeney, D. R. (eds.), "Methods of Soil Analysis," Parts 1 and 2, American Society of Agrosson Madison, W1, 1982.
- (111) Keilty, T. J., White, D. S., and Landrum, P. F., "Subleting Responses to Endrin in Sediment by Limnodrilius hoffmener (Tubificidae) and in Mixed-Culture with Stytodrilius hemmann (Lumbriculidae)," Aquatic Toxicology, Vol. 13, pp. 251-27, 1988.
- (112) MicLeese, D. W., Mitcalfe, C. D., and Pezzack, D. S., "Uptale of PCB's from Sediment by Nerets wirens and Craster septemationosa," Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology, Vol 9, pp. 507-518, 1980.
- (113) Kadeg, R. D., and Paviou, S., "Reconnaissance Field Snap Verification of Equilibrium Partitioning: Nonpolar Hydrophobic Organic Chemicals," Submitted by: Battelle Washington Enviromental Program Office. Washington, DC. For: U.S. Enviromental Projection Agency, Criseria and Standarda Division, Washington, DC, 1987.
- (114) Kadeg, R. D., Pavlou, S., and Duabury, A. S., "Sediment Crime Methodology Validation," Work Assignment 37, Task II, Elaboration of Sediment Normalization Theory for Nonpolar Hydrophobic Organic Chemicals. Prepared by Envirosphere Co., Isc. for Battelle Pacific Northwest Laboratories and U.S. Envirosmental Protection Agency, Criteria and Standards Division, 1916.
- (115) Paviou, S., Kadeg, R., Turner, A., and Marchlik, M., "Sediment Quality Criteria Methodology Validation: Uncertainty Analysis of Sediment Normalization Theory for Nonpolar Organic Coauseinants," Envirosphere Co., Inc. For: Environmental Protectes Agency, Criteria and Standards Division, Washington, D.C. Submitted by: Battelle, Washington Environmental Program Office, Washington, DC, 1987.
- (116) Burford, J. R., and Bremmer, J. M., "Relationships Between the Denitrification Capacitues of Soils and Total Water-Soluble and Rendity Decomposable Soil Organic Matter," Soil Biology and Biochemitary, Vol 7, pp. 389-394.
- (117) Cabrill, R. A., and Autrey, A. D., "Improved Measurement of the Organic Carbon Content of Various River Components," Journal of Frithmater Ecology, Vol 4, pp. 219-223, 1987.
- (118) Menani, D. W., and Vaccaro, R. F., "The Measurement of Dimolved Organic and Particulase Carbon in San Weter." *Limnology and Ocyanography*, Vol 9, pp. 138-142, 1964
- (119) Walkley, A., and Black, I. A., "An Examination of the Degrand" Method for Determining Soil Organic Matter and a Proposel

Modification of the Channe Acid Titustion Method," Soil Science, Vol 37, pp. 29-38, 1934.

- (129) Yeomans, J. C., and Brimmer, J. M., "A Rapid and Precise Method for Routine Determination of Organic Carbon in Soil," *Communications in Soil Science and Plant Analysis*, Vol 19, pp. 1467-1476, 1985.
- (121) Allen, T., "Particle Size Measurement," John Wiley & Sons, New York, 452 pp., 1975.

.

- (122) Singer, J. K., Anderson, J. B., Ledbetter, M. T., McCave, I. N., Jones, K. P. N., and Wright, R., "An Assessment of Analytical Techniques for the Size Analysis of Fine-Grained Sediments," *Journal of Sediment Petrology*, Vol 58, pp. 534-543, 1988.
- (123) Duncan, G. A., and Lattaie, G. G., "Size Analysis Proceduras Used in the Sedimentology Laboratory, NWRI Manual," National Water Research Institute, Canada Centre for Inland Waters, 1979.
- (124) Day, P. R., "Particle Fractionation and Particle-Size Analysis. Section 43-5 Hydrometer Method of Particle Size Analysis," Monograph No. 9 American Society of Agronomy, Madison, WI, pp. 562-566, 1965.
- (125) Patrick, W. H., Jr., "Modification of Method Particle Size Analyses," Proceedings of the Soil Science Society of America, Vol. 4, pp. 366-367, 1958.
- (126) Rukavina, N. A., and Duncan, G. A., "F.A.S.T., Fast Analysis of Sediment Texture," Proceedings of the 13th Conference of Great Lakes Research, pp. 274-281, 1970.
- (127) Sanford, R. B., and Swift, D. J. P., "Comparisons of Sieving and Settling Techniques for Size Analysis, Using a Benthus Rapid Sediment Analyzer," Sedimentology, Vol 17, pp. 257-264, 1971.
- [128] Cooper, L. R., Haverland, R., Hendricks, D., and Knisel, W., "Microtrac Particle Size Analyzer: An Alternative Particle Size Determination Method for Sediment and Soils," Soil Science, Vol 138, pp. 138-146.
- (29) Sternberg, R. W., and Creager, J. S., "Comparative Efficiencies of Size Analysis by Hydrometer and Pipette Methods," *Journal of Sediment Petrology*, Vol 31, pp. 96–100, 1961.
- (130) McCave, I. M., and Jarvis, J., "Use of the Model T Coulter" Counter in Size Analysis of Fine to Coarse Sand," Sedementology, Vol 20, pp. 305-315, 1973.
- (131) Vanderpieog, H. A., "Effect of the Algal Length/Aperture Longth Ratio on Coulter Analyses of Lake Seston," Canadian Journal of Fisheries and Aquatic Science, Vol 38, pp. 912-916, 1981.
- (132) Leppard, G. G., Buffle, J., De Vitore, R. R., and Persex, D., "The Ultrastructure and Physical Characteristics of a Distinctive Colloidal Iron Particulate Isolated from a Small Eutrophec Lake," Archives Hydrobiology, Vol. 113, pp. 405-424, 1988.
- (133) Burnson, B. K., and Leppard, G. G., "Isolation of Colloidal Fibrils from Lake Water by Physical Separation Techniques." *Canadian Journal of Fisheries and Aquatic Science*, Vol 40, pp. 373-381.
- (134) Leppard, G. G., "The Fibrillar Matrix Component of Lacustrine Biofilms," Hister Research, Vol 20, pp. 697–702, 1986. . .
- (135) Leppard, G. G. Massalski, A., and Lean, D. S. R., "Electron-Opaque Microscopic Fibrils in Lakes: Their Demonstration, Their Biological Derivation and Their Potential Significance in the Redistribution of Cations." *Protoplasma*, Vol. 92, pp. 289-309, 1977.
- (136) Kaddah, M. T., "The Hydrometer Method for Detailed Particle-Size Analysis: I. Graphical Interpretation of Hydrometer Readings and Test of Method," Soil Science, Vol 118, pp. 102-108, 1974.
- (137) Stein, R., "Rapid Grain-Site Analysis of Clay and Silt Fraction by Sedigraph 5000D: Comparison with Coulter Counter and Attribute Matheds," *Journal of Sediment Petrology*, Vol 55, pp. 590-615, 1985.
- (138) Welch, N. H., Allen, P. B., and Galinda, D. J., "Particle-Size Analysis by Pipette and Sedigraph," *Journal of Environmental Quality*, Vol 8, pp. 543-546, 1979.
- (139) Chao, T. T., and Zhou, L., "Extraction Techniques for Selective Dimoletion of Assorphous Iron Oxides from Soils and Sedi-

ments." Soil Science Society of American Journal, Vol 47, pp. 225-232, 1983.

- (140) Crecelius, E. A., Jenne, E. A., and Anthony, J. S., "Sediment Quality Criteria for Metals: Optimization of Extraction Methods for Determining the Quality of Sorbents and Adsorbed Metals in Sediments." Battelle Report to USEPA, Criteria and Standards Division, Washington, DC, 1987.
- (141) Kersten, M., and Forstner, U., "Cadmium Associations in Freshwater and Marine Sediment," Cadmium in the Aquatic Environment, John Wiley & Cons, New York, pp. 51-88, 1987.
- (142) Jenne, E. A., "Controls on Mn, Fe, Co. Ni, Ca, and Zn Concentrations in Soils and Water: The Significant Role of Hydrous Mn and Fe Onides," Advanced Chemistry, Vol 73, pp. 337-387, 1968.
- 337-387, 1968, 4, (143) Jenne, E. A., "Thice Element Sorption by Sediments and Soil-Sites and Processes," Symposium on Molybdenum in the Environment, Vol 2, M. Dekker, Inc., New York, pp. 415-553, 1977.
- (144) Jenne, E. A., "Sediment Quality Criteria for Metals: II. Review of Methods for Quantitative Determination of Important Adsorbents and Sorbed Metals in Sediments." Battelle Report to USEPA, Criteria and Standards Division, Washington, DC, 1987.
- (145) Lake, D. L., Kirk, P., and Lesser, J., "Fractionation, Characterization, and Speciation of Heavy Metals in Sewage Sludge and Sludge-Amended Soils: A Review," *Journal of Environmental Quality*, Vol 13, pp. 175-183, 1984.
- (146) Maher, W. A., "Evaluation of a Sequential Extraction Scheme to Study Associations of Trace Elements in Estuarine and Oceanic Sediments," Bulletin of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology, Vol 32, pp. 339, 1984.
- (147) O'Donnel, J. R., Kaplan, B. M., and Allen, H. E., "Bioavailability of Trace Metals in Natural Waters," Aquatic Toxicology and Hazard Assessment: Seventh Symposium, ASTM STP 854, pp. 485-501, 1985.
- (148) Salomons, W., and Formacr. U., "Trace Metal Analysis on Polluted Sediment. II. Evaluation of Environmental Impact." Environmental Technology Letters, Vol. 1, pp. 106-517, 1930.
- (149) Fiszman, M., Pfeiffer, W. C., and Drude de Lacerda, L., "Comparison of Methods Used for Extraction and Geochemical Distribution of Heavy Metals in Bottom Schimenis from Sepetible Bay. R. J. Environmental Technology Letters, Vol. 5, pp. 567-575, 1984.
- (150) Stalo. B. A., "Partial Extraction of Metals from Aquatic Seduments," Environmental Science and Technology, Vol. 11, pp. 277-282, 1977.
- (151) Khalid. R. A., and Gambrell, R., and Patrick, Jr., W., "Chemical Availability of Cadmium in Minumippi Never Sadiment," Journal of Environmental Quality, Vol 10, pp. 523–528, 1981.
- (152) Ferrier, A., Campbell, D., and Biston, M., Sequential Extraction Procedure for the Speciation of Patheulase Trace Metals," Ano-Interal Chemistry, Vol 51, pp. 844–851, 1979.
- (153) Jackson, M. L., "Soil Chemical Analysis," Premice-Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffa, NJ, 1933.
- (154) Boxt. T. E., "Benilde Community Metabolism in Fish Temperativ Straim Systems: An Inter-Bioms Comparison and Evalution of the River Continuum Concept." Hydrobologie, Vol 123, pp. 2-45, 1985.
- (155) Davis, W. S., Fay, L. A., and Nordendort, C. E., "Overview of USEPA/CLEAR Lake Eric Sediment Oxygen Dismand Investigausen During 1975," Journal of Great Lokais Research, Vol. 13, pp. 731-737, 1987.
- (156) Davis, W. S., Browan, T. M., and Sylex, R. M., "Use of Benchuc Oaypen Flux Measurements in Washeland Allowsson Studies," *Chemical and Biological Characterization of Sludges, Sediments,* Dredge Spoils, and Drilling Muds. ASTM STP 970, pp. 450-562, 1988.
- (157) Uchrin, G. G., and W. K. Alzert, "In Situ Sediment Oxygen Demand Determination in the Panasc River (NJ) During the Late Summer/Early Fall 1923," Wore Research, Vol 19, pp 1141-1144, 1983.

- (158) Haddock, J. D., Landrum, P. F., and Giesy, J. P., "Extraction Efficiency of Anthracene from Sediments," Analytical Chemistry, Vol 55, pp. 1197-1200, 1983.
- (159) Sporstoel, S., Gies, N., and Cariberg, G. E., "Extraction Efficiencies for Organic Compounds Found in Aquatic Sediments." Analytica Chimica Acta, Vol 151, pp. 231-235, 1983.
- (160) Crossland, N. O., and Wolff, C. J. M., "Fate and Biological Effects of Pentachlorophenol in Outdoor Ponds," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 4, pp. 73-86, 1985.
- (161) Gerould, S., and Gloss, S. P., "Mayfly-Mediated Sorption of Toxicants into Sediments," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 5, pp. 667-673, 1986.
- (162) Lay, J. P., Schauerte, W., Klein, W., and Korte, F., "Influence of Tetrachloroethylene on the Biota of Aquatic Systems: Toxicity to Phyto- and Zooplankton Species in Consparaments of a Natural Pond," Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology, Voi 13, pp. 134-142, 1984.
- (163) O'Neill, E. J., Monti, C. A., Prichard, P. H., Bourguin, A. W., and Ahearn, D. G., "Effects of Lugworms and Seagrass on Kepone (Chlordecone) Distribution in Sediment-Water Laboratory Systems, Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 4, pp. 453-458, 1985.
- (164) Pritchard, P. H., Monti, C. A., O'Neill, E. J., Connolly, J. P., and Ahearn, D. G., "Movement of Kepone (Chlordecone) Across an Undisturbed Sediment-Water Interface in Laboratory Systems." Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 5, pp. 647-657. 1986
- (165) Stephenson, R. R., and Kane, D. F., "Persistence and Effects of Chemicals in Small Enclosures in Ponds." Archives of Environmenial Contamination and Toxicology, Vol 13, pp. 313-326. 1984.
- (166) Titus, J. A., and Pfister, R. M., "Bacterial and Cadmium Interactions in Natural and Laboratory Model Aquatic Systems." Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology, Vol 13, pp. 271-277, 1984.
- (167) Taushimoto, G., Matsumura, F., and Jago, R., "Fate of 2.3,7,8tetrachloredebenzo-p-dioxin (TCDD) is an Outdoor Pond and in Model Aquatic Ecosystems." Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 1, pp. 61-68, 1982.
- (168) Foster, G. D., Baks, S. M., and Means, J. C., "Bioaccumulation of Trace Organic Contaminants from Sediment by Baltic Clams (Macoma balthica) and Soft-Shell Classs (Mya armania)." Envirowmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 6, pp. 969-976, 1987
- (169) Greaves, M. P., Davies, H. A., Marsh, J. A. P., and Wingfield, G. I. "Effects of Pesticides on Soil Microflore Using Delaption as an Example," Archives of Environmental Contamunation and Taxicology, Vol 10, pp. 437-439, 1981.
- (170) Swindoll, C. M., and Applehans, F. M., "Factors Influencing the Accumulation of Sediment-Sorbed Hesachlorobioheavil Us Midne Larvae." Bulletin of Environmental Concernination and Toxicology; Vol 39, pp. 1055-1062, 1987.
- (171) Tagatz, M. E., Plava, G. R., and Denna, C. H., "Youcity of Dibutyl Phthälate-Contaminated Sudiment to Laboratory and Field Colonized Exustine Benthic Communities," Bulletin of Environmental Contamination and Taxicology, Vol. 37, pp. 141-150, 1986.
- (172) Hähanson, L., "Sectiment Sampling in Different Aquatic Environments: Statistical Aspects," Water Resource Research, Vol 20, pp. 41-46, 1984.
- (173) Webster, G. R. B., Servas, M. R., Choudhry, G. G., Sama, L. P., and Muir, G. C. G., "Methods for Dissolving Hydrophobics in Water for Studies of Their Interactions with Dissolved Organic Marter," Advances in Chemistry Series, Presented at 193rd National Meeting of the American Chemical Society, Division of Environmental Chemistry, Emended Abstracts, Vol 27, pp. 191-192, 1990.
- (174) Niedi-Kizza, P., Rao, P. S. C., and Horneby, A. G., "Influence of Organic Cosolvents on Sorption of Hydrophobic Organic Chemicals by Soili," Environmental Science and Technology, Vol 19, pp. 975-979, 1965.

(175) Landrum. P. F., and Poore, R., "Toxicokinetics of Science Xenobiotics in Hexagenia limbara," Journal of Great Law Research, Vol 14, pp. 427-437, 1988.

3) D:

D

۸.

٥C

Su

۳E

C:

n:

н

- (176) Birge, W. J., Black, J., Westerman, S., and Francis, P., Toricity of Sediment-Associated Metals to Freshwater Organ Biomonitoring Procedures," Fate and Effects of Sediment-Ben Chemicals in Aquatic Systems," Pergamon Press, New York, B 199-218, 1987.
- (177) Francis. P. C., Birge, W., and Black, J., "Effects of Cadmi Enriched Sediment on Fish and Amphibian Embryo-Land «Stages." Ecoloxicology and Environmenial Safety, Vol 1, pa 378-387, 1984.
- (178) 'Ziegenfuss, P. S., and Adams, W., "A Method of Assessing the Acute Toxicity of Contaminated Sediments and Soils Daphnia magna and Chironomus tensans," Report Na. Mar 4549, ESC-EAG-M-85-01, Monsanto Corp., St. Louis, MO, 1985.
- (179) Burton, G. A., Lazorchak, J. M., Waller, W. T., and Lanza, G. R. "Arsenic Toxicity Changes in the Presence of Sediment," But of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology, Vol 38, ma 491-499, 1987.
- (180) Nebeker, A. V., Onjukka, S. T., Cairns, M. A., and Krawczyk, D. F. "Survival of Daphnia magna and Hyalella asteen in Cadming Stiked Water," Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry, Vol 5 pp. 933-938, 1986.
- (181) Di Toro, D. M., Horzempa, L. M., Casey, M. M., and Richardson, W., Journal of Grew Loices Research, Vol 8, ma 116_149
- (182) Kanckhoff, S. W., and Morns, K. R., "Sorption Dynamics of Hydrophobic Pollutients in Sediment Suspensions." Envisor mental Taxicology and Chemistry, Vol 4, pp. 469-479, 1985.
- (183) Kanckhoff, S. W., "Sorpuon of Hydrophobic Pollutans in Natural Sediments," Contaminants and Sediments, Vol 2, And ysis, Chemistry, Biology, Ana Arbor Science, Ana Arbor, Mi, m 193-205, 1986.
- (184) Landrum, P. F., "Bios-sitability and Toxicolumetics of Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocautions Sorbed to Sediments for the Amphipod. Postopareta hoy: " Environmental Science and Technology, Vel 23, pp. 588-595, 1989.
- (185) Landrum, P. F., Faux, W. R., and Eadle, B. J., "Bioavailability and Toxicity of a Mixture of Sediment-Associated Chlorinated Hydrocarbons to the Amphipod. Pontoporeta hoys," Aguere Tuxicology and Hazard Assessment. 12th Volume. ASTM STP 1027, pp. 315-329, 1989.
- (186) Schuytema, G. S., Nelson, P. O., Malueg, K. W., Nebeker, A. V., Krewczyk, D. F., Ratcliff, A. K., and Gakstatter, J. H., "Tosion of Cadmium in Water and Sediment Sturnes to Daphnic magne. Environmental Taxicology and Chemistery, Vol. J. pp. 293-308. 1984
- (187) Forstner, U., and Salomona, W., "Trace Metal Analysis on Polluted Sediments," Publ. 248. Deffi Hydraubes Laboratory. Delft, the Netherlands, pp. 1-13, 1981.
- (188) U.S. Army Corps of Employers, "Ecological Evaluation of Propoint Discharge of Dredaed or Fill Material iato Navigable Waters," Misc. Paper D-76-17, Waterways Experiment Station. Victsburg, MS, 1976.
- (189) Kesity, T. J., White, D. S., and Landrum, P. F., "Short-Term Lethality and Sediment Avoidance Amays with Endrip-Contaminated Sediment and Two Objectueses from Lake Michigan, Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology. Vel 17. pp. 95-101, 1984.
- (196) Keilty, T. J., White, D. S., and Landrum, P. F. Jublethal Responses to Endrin in Sediment by Stylodulius Aerograms (Lumbriculidae) as Measured by a ""Cenium Martier Laver Technique," Iquatic Toxicology, Vol 13, pp. 227-250, 1988.
- (191) Houd, M. A., and Ness, G. E., "Survival of Vibrio cholenae and Escherichic coli on Envarine Waters and Sediments." Applied Environmental Microbiology, Vol 43, pp. 578-584, 1982.
- (192) Bunon, G. A., Jr., Gunnison, D., and Lanza, G., "Survival of Pathogenis Bactoria :: Various Freshwater Sedimenta," Appled Environment - Jackson Joey, Vol 53, pp. 633-638, 1967.

(3) Danso, S. K. A., Habie, M., and Alexander, M., "Estimating the Density of Individual Brotesial Populations Introduced into Natural Ecosystems," *Canadian Journal of Microbiology*, Vol 19, pp. 1450-1451.

 Stemmer, B. L., Burton, Jr., G. A., and Sasson-Brickson, G.,
 "Effect of Sediment Spatial Variance and Collection Method in Cladoceran Toxicity and Indigenous Microbial Activity Determinations," *Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry*, Vol 9, pp. 1035-1044, 1990.

- (195) Downing, J. A., and Rath, L. C., "Spatial Patchiness in the Lacustrine Sedimentary Environment," *Limnology and Oceasiog*raphy, Vol 33, pp. 447-458, 1988.
- (196) Morin, A., "Variability of Density Estimates and the Optimization of Sampling Programs for Stream Benthos," Canadian Journal of Fisheries and Aquatic Science, Vol 42, pp. 1530-1534, 1985.

The American Society for Testing and Materials takes no position respecting the validity of any patent rights asserted in connection with any item mentioned in this standard. Users of this standard are expressly advised that datermination of the validity of any such patent rights, and the risk of infingement of such rights, are entirely their own responsibility.

This standard is subject to revision at any time by the responsible technical committee and must be reviewed every five years and if not revised, enter responsed or withdrawn. Your comments are invited either for revision of this standard or for additional standards and should be uddressed to ASTM Headquarters. Your comments will receive careful consideration at a meeting of the responsible technical committee, which you may attend. If you feel that your comments have not received a fair hearing you should make your viewe known to the ASTM Committee on Standards, 1918 Race St., Philadelphia, PA 19103.